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19 20 21 22 23
2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

( )| 249,589 318,452 327,701 310,157 371,586

( ) 13,716 19,079 19,007 14,269 20,704

( ) 11,716 16,652 16,435 10,492 16,645

( ) 11,901 16,674 15,972 10,084 16,850

( ) 39,911 59,818 70,736 75,766 87,023

( )| 137,258 179,321 179,668 206,663 239,908

) 1.99 2.87 3.36 3.60 4.13

) 0.58 0.80 0.78 0.50 0.79

) 29.1 33.4 39.4 36.7 36.3

) 34.5 33.4 25.2 14.3 20.5

) - 5.08 4.78 7.09 7.41

( ) 3,837 14,198 22,415 33,541 17,739

( ) 1,149 7,003 686 4,787 7,004

( ) 3,413 23,880 15,506 3,730 10,526

( ) 20,511 23,212 29,105 63,295 63,621

216 199 242 242 292

) (&) &) (&) (@) (@)

50
19
2021 12 18
2021 12
2012 21 133 18
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2002

2002 Omni-Plus System Pte Ltd

2002

2003 10 Omni-Plus System Plastics Pte Ltd

2004 10 OPS Technologies Sdn Bhd

2005 10 Omni-Plus System Shanghai Ltd

2005 10

2007 IVC USA IVC Paints & Coatings (Malaysia)Sdn Bhd

2009 11 Nihon Pigment Sdn.Bhd. 100

2014 11 PT Omni Plus System

2016 11 Cepco Trading Sdn Bhd

2017 Omni Plus System Philippines Inc.

2017
ITOCHU Plastics Pte. Ltd.
ITOCHU Plastics Pte. Ltd.

2017

2017 EnGro Corporation Limited
R&P (PTE) Ltd. R&P Technologies Pte Ltd

2018
Small World Accelerator Pte. Ltd. 48

2018

2018
I-FTZ Trade Philippines Inc

2019 2019 29 TUv SUD PSB Pte. Ltd
1509001:2015

2019 ITOCHU Plastics Pte. Ltd.
ITOCHU Plastics Pte. Ltd.

2019 OMNI-PLUS SYSTEM Japan

2019 PT Sentosa Kimia
100

2019 Alpha Chemie Pte Ltd
100

2019 Tags Polymer Sdn.Bhd.
100

2021 OMNI-PLUS
SYSTEM LIMITED

2021

2022

2022
KYOEI DENKI(S)PTE.LTD. 100
PT Kyoei Denki Trading
Indonesia 100

KD Advanced Materials, Inc
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2023 12 DP Shenzhen Technology Limited
2024
2024 BASF
2024 IMS SPV  ODT Investments Pte. Ltd.
2024 IMS  (International Material Supplier
Co.,Ltd)
2024 Alpha Chemie Pte. Ltd
2024 Kyoei DS India Private Limited
2025 EcoPoly Global (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
2025 JC Vine Holding Pte. Ltd. Advanced Materials Co.,
Ltd.
MoU
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( )
Nihon Pigment 100.0
Sdn.Bhd.

2,000,000
OPS Technologies 100.0
Sdn.Bhd.

250,000
Omni-Plus System 100.0
Shanghai Limited 13,576,080
PT Omni Plus System 100.0

10,020,480,000

Cepco Trading 100.0
Sdn.Bhd.

3,600,000
Omni Plus System 100.0
Philippines Inc. 197,635
DP Chemicals 100.0
Pte.Ltd. 534,530
DP Chemicals Vietnam 100.0
Company Limited 6,300,000,000 (100.0)
I-FTZ Trade 100.0
Philippines Inc. 200,000
Alpha Chemie 100.0
Pte.Ltd. 200,000
PT Sentosa Kimia 100.0

10,000,000,000
Kyoei DS (Malaysia) 100.0
Sdn. Bhd. Tags
Polymer Sdn.Bhd. 100,000
OMNI-PLUS 100.0 —

SYSTEM Japan 5,000,000
Omni-Plus System 100.0
(Thailand) Co., Ltd 10,000,000
Omni-Plus System 39.0
Plastics Co Ltd 2,000,000
Kyoei Denki (S) 100.0
Pte.Ltd. 3,600,000
PT Kyoei Denki 100.0
Trading Indonesia 800,000 (100.0)
KD Advanced 100.0
Materials, Inc 100,000 (100.0)
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Omni Development 100.0
Sdn Bhd

500,000
ODT Investments 100.0
Pte Ltd 46,390

SPV

DP Shenzhen 100.0
Technology Limited 100,000
Kyoei DS India Pte 100.0
Ltd 10,000,000
International 100.0
Material Suppliers 210,000,000 (100.0)
Co., Ltd
Universal Glory 100.0
Limited 2,500,000 (100.0)
Xiamen High Tech 100.0
Material Co., Ltd 1,713,388 (100.0)
Fortune Tone 100.0
Limited 1,400,000 (100-9)
Kunshan IMS Co., Ltd 100.0

1,852,863 (100.0)
EcoPoly Global 90.0
(Shanghai) Co., 5,000,000
Limited
( )
Small World 48.0
Accelerator Pte.Ltd.

600,001
R&P Technologies 40.0
Pte.Ltd. 1,875,000
ITOCHU Plastics Pte.
Ltd. 25.24

2,750,000

2024
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2025 31

63
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34

loT
NTUC

ERP

CSO Chief Sustainability Officer

CSO Chief Sustainability Officer
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SDGs Sustainable Development Goals 2035

PP

SUSTAINABLE
DEVELOPMENT s IFEEATREE M OB S 20% B
B3 oais . 0%

o B TRIE-OH I

2025

() 46 54

25 25 34 35 44 45 54 55
() 10 34 31 18

0A

31/385



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00o0o00oo00oOo(Esse713)
oOoOooodn

0A

ASEAN IT

Enterprise Singapore ESG
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CEQ Neo Puay Keong
CEO

2025 29 38.30 D3cube
Venture Pte Ltd Neo Puay Keong Regina Tay Wee Lian

100 Daryl Neo Boon Yao Neo Puay Keong

67.76 Neo Puay Keong
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Employment Act

ITOCHU Plastics Pte. Ltd.
Pte. Ltd.
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IT
IT

ITOCHU Plastics Pte. Ltd.

ITOCHU Plastics

2024

2025

ITOCHU Plastics Pte. Ltd.

275,950 429,718

ITOCHU Plastics Pte. Ltd.

28,

468,457 16,248,303
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2024 0.09
2025 0.18
0.10 2025

Matwerkz Technologies Pte. Ltd.
Matwerkz Technologies Pte. Ltd.
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ITOCHU Plastics Pte. Ltd.

R&P Technologies Pte Ltd

Omni-Plus System Plastics Co., Ltd

Hybrid Digital Pte Ltd CEO Neo Puay Keong | IT
100
Matwerkz Technologies Pte.Ltd. CEO Neo Puay Keong
27
2024 2025
R&P Technologies Pte Ltd 5,856,652 2,112,844
R&P Technologies Pte Ltd 5,915,608 1,614,967
R&P Technologies Pte Ltd 37,123 14,399
Hybrid Digital Pte Ltd - 26,760
Hybrid Digital Pte Ltd 32,468 25,062
Hybrid Digital Pte Ltd 284,855 281,177
Hybrid Digital Pte Ltd 44,620 44,825
Matwerkz Technologies Pte._Ltd. — 988
Matwerks Technologies Pte.Ltd. 269,263 25,230
Matwerks Technologies Pte.Ltd. 24,732 24,674
Omni-Development Sdn Bhd 1,859,213 —
2023 15 Omni-Development Sdn Bhd 99.998
JDR
JDR

2021 25
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JDR
2025 27 CEO Neo Puay Keong
38.30 D3cube Venture Pte Ltd Neo Puay
Keong Regina Tay Wee Lian 100
Daryl Neo Boon Yao 67.76 Neo

Puay Keong Daryl Neo Boon Yao
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FRS
23 2024 2025 31
33.2
13.4 9.4
9.2 1.2
2025 371.6
310.1 1.0
2025
22.0
16.5 5.0 0.3 0.3
0.1
2025
M&A
75.8 11.3 87.0
11.0 2024 1.9
2024 12 3.8
2025 371.6 19.8
43.6

13.4 13.0
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2025
10.5
1.1 4.3
6.2
4.6
0.6 2.0
4.1
2024
30.7
6.2
1.2
4.5 5.7
0.8

40.2
16.6

4.5

1.0

MYR

3.8

17.7
8.3

7.0

10.5

49.8
26.4
37.3
21.7 5.6
IDR
0.8
1.0
7.4
63.3 0.3
4.5
4.7
1.9
5.8
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a.
22 23
22 23
2023 2024
2024 31 2025 31
(Usb) (USD)
52,755,214 74.0 56,310,327 106.7
52,755,214 74.0 56,310,327 106.7
b.
C.
22 23
22 23
2023 2024
2024 31 2025 31
(usb) (USD)
310,157,176 94.6 371,586,049 119.8
310,157,176 94.6 371,586,049 119.8
(
()
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2025 31
Industrial 2019
Polymer Sdn.
Bhd
R&P(Pte) Ltd 2017 21
R&P Technologies Pte
Ltd
Matwerkz 2022 12
Technologies 2025 10 15
Pte. Ltd.
IT
2024
2027 12 31
BASF POM 2024
2024
2027
SIMTech
A*STAR
PCR
Al 2024 20
2026 20
SIMTech
A*STAR
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Institute of Materials Research and Engineering IMRE

2025

2024 2025

256,405 109,950

12
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2023 2024 31
4,840,840
2024 2025 31
3,178,853
2025 31
¢ )
( - 645,915 4,331,724 37,148 | 5,014,787 63
)
2025 31
)
Nihon
Pigment —
Sdn_Bhd. 8,429,577 278,627 175,425 60,908| 8,944,537 44
)

Nihon Pigment Sdn.Bhd.
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2025 31
)
( )
Nihon 200
Pigment ( ) — 30,000 - 2025 2026
Sdn.Bhd.
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2025 29
31,586,766 21,057,844 -
2025 28 50 10,528,922
) )
2023 31 2025 24
2021
21,057,844 21,057,844 29
21,057,844 21,057,844 — —
2021 29
2022
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(D) ) ( ) |1 ( ) 1 ( ) | ( )
2016 31 3,632,500 2,674,070 ;
2017( )30 403,611 | 4,036,111 | 1,124,460 | 3,798,530 -
2019( )28 975,350 | 5,011,461 | 14,711,895 | 18,510,425 -
2021( )12 15,034,383 | 20,045,844 - | 18,510,425 -
2021 24 880,000 | 20,925,844 | 7,018,552 | 25,528,977 -
2021 29 132,000 | 21,057,844 | 544,571 | 26,073,548 -
() 2.786 1,124,460
15.08 14,711,895
960 8.67 880,000
960 8.67 132,000
1,210,067
2025 29
)
()
) - _ B —
X -] 1,201,500 - 110,948,461 - - | 8,907,883 [21,057,844
N 5.71 - 51.99 - - 42.30 100
(D)
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2025 29
Neo Puay Keong 8,065,196 38.30
D3cube Venture Pte 339943
Ltd #01-03 994 5,633,077 26.75
ITOCHU Plastics Pte. 078881
Ltd. 43203 5,315,384 25.24
MTBJB80000069 1 1,201,500 5.71
Daryl Neo Boon Yao 570,797 2.71
Chong Chiet Ping 271,890, 1.29
- 21,057,844 100.00
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(M

CEO Neo Puay Keong

Regina Tay Wee Lian

Yong Thian Sze

Lee Sok Hui

Wong Ming Ghee

12
100

@)
12 100

Lee Sok Hui

Yong Thian Sze

Lee
(iip)
Yong
12 100

Yong Thian Sze( )
Lee Sok Hui
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@v)
)
CSO Chief Sustability Officer CFO
(vi) IR
IR CFO IR
(vii)
KPMG LLP
(b)
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Q)

(i)

RULES ON DOCUMENTS MANAGEMENT

@iv)

)

(vi)

(vii)
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(viii)

(b)
RULES ON RISK MANAGEMENT
CFO
CSO Chief Sustainability Officer
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29
)
2025 24
« )
1985
1988
1995
2014 MBA
Neo Puay Keong | 1965 10 19 2024 8,065,196
CEO
« D
1988 Nagase Singapore Pte Ltd
1992 EIf Atochem SEA Pte Ltd
( : Total Petrochemicals (S.E.A.) Pte Ltd)
2002
CEO ( )
« )
1988
2022 MBA
« )
Nagase Singapore Pte Ltd
1989 g gap
Regina Tay Wee 2006 5,633,077
: 1965 12 26
Lian 2007
2012
2017
2023
(CSO)
« )
1980
« D
Neptune Orient Lines Ltd
1980
Thorn EMI Rentals Pte Ltd
1984
Lee Sok Hui 1958 14 ; —
EMI Group Singapore Pte Ltd
1990
Asiavision Pte Ltd
2008
Sa Cosmetic Co (S) Pte Ltd
2010
Sinquest Pte Ltd
2013
2019
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« D
1981
1985 MBA
« )
1981 Hewlett Packard
1985 Robot Leasing & Consultancy Pte Ltd
1986 Arthur Young Consultants
Yong Thian Sze | 1958 13 1989 Archive Singapore Limited
Singtel and Singtel International
1991
1995 ING-Baring Fund
Crest Capital Partners Limited
2006
2010 Aju IB Investment
GU Equity Partners LLP
2017
2019
« D
1997
« D
1997
2006 ITOCHU Chemicals America Inc.
2013
1974 23
2017
2019
2020
ITOCHU Plastics Pte.Ltd
2024
1981
Hons.
2014 MBA
BP-Castrol china Lubricants
2000
BP-Sinopec Zhejiang Petroleum Compan:
2002 p Jiang pany
2007 The Lubrizol Corporation
Lubrizol Advanced Materials
2008
Wong Ming Ghee | 1958 The Lubrizol Corporation
2015
Lubrizol-Sekisui CPVC
2018 Vistage CEO (2023 )
Hafnium Hafaway
2020
2022
Addvalue Technologies Ltd
2021 (2024 )
PACE(Professional
2022

and Adult Continuing Education)

58/385



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00o0o00oo00oOo(Esse713)
ooOooodn

1973

25

1997

2013

2006

2013

2014

2018

2021

2022

2025

KU
cum laude

Cleary Gottlieb Steen & Hamilton LLP
DC

(

)

Regina Tay Wee Lian
Regina Tay Wee Lian

2025 29

Yong Thian Sze
Lee Sok Hui
Wong Ming Ghee

CEO Neo Puay Keong
D3cube Venture Pte Ltd
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(a) : KPMG LLP
(b) Yap Wee Kee
©
KPMG LLP
(d)
(ACRA)
@
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
216,598 37,700 324,509 36,687
52,297 - 57,284 -
268,895 37,700 381,793 36,687
)
(b) KPMG (€)) )
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
57,640 - 66,317 -
57,640 - 66,317 -
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©
(d)
@
)
566 476 87 -
128 - - -
(b)
(a
(b
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15

23

22
331
2024
1.41
2025
23 2025

KPMG LLP

31

20

29

24

149.52

31
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23 2025 31
31
SFRS FRS
38 59 328
KPMG LLP
40 321 35
32 12
2025 31
22 2024 31
30
30
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(1) 23 2025 31

2025 31

2025 2024 2025 2024
UssC ) ussC ) UussC ) UssC )

25,929,583 20,659,171 5,014,787 2,856,003
(3,876,991) (3,088,959)  (749,811)  (427,030)

566,790 538,792 37,020 102,099
(84,746) (80,560) (5,535) (15,266)
1,102,779 Z 1,102,779 -
(164,888) (-)  (164,888) )
- ~ 18,459,662 15,304,699

) (-) (2,760,089) (2,288,359)

. - 24,223 24,223

) ) (3,622) (3,622)

1,399,804 2,422,477 1,841,074 1,841,074
(209,299)  (362,209)  (275,277)  (275,277)

10 6,855,194 4,263,919 137,048 -
(1,024,989)  (637,541)  (20,491) )

13 673,937 732,930 - .
(100,767)  (109,588) ) )

11 2,019,561 457,171 . .
(301,965) (68,356) ) )

38,547,648 29,074,460 26,616,593 20,128,098
(5,763,644) (4,347,213) (3,979,713) (3,009,553)

12 47,296,283 38,116,217 21,509,323 16,857,718
(7,071,740) (5,699,137) (3,216,074) (2,520,566)

13 85,887,873 72,461,225 69,676,952 67,631,789
(12,841,955) (10,834,402) (10,418,098) (10,112,305)

14 68,176,533 67,005,790 39,514,925 53,440,792
(10,193,755) (10,018,706) (5,908,272) (7,990,467)

- 5,223 - 5,223

() (781) ) (781)

201,360,689 177,588,455 130,701,200 137,935,522
(30,107,450) (26,553,026) (19,542,443) (20,624,074)

239,908,337 206,662,915 157,317,793 158,063,620
(35,871,095) (30,900,239) (23,522,156) (23,633,672)
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15 26,073,548 26,073,548 26,073,548 26,073,548
(3,898,517) (3,898,517) (3,898 517) (3,898 517)
713,812 918,883
( 106,729) (  137,393) (-) (-)
61,583,347 50,611,280 55,638,489 45,780,428
(9,207,942) (7,567,393) (8,319,067) (6,845,090)
86,943,083 75,765,945 81,712,037 71,853,976
(12,999,730) (11,328,524) (12,217 584) (10,879 411)
79,593 3
(11,901) (@) (- ) (-)
87,022,676 75,765,942 81,712,037 71,853,976
(13,011,631) (11,328,524) (12,217,584) (10,743,606)

17 195,233 203,848 - -
(29,191) (30,479) ) )

16 22,331,833 11,710,747 4,620,612 1,199,536
(3,339,056) (1,750,991)  (690,874)  (179,355)

11 741,786 430,905 139,571 139,571
(110,912) (64,429) (20,869) (20,869)
23,268,852 12,345,500 4,760,183 1,339,107
(3,479,159) (1,845,899)  (711,743)  (200,223)

17 59,594,564 54,626,579 28,659,402 34,189,241
(8,910,579) (8,167,766) (4,285,154) (5,111,975)

16 65,393,796 59,517,271 37,911,040 46,825,688
(9,777,680) (8,899,022) (5,668,459) (7,001,377)
4,240,283 4,339,321 3,886,965 3,855,608
(634,007)  (648,815)  (581,179)  (576,491)

388,166 68,302 388,166 -

(58,039) (10,213) (58,039) )

129,616,809 118,551,473 70,845,573 84,870,537
(19,380,305) (17,725,816) (10,592,830) (12,689,843)
152,885,661 130,896,973 75,605,756 86,209,644
(22,859,464) (19,571,715) (11,304,573) (12,890,066)

239,908,337 206,662,915 157,317,793 158,063,620
(35,871,095) (30,900,239) (23,522,156) (23,633,672)
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2025 31

2025 2024
US$ ( ) Us$

18 371,586,049 310,157,176
(55,559, 546) (46,374,701)
321,783,050 269,934,762
( 48,113,002) (  40,360,646)
49,802,999 40,222,414
(7,446,544) (6,014,055)
19 5,562,543 4,570,119
(831,711) (683,324)
7,131,556 6,328,771
( 1,066,310) ( 946,278)
13,002,772 10,762,971
( 1,957,631) ( 1,609.279)
7,278,543 9,274,066
( 1,088,288) ( 1,386,658)
20 6,164,337 4,488,902
(  921,692) (  671,181)
9 993,987 331,501
(  148,621) (49,566)
21 20,704,347 14,269,324
(3,095,714) (2,133,549)
22 4,059,055 3,777,780
(  606,910) (  564,854)
16,645,292 10,491,544
(2,488,804) (1,568,696)
16,657,689 10,491,548
(2,490,658) (1,568,696)
12,397 4
(_1,854) (G
16,645,292 10,491, 544
(2,488,804) (1,568,696)
233,771 403,020
(34,953) (  60,260)
28,686 4,458
( 4,289) ( 667)
205,085 407,478
(30, 664) (  60,926)
16,850,377 10,084,066
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16,862,761 10,084,071
(2,521,320)  (1,507,770)
12,384 5
( 1,852) ( 1
16,850,377 10,084,066
(2,519,468)  (1,526,770)
23 0.7910 0.4982
(118.28) (74.49)
23 0.7910 0.4982
(118.28) (74.49)
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2025 31
US$( Uss¢ )

UssC ) Us$C ) USsC ) ussC ) )
2023 26,073,548 511,406 45,173,615 70,735,757 ~ 70,735,757
(3,898,517) ( 76,465) (6,754,359) (10,576,410) (=) (10,576,410)
- - 10,491,548 10,491,548 4 10,491,544
) (- (1,568,698) (1,568,698) ( 1) (1,568,697)
— 407,477 - 407,477 1 407,478
() ( 60,928) () ( 60,928) ( 0) ( 60,928)
— 407,477 - 407,477 1 407,478
(-) ( 60,928) () ( 60,928) ( 0) ( 60,928)
— 407,477 10,491,548 10,084,071 5 10,084,066
) ( (1,568,698) (1,507,770) ( 1) (1,507,770)

60,928)

15 - - 5,053,883 5,053,883 - 5,053,883
&) (=) ( 755,657) ( 755,657) (-) ( 755,657)
- — 5,053,883 5,053,883 — 5,053,883
) (=) ( 755,657) ( 755,657) () ( 755,657)
- - - - 2 2
) ) ) o) (V) (V)
- - - - 2 2
(&) (&) ) ) () ()
- — 5,053,883 5,053,883 2 5,053,881
) (- ( 755,657) ( 755,657) (0) ( 755,656)
2024 31 26,073,548 918,883 50,611,280 75,765,945 3 75,765,942
(3,898,517) (  (7.567,399) (11,328,524) ( 0) (11,328,524)

137,391)
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Uuss¢ ) Us$C )
USSC ) US$C ) USSC )  USSC )

2024 26,073,548 918,883 50,611,280 75,765,945 3 75,765,942
( (11,328,524)

(3,898,517) 137,391) (7,567,399) (11,328,524) ¢ 0
- — 16,657,689 16,657,689 12,397 16,645,292
) (-) (2,490,658) (2,490,658) ( 1,854) (2,488,804)
- 205,072 - 205,072 13 205,085
(=) (30,662) ) (30,662) (2) (30,644)
— 205,072 - 205,072 13 205,085
(=) (30,662) ) (30,662) (2) (30,644)
— 205,072 16,657,689 16,862,761 12,384 16,850,377
(-) (30,662) (2,490,658) (2,521,320) ( 1,852) (2,519,468)
15 - - 5,685,618 5,685,618 - 5,685,618
) (-) ( 850,114) ( 850,114) (-) ( 850,114)
- - 5,685,618 5,685,618 - 5,685,618
=) (=) ( 850,114) (  850,114) () ( 850,114)
- 1 4 5 3 2
) « 0 ( O ¢ O 0) ( O
25 - - - - 91,977 91,977
) ) Q) & (18,753) (13,753)
- 1 4 5 91,980 91,975
(@) (G (@) (0 (13,753) (13,752)
- 1 5,685,622 5,685,623 91,980 5,593,643
) ( 0) ( 850,114) ( 850,114) (13,753) (  836,362)
2025 31 26,073,548 713,812 61,583,347 86,943,083 79,543 87,022,676
(3,898,517) (9,207,943) (12,999,730)  (11,901) (13,011,631)

(
106,730)
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2025 31
2025 2024

Uuss(¢ ) uss( )
20,704,347 14,269,324
(3,095,714) (2,133,549)
21 1,964,307 734,125
( 293,703) (109,766)
10 947,216 483,261
(141,628) (72,257)
10 1,819,500 -
(272,052) )
21 15,851 8,564
(2,370) (  1,280)
21 3,305 113
(494) %))
1,088,519 1,221,177
(162,755) (182,590)
423,240 410,905
(63,283) (61,439)
21 746,588 584,155
(111,630) (87,343)
19 . 1,381,001
) ( 206,487)
27 32,655 -
(  4,883) )
993,987 331,501
(148,621) (  49,566)
19 1,176,893 361,688
(  175,969) (  54,080)
20 5,834,226 4,424,482
(872,333) (661,549)
20 330,111 64,420
(49,358) (9,632)
/ 921,588 280,976
(137,796) ( 42,012)
30,654,623 19,828,232

(4,583,479) (2,964,717)
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2,432,445 21,320,776
(  363,699) (3,187,882)
6,628,107 11,783,220
(991,035) ( 1,784,097)
12,455,858 7,218,160
(  1,862,400) (1,079,259)
22,394,427 36,583,948
(3,348,415) (5,470,032)
4,655,686 3,042,973
( 696,118) ( 454,985)
17,738,741 33,540,975
(2,652,297) (5,015,047)
1,176,893 361,688
(175,969) (54,080)
6,167,575 3,348,740
( 922,176) ( 500,704)
140,724 -
( 21,041) )
- 6,769,269
) (1,012,141)
83,200 -
(12,440) )
- 600,000
) ( 89,712)
37,044 1,230,308
( 5,539) (183,956)
2 -
¢ 0 )
25 1,918,540 374,281
(  286,860) (55,962)
7,003,792 4,786,806
( 1,047,207) (715,723)
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14 845,553 154,863
( 126,427) (23,155)

16 216,583,635 163,064,708
(32,383, 585) (24,381,435)

16 6,681,304 -
(998,989) -

16 221,088,922 157,132,040
(  33,057,216) ( 23,494,383)

16 416,520 403,224
( 62,278) (  60,290)

16 5,754,283 4,360,484
(  860,380) ( 651,980)

15 5,685,618 5,053,883
( 850,114) ( 755,657)
10,525,957 3,730,060

(  1,573,841) (  557,719)
208,992 34,597,721

(31,248) (5,173,051)

63,295,365 29,105,153
(9,463,923) (4,351,802)

116,198 407,509

(17,374) ( 60,931)

14 63,620,555 63,295,365
(9,512,545) (9,463,923)
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2025

Omni-Plus System Limited
Block 994 Bendemeer Road #01-03 B Central Singapore 339943

JDR 2021 29
1,201,500 JDR
2025 31 23
2.1
FRS
2.5
2.2
2.3
Us$
2.4

FRS

73/385



10

12
25
27

74/385

ECL

27

EDINETOOOO
OO000O00o0o00oo00oOo(Esse713)
oOoOooodn

FRS



2.5

2024

FRS
FRS 116
FRS FRS 107

2.5

3.1

Q)

3.3

3.8
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3.2

Q)

100
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3.3

Q)
FVTPL
(i)
FVTPL
FVTPL

FVTPL

FVOCI
FVTPL
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FVTPL
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(vii)

viii)

3.4

Q)

FRS115

ECL

100
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RCPS RCPS

FRS109

ECL



Q)

(i)

3.5

Q)

3.1(i)

25

10

13

10

10
50

10
10
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Q)

- 10
15

3.6

3.7

83/385

EDINETOOOO

OO000O00o0o00oo00oOo(Esse713)

40

oOoOooodn



3.8

84/385

EDINETOOOO
OO000O00o0o00oo00oOo(Esse713)
oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00o0o00oo00oOo(Esse713)
oOoOooodn

IT

3.9

Q)

FGC ECL

12 ECL 12 12
ECL
ECL ECL

ECL
ECL

ECL FGC
12 ECL
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ECL
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ECL
FGC

CGU

CGU
CGU
CGU
CGU
CGU
CGU CGU CGU

CGU CGU
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3.10
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3.11
3.12
PO
PO
PO
PO PO
PO

3.13
3.14

FRS 37
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3.15
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3.16
CEO
3.17
2024
FRS 118
FRS 118 FRS 2027
MPM

MPM
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Us$
Uss Uss uss Uss uss Uss uss Uss Uss$ uss

2023 10,044,489 3,546,765 786,219 864,387358,644 3,288,797 3,523,030 254,131113,8061,104,305 23,884,573

109,452 ~ 38,408 2,812 11,014 - 3,140,656 (211) 9,555 37,054 3,348,740
- — (56,050) —(4,918) ~ (14,699) -(9,151) ~  (84,818)

(1,757,779) (2,367,140) (1,379) - - ~(1,729,488) — (385) —(5,856,171)
(417,973) 417,973 - - - _ _ _ - _ z

- - - - - - - - - (59,368)  (59,368)
25 6,359,472 - - - - ~ 994,873 - - — 7,354,345

(802,619) (223,017) (9,319) (59,093) (8,839) —  (155,407) (19,399) (4,051) (4,894) (1,286,638)

2024 13,535,042 1,374,581 757,879 808,106355,901 3,288,797 5,758,965 234,521109,7741,077,097 27,300,663

31
2024

13,535,042 1,374,581 757,879 808,106355,901 3,288,797 5,758,965 234,521109,7741,077,097 27,300,663

131,320 - 54,405 36,300 13,073 3,357,299 2,548,235 - 5,844 21,099 6,167,575

- - (945) (2,888) - - (7,367) - - - (11,200)

_ _ - - -(1,119,099) - - - -(1,119,099)

25 - - 6,422 14,044 2,391 18,145 - 18,081 749 14,908 74,740

94,904 5,283 54,568 8,536 - 307,335 6,409 1,993 2,053

919,125 1,400,206
2025
31

14,585,487 1,469,485 823,044 910,130379,901 5,545,142 8,607,168 259,011118,3601,115,157 33,812,885
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uss$ Uss$ Uss$ Us$ Us$ Us$ uss Uss$ Uss$ Us$ Us$
2023 452,982 660,564 540,090 337,869 839,860 2,328,935 158,213 98,771 754,386 6,171,670

71,627 82,847 82,304 12,769 170,765 603,820 38,846 11,073 147,126 1,221,177

- - (56,050) - (4,918) - (14,586) - (9,151) - (84,705)
(201,207)  (805) - - - (265,506) - (385) — (467,903)

_ _ - - - - - - - (15,250)  (15,250)
(28,292) (5,919) (38,473) (7,788) (305) (82,806) (13,906) (3,800) (2,208) (183,497)

2024 295,110 680,637 583,921 337,932 1,010,320 2,569,857 183,153 96,508 884,054 6,641,492
31 -
2024 - 295,110 680,637 583,921 337,932 1,010,320 2,569,857 183,153 96,508 884,054 6,641,492

- 41,292 60,910 90,849 14,176 220,157 483,403 34,577 7,596 135,559 1,088,519

- - (945) - - - (6,950) - - - (7.895)

_ _ - - - (16,320) - - - - (16,320)

- 20,507 4,395 40,859 7,666 915 95,979 4,054 1,812 1,319 177,506

2025 — 356,909 744,997 715,629 359,774 1,215,072 3,142,289 221,784 105,916 1,020,932 7,883,302
31

2023 10,044,489 3,093,783 125,655 324,297 20,775 2,448,937 1,194,095 95,918 15,035 349,919 17,712,903

2024 13,535,042 1,079,471 77,242 224,185 17,969 2,278,477 3,189,108 51,368 13,266 193,043 20,659,171
31

2025 14,585,487 1,112,576 78,047 194,501 20,127 4,330,070 5,464,879 37,227 12,444 94,225 25,929,583
31
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Us$ US$ US$ Us$ US$ Uss$ Us$ Us$
2023 645,334 215,884 3,283,015 2,161,954 22,434 56,023 417,673 6,802,317
10,538 778 - 1,306,034 - 2,438 - 1,319,788
(56,051)  (2,520) - - - - - (58,571)
(1,379) - - (1,721,302) - - - (1,722,681)
2024 31 598,442 214,142 3,283,015 1,746,686 22,434 58,461 417,673 6,340,853
2024 508,442 214,142 3,283,015 1,746,686 22,434 58,461 417,673 6,340,853
29,464 893 3,357,299 333,163 - - - 3,720,819
- - - (5,105) - - - (5,105)
- - (1,119,099) - - - - (1,119,099)
2025 31 627,906 215,035 5,521,215 2,074,744 22,434 58,461 417,673 8,937,468
2023 587,650 213,145 834,077 1,204,492 22,434 53,559 392,674 3,308,031
41,523 1,460 161,387 270,095 - 2,310 18,513 495,288
(56,050)  (2,520) - - - - - (58,570)
(805) - - (259,094) - - - (259,899)
2024 31 572,318 212,085 995,464 1,215,493 22,434 55,869 411,187 3,484,850
2024 572,318 212,085 995,464 1,215,493 22,434 55,869 411,187 3,484,850
23,078 1,688 210,348 218,193 - 1,320 4,381 459,008
- - - (4,857) - - - (4,857)
- - (16,320) - - - - (16,320)
2025 31 505,396 213,773 1,189,492 1,428,829 22,434 57,189 415,568 3,922,681
2023 57,684 2,739 2,448,938 957,462 -~ 2,464 24,999 3,494,286
2024 31 26,124 2,057 2,287,551 531,193 - 2,592 6,486 2,856,003
2025 31 32,510 1,262 4,331,723 645,915 - 1,272 2,105 5,014,787
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11,175,374 2024 : 8,317,456
16
Uss$ Us$ Us$ Us$

2023 506,291 81,296 448,422 1,036,009
181,069 35,839 153,490 370,398
(44,601) - —  (44,601)
(6,709) (3,499)  (42,759)  (52,967)

2024 31
2024 636,050 113,636 559,153 1,308,839
227,943 - - 227,943
25 230,331 - - 230,331
(150,720) - (31,923) (182,643)
52,085 3,233 _ 55,318
2025 31 995, 689 116,869 527,230 1,639,788
2023 170,584 68,407 178,520 417,511
185,376 17,370 208,159 410,905
(44,601) - —  (44,601)
(7,460) (3,499) (2,809)  (13,768)

2024 31
2024 303,899 82,278 383,870 770,047
293,797 17,920 111,523 423,240
(150,468) - (32,175) (182,643)
59,121 3,233 — 62,354
2025 31 506,349 103,431 463,218 1,072,998
2023 335,707 12,889 269,902 618,498
2024 31 332,151 31,358 175,283 538,792

2025 31 489,340 13,438 64,012 566,790
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Us$ Us$ uss
2023 141,480 30,076 171,556
- 35,839 35,839
2024 31 2024
2025 31 141,480 65,915 207,395
2023 23,580 17,186 40,766
47,160 17,370 64,530
2024 31 2024 70,740 34,556 105,296
47,160 17,919 65,079
2025 31 117,900 52,475 170,375
2023 117,900 12,890 130,790
2024 31 70,740 31,359 102,099
2025 31 23,580 13,440 37,020
US$
2023 2024 31
2024 -
1,119,099
2025 31 1,119,099
2023 2024 31
2024 -
16,320
2025 31 16,320
2023 2024 31 -
2025 31 1,102,779
2025 31 1,102,779 2024
16

2025 31,846 2024

96/385



@

(b)

©

2024

EDINETOOOO
OO000O00o0o00oo00oOo(Esse713)
oOoOooodn

2025 2024

Us$ US$
17,647,058 16,564,106
() - 974,300
6,016,543 108,652
23,663,601 17,647,058
()] (2,861,580) (2,342,359)
©) (2,342,359) —
18,459,662 15,304,699

PT Omni-Plus System 464,300 PT Sentosa Kimia 510,000

100

2025 2024

Uss$ Us$
2,342,359 -
2,861,580 2,342,359
(2,342,359) —
2,861,580 2,342,359

2,861,580
2,342,359
2,342,359 2024
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2025 2024

Nihon Pigment Sdn. Bhd. 100 100
OPS Technologies Sdn. Bhd. 100 100
Omni-Plus System Shanghai Limited 100 100
PT. Omni Plus System 100 100
Cepco Trading Sdn. Bhd. 100 100
Omni Plus System Philippines Inc. 100 100
DP Chemicals Pte. Ltd. 100 100
I-FTZ Trade Philippines, Inc. 100 100
Alpha Chemie Pte. Ltd. * - 100
PT. Sentosa Kimia 100 100
Kyoei DS Malaysia Sdn. Bhd. 100 100

Tags Polymer Sdn. Bhd.

OMNI-PLUS SYSTEM Japan / 100 100
Omni Plus System (Thailand) Co., Ltd 100 100
Kyoei Denki (S) Pte. Ltd. 100 100
Omni Development Sdn Bhd 100 99.998
ODT Investments Pte Ltd 100 100
DP Chemicals Vietnam Co., Ltd. 100 100
DP Shenzhen Technology Limited 100 100
PT Kyoei Denki Trading Indonesia 100 100
Kyoei DS India Pte. Ltd. 100 -
KD Advanced Materials, Inc 100 100
Ecopoly Global (Shanghai) Co., Ltd 90 -
( Plastech (Shanghai) Co.,
Ltd) * *
International Material Supplier Co., 100 -
Ltd *

International Material Supplier Co., Ltd

Fortune Tone Limited 100 -
Universal Glory Limited 100 -
Kunshan IMS Co. Ltd 100 -
Xiamen High Tech Material Co. Ltd 100 -

25
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2025
US$

24,223

Omni-Plus System Plastics
Co., Ltd

Omni-Plus System Plastics Co.,Ltd
Maiseaumso Yanee Yuthakaichaisri

2025
Us$

1,962,694
(562,890)

2024
US$
24,223
39 2024
2024 2025
Us$ us$

1,962,694 1,841,074

459,783
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2025 2024

39 39

139 Thanasan

2024
Us$

1,841,074

1,399,804

2,422,477 1,841,074

1,841,074

Small World Accelerator Pte. Ltd.
(SWA)

R&P Technologies Pte. Ltd.

(RPT)
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FRS

2025

- 0OCI-

2024

- 0OCI-
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RPT SWA
Us$ US$ Us$
6,396,712 -
(694,163)  (299,824)
2,284,229 1,060,509
6,554,846 20,160
(1,033,411) -
(4,771,645)  (692,760)
3,034,019 387,909
1,939,064 483,413 2,422,477
(694,163)  (299,824)  (993,987)
(31,293) 2,607 (28,686)
(725,456) _ (297,217) (1,022,673)
1,213,608 186,196 1,399,804
8,075,705 -
840,672 (9,932)
2,080,450 832,697
4,934,012 326,765
(15,762) -
(2,151,041)  (152,352)
4,847,659 1,007,110
1,002,796 492,638 1,495,434
336,268 (4,767) 331,501
- (4,458) (4,458)
336,268 (9,225) 327,043
600,000 ~ 600,000
1,939,064 483,413 2,422,477
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Us$ Us$ Us$ US$ Us$
2023
2024 31 2,023,790 - - 4,832,609 6,856,399
2,901,437 - - 2,315,830 5,217,267
— 137,777 2,947 — 140,724
2025 31 4,925,227 137,777 2,947 7,148,439 12,214,390
2023 - - - 2,109,219 2,109,219
- - - 483,261 483,261
2024 31 - - - 2,592,480 2,592,480
2024 - - - 2,592,480 2,592,480
- 729 61 946,426 947,216
1,819,500 - - - 1,819,500
2025 31 1,819,500 729 61 3,538,906 5,359,196
2023 2,023,790 - - 2,723,390 4,747,180
2024 31 2,023,790 - - 2,240,129 4,263,919
2025 31 3,105,727 137,048 2,886 3,609,533 6,855,194
US$
2023 2024
2024 31 -
137,777
2025 31 137,777
2023 2024
2024 31 -
729
2025 31 729
2023 -
2024 31 -
2025 31 137,048
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CcGU
CGU
2025 2024
Us$ Us$
DP Chemicals Group 694,434 694,434
Cepco Trading Sdn.Bhd. Tags Polymer Sdn. Bhd.

Cepco Tags - 992,686
PT Sentosa Kimia - 336,670
International Material Supplier Co., Ltd 1,861,541 -
Omni Development Sdn. Bhd. - -
Ecopoly Global (Shanghai) Co., Ltd 549,752 —

3,105,727 2,023,790
2025 3 31 CGU
CGU CGU
2025 2024
16.1 - 16.9 11.5 - 13.7
58 -7.5 5.8-10.2
10.0 - 12.0 11.0 - 22.6
2.5 2.1 - 2.5
2024
ceu 10
ceu
ceu GDP
2025 31 CGU 1,819,500 2024
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11
2025 2024 2025 2024
US$ US$ Us$ US$
(93,031) (6,310) - -
(144,476)  (134,495) - -
- - 240,883 316,558
(83,934) (75,377) _ -
(39,547) (42,633) - -
(1,694,283)  (287,657) - -
- - 601,781 291,592
(65,168) (87,944) - -
(2,120,439)  (634,414) 842,664 608, 150
100,878 177,245  (100,878)  (177,245)
(2,019,561) _ (457,171) 741,786 430,905
2025 2024 2025 2024
US$ Us$ Us$ US$
- - 97,630 97,630
- - 80,089 80,089
(38,148) (38,148) - -
(38,148) (38,148) 177,719 177,719
38,148 38,148 (38,148) (38,148)
_ _ 139,571 139,571
2023 2024
22 31
US$ US$ US$ US$
- (6,527) 217 (6,310)
(106,289) (35,742) 7,536  (134,495)
264,151 60,767 (8,360) 316,558
367,094 (75,502) - 291,592
(33,163) (44,315) 2,101 (75,377)
(21,349) (23,288) 2,004 (42,633)
(135,168) (157,051) 4,562  (287,657)
(172,482) 80,570 3,968 (87,944)
162,794 (201,088) 12,028 (26,266)
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2024 2025
22 25 31
Uss$ Us$ Us$ Us$ Us$
(6,310) (88,662) - 1,941  (93,031)
(134,495) 46,607 (45,346) (11,242)  (144,476)
316,558 (93,382) = 17,707 240,883
291,592 (168,135) 478,324 - 601,781
(75,377) (7,326) - (1,231)  (83,934)
(42,633) 1,362 - 1,724 (39,547)
(287,657) (870)  (1,427,036) 21,280 (1,694,283)
(87,944) 29,429 (2,172)  (4,481)  (65,168)
(26,266) 280,977 (996,230) 25,698 (1,277,775)
2023 2024
31
US$ US$ Us$
- (38,148) (38,148)
139,571 (41,941) 97,630
- 80,089 80,089
139,571 _ 139,571
2024 2025
31
Us$ Uss$ Us$
97,630 - 97,630
80,089 - 80,089
(38,148) - (38,148)
139,571 _ 139,571
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2025 2024 2025 2024

Us$ Us$ Us$ US$
2,400,826 2,615,075 - -
47,785,122 40,348,417 23,207,113 19,726,041
50,185,948 42,963,492 23,207,113 19,726,041
(4,847,275) (4,153,436) (2,868,323) (2,643,925)
21 (316,498) (1,105,316) ~  (224,398)
21 | 2,280,805 371,191 1,170,533 -
(6,697) 40,286 - -
(2,889,665) (4,847,275) (1,697,790) (2,868,323)
47,296,283 38,116,217 21,509,323 16,857,718
2025 31 319,261,660 2024 267,567,376

316,498 2024 1,105,316
2,280,805 2024 371,191
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2025 2024 2025 2024

Us$ Us$ Us$ Us$
80,062,070 68,369,701 35,126,658 43,405,357
524,743 189,742 21,955,668 18,952,475
80,586,813 68,559,443 57,082,326 62,357,832
(1,467,002)  (582,338)  (530,303)  (530,303)
79,119,811 67,977,105 56,552,023 61,827,529
153,059 698,764 - 5,948
64,119 65,893 345,061 65,893
16,208 58,914 4,485 21,063
- — 10,421,286 3,693,449
952,882 915,838 1,561,955 1,501,335
345,758 243,597 116,315 113,760
2,777) - - -
80,649,060 69,960,111 69,001,125 67,228,977
997,151 853,500 - -
1,602,445 996,022 8,418 -
1,182,893 560,794 345,628 356,218
684,819 742,642 - -
1,445,442 81,086 321,781 46,594
86,561,810 73,194,155 69,676,952 67,631,789
673,937 732,930 - -
85,887,873 72,461,225 69,676,952 67,631,789
86,561,810 73,194,155 69,676,952 67,631,789
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15

1.50

31

2025
Us$

6,530
42,462,255
25,707,748

2024
Us$

5,982
46,107,117
20,892,691
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2025 2024
Us$ Us$

17,622,069 34,484,142
21,892,856 18,956,650

68,176,533
(4,555,978)

67,005,790
(3,710,425)

39,514,925 53,440,792
(3,356,908) (3,221,908)

63,620,555

63,295,365

36,158,017 50,218,884

4.90 2024

16

2025

21,057,844

1.75

5.27

2025 2024 2024

Us$ US$

26,073,548

21,057,844 26,073,548

107/385



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00o0o00oo00oOo(Esse713)
oOoOooodn

16

31
2025 2024
Us$ Us$
0.09
2024 0.09 1,895,206 1,895,206
0.18
2024 0.15 3,790,412 3,158,677
5,685,618 5,053,883
2025 2024 2025 2024
Us$ Us$ Us$ Us$
15,201,451 11,545,603 4,620,612 1,162,365
6,909,502 - - -
220,880 165,144 — 37,171
22,331,833 11,710,747 4,620,612 1,199,536
2,126,922 2,685,278 1,637,088 2,070,632
341,790 337,816 37,172 65,139
62,925,084 56,494,177 36,236,780 44,689,917
65,393,796 59,517,271 37,911,040 46,825,688
87,725,629 71,228,018 42,531,652 48,025,224
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2025 2024
Uss Us$ us$ uss
SGD 2.00 to 6.10 2024-2026 6,290,629 6,290,629 3,183,588 3,183,588
usD 8.29 2025 - - 275,144 275,144
MYR 3.29 to 4.65 2032-2040 11,037,744 11,037,744 10,772,149 10,772,149
JPY 6.30 2029 7,804,687 6,909,502 - -
MYR 1.81 to 3.14 2024-2025 45,890 29,574 81,885 76,139
PHP 2.35 to 2.37 2025 72,344 71,627 252,564 234,438
IDR 6.60 2024-2026 48,207 31,347 61,754 59,040
VND 2.37 2026-2027 111,558 104,945 42,792 31,033
CNY 1.82 to 2.36 2025-2027 331,605 230,240 - -
SGD 0.23 2025 37,227 37,172 102,682 102,310
NTD 1.46 2026 58,818 57,765 - -
usD 6.4 to 10.12 2025 45,461,719 45,461,719 51,993,545 51,993,545
MYR 4.46 to 5.30 2025 - - 509,359 509,359
IDR 9.02 to 9.58 2025 2,245,270 2,245,270 2,802,049 2,802,049
EUR 5.3 to 5.4 2025 886,868 886,868 640,359 640,359
CNY 4.605 2025 7,026,855 7,026,855 225,912 225,912
NTD 2.2 to 5.7 2025 7,085,509 7,085,509 - -
THB 4.75 2025 218,863 218,863 322,953 322,953

88,763,793 87,725,629 71,266,735 71,228,018

11,175,374 2024 8,317,456
1,102,779 2024

2025
US$

6,681,304
228,198
2025 31 6,909,502

100 ODT Investments Pte Ltd
RCPS 10,420
2024 10
31 6.3
RCPS
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5.27

SGD
uSsD

uSsD
SGD

2.00 to 8.06
8.53

6.28 to 7.66
5.25

14
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0o0000000000000000(E36713)
ooooood

2.20 10.12 2023 1.75

2025 2024

us$

2024 - 2049 6,257,700

2025

2025 36,236,780

2025

37,227

uss us$ uss

6,257,700 2,957,853 2,957,853
- 275,144 275,144

36,236,780 44,689,917 44,689,917
37,172 102,682 102,310

42,531,707

42,531,652 48,025,596 48,025,224
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uss$ Us$ us$ us$ Uss$
2023 65,750,103 772,456 671,722 - 67,194,281
163,064,708 - - 163,064,708
(157,132,040) - — (157,132,040)
- —  (403,224) - (403,224)
— (4,345,801)  (14,683) —  (4,360,484)
5,932,668 (4,345,801) (417,907) - 1,168,960
(957,713) - 17,554 - (940,159)
- 216,908 - 216,908
— 4,411,141 14,683 - 4,425,824
— 4,411,141 231,501 — 4,642,732
2024 31 70,725,058 837,796 502,960 ~ 72,065,814
2024 70,725,058 837,796 502,960 - 72,065,814
216,583,635 - - - 216,583,635
- - - 6,681,304 6,681,304
(221,088,922) - - ~  (221,088,922)
- —  (416,520) - (416,520)
- (5,735,745)  (18,538) - (5,754,283)
(4,505,287) (5,735,745) (435,058) 6,681,304 (3,994,786)
1,114,096 - 8,979 228,198 1,351,273
- — 227,943 - 227,943
25 12,919,590 — 239,308 - 13,158,898
- 5,815,688 18,538 - 5,834,226
12,919,590 5,815,688 485,789 — 19,221,067
2025 31 80,253,457 917,739 562,670 6,909,502 88,643,368
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2025 2024 2025 2024
Us$ Us$ Us$ US$
- 42,413,049 30,736,531 16,758,048 18,713,584
- 4,281,321 13,864,365 5,306,215 8,093,072
46,694,370 44,600,896 22,064,263 26,806,656
1,989,884 560,448 157,844 175,761
917,739 837,796 347,515 603,961
1,215,485 677,021 580,343 369,748
1,721,142 1,904,417 959,774 1,145,411
5,153,638 5,596,529 4,430,724 4,984,268
57,692,258 54,177,107 28,540,463 34,085,805
2,097,539 653,320 118,939 103,436
59,789,797 54,830,427 28,659,402 34,189,241
- 195,233 203,848 - -
- 59,594,564 54,626,579 28,659,402 34,189,241
59,789,797 54,830,427 28,659,402 34,189,241
18
30 90
2025 2024
Us$ Us$
263,168,313 251,163,642
105,937,777 50,889,853
2,203,894 7,400,011
276,065 703,670
371,586,049 310,157,176
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19

20

2025 2024
Us$ Us$
86,895 64,895
624,522 -
105,697 29,533
- 1,381,001
1,176,893 361,688
- 183,007
31,846 -
53,734 37,395
- 2,245,070
1,964,307 -
1,000,000 -
132,161 -
386,488 267,530
5,562,543 4,570,119
2025 2024
Us$ us$
4,662,320 3,816,177
794,903 592,328
RCPS 358,465 -
18,538 14,683
- 1,294
330,111 64,420
6,164,337 4,488,902
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2025 2024
uUs$ Us$
KPMG International Limited 395,919
343,540
57,284 52,297
KPMG International Limited 107,447
82,466
12 316,498 1,105,316

12 (2,280,805) (371,191)
(1,964,307) 734,125

26,086 38,255
3,305 113

15,851 (8,564)

10 947,216 483,261
1,088,519 1,221,177
423,240 410,905
8,219,123 6,222,821
755,532 614,190

116,942 108,911

27 746,588 584,155
- 1,584,049
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22
2025 2024
Us$ Us$
4,170,869 2,114,979
— 2,004,186
169,163 (140,297)
4,340,032 3,978,868
(310,405) (77,885)
29,428  (123,203)
11 ~ (280,977) _ (201,088)
4,059,055 3,777,780
20,704,347 14,269,324
993,987  (331,501)
21,698,334 13,937,823
17
(2024 :17 ) 3,688,716 2,369,430
90,487 21,128
(362,124)  (872,079)
485,923 351,274
(22,321)  (348,379)
- 392,517
(20,217) -
~ 2,004,186
29,428 -
169,163 (140,297)
4,059,055 3,777,780
* 10
17
2025 2024
Us$ Us$
3,931,280 4,050,206
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2025 2024
US$ Us$
16,657,689 10,491,546
21,057,844 21,057,844

0.7910 0.4982
0.7910 0.4982
IT
2025 2024
Us$ US$
18,538 14,683
202,455 1,972,244
19,056 22,403
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2025 2024
US$ Us$

(416,520) (403,224)
(18,538) (14,683)
(435,058) (417,907)

25

a International Material Supplier Co., Ltd ( IMS Group )
2024 International Material Supplier Co., Ltd
IMS 100 348,481,554 10,795,587
2024 IMS 2025 31
IMS
Ecopoly Global (Shanghai) Co., Ltd ( Ecopoly ) Plastech (Shanghai) Co., Ltd)
2025 28 Ecopoly Global (Shanghai) Co.,Ltd Ecopoly 90
2025 10,000,000 1,377,543
2024 Ecopoly
95,157,277 246,212
2024
IMS Ecopoly
Us$ USs$ Us$

10,795,587 1,377,543 12,173,130
10,795,587 1,377,543 12,173,130
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194,072
IMS Ecopoly

Us$ Us$ Us$
10,795,587 1,377,543 12,173,130
(7,174,175) (3,080,415)  (10,254,590)
3,621,412 (1,702,872) 1,918,540

IMS Ecopoly

Us$ US$ US$
33,376 23,219 56,595
- 230,331 230,331
2,315,830 - 2,315,830
795,346 679,211 1,474,557
1,783,570 2,734,312 4,517,882
7,770,914 11,268,875 19,039,789
556,414 945,181 1,501,595
91,234 - 91,234
7,174,176 3,080,415 10,254,591
(8,136,339) (4,783,251)  (12,919,590)
(2,759,456)  (13,019,218)  (15,778,674)
- (239,308) (239,308)
(217,038) - (217,038)
(473,979) - (473,979)
8,934,048 919,767 9,853,815
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oMD

IMS

IMS

Ecopoly

OMD IMS Ecopoly
Us$ Us$ Uss$ US$

108,652 10,795,587 1,377,543 12,281,782

NCI - - 91,977 91,977
381,493 (8,934,048) (919,767) (9,472,322)
490,145 1,861,539 549,753 2,901,437

OMD PPA
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Omni Development Sdn. Bhd. ( OMD )

2023 15 Omni Development Sdn.Bhd. OMD 99.998
499,990 108,652

OMD
2024 31 OMD
3,047,248 252,886 2023
OMD 10,664,729
752,436
2023

US$

6,359,472
994,873
1,732,235
1,563,709
482,933
(11,024,570)
108,652
108,652

2024 31

Us$
482,933

(108,652)
374,281

120/385
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OMD

Us$ Us$ Us$
6,359,472 18,145 6,377,617
994,873 - 994,873
1,732,235 - 1,732,235
1,563,709 (503,942) 1,059,767
482,933 - 482,933
(11,024,570) ~ (11,024,570)
- (4,348) (4,348)
108,652 (490,145)  (381,493)

121/385

2025 2024
US$ Uss
230,111 230,131
858,740 875,417
75,926 70,959

1,164,777 1,176,507
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2025 2024
Us$ Us$
429,718 275,950

27,748 1,859,213
2,112,844 5,856,652
(16,248,303) (28,468,457)
(25,062) (32,468)
(1,614,967) (5,915,608)

- (48,000)
18,750 31,250
(306,407)  (554,118)
24,674 24,732
(44,825) (44,620)
14,399 37,123
17,687 50,698
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2025 31 51 2024 50

2025 2024 2025 2024
Us$ Us$ Us$ Us$

47,879,028 53,382,942 46,070,433 52,046,545
31,214,831 12,016,784 10,481,590 9,720,108
- 2,413,998 - -

25,952 163,381 — 60,876
79,119,811 67,977,105 56,552,023 61,827,529
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ECL
2025

- 30
31 - 60
61 - 90
90
90
2024

- 30
31 - 60
61 - 90
90
90
2025

- 30
31 - 60
61 - 90
90
90
2024

- 30
31 - 60
61 - 90
90
90

2025

ECL

31

ECL

US$

70,858,853
5,895,238
365,814
147,671
1,852,235
1,467,002

US$

(1,467,002)

80,586,813

(1,467,002)

60,082,961
5,430,857
1,360,615

114,972
987,700
582,338

(582,338)

68,559,443

(582,338)

39,071,979
5,208,319
5,908
1,596,200
10,669,617
530,303

(530,303)

57,082,326

(530,303)

46,674,136
3,125,370
2,039,615
2,990,432
6,997,976

530,303

(530,303)

62,357,832

(530,303)

124/385
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US$ US$

2024 582,338 530,303
(32,655) -
181,384 -
743,811 -
(7,876) -
2025 31 1,467,002 530,303

2023 - -
584,155 530,303
(1,817) _
2024 31 582,338 530,303

100

2025 31 11
FRS109

952,882 2024 915,838
12
ECL

11,983,241 2024 5,194,784

12
ECL

12

2,777 2024

125/385
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ECL

12

12
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Uss$ Us$ USs$ Us$ USs$
2025 31
* 17 57,692,258 (57,692,258) (57,692,258) - -
16 17,328,373 (23,850,381) (2,790,212) (7,720,163) (13,340,006)
16 6,909,502  (7,804,687)  (826,325) (6,978,362) -
16 62,925,084 (64,225,040) (64,225,040) - -
16 562,670 (690,900)  (455,755)  (235,145) -
145,417,887 (154,263,266) (125,989,590) (14,933,670) (13,340,006)
388,166 (388,166)  (388,166) - -
145,806,053 (154,651,432) (126,377,756) (14,933,670) (13,340,006)
2024 31

* 17 54,830,427 (54,830,427) (54,626,579)  (203,848) -
16 14,230,881 (18,777,363) (2,761,887) (5,473,832) (10,541,644)
16 56,494,177 (58,086,745) (58,086,745) - -
16 502,960 (541,679)  (361,379)  (180,300) -
126,058,445 (132,236,214) (115,836,590) (5,857,980) (10,541,644)

(5,233)
- (2,200,000)  (2,200,000) - -
- 2,205,223 2,205,223 - -

68,302
- (1,588,709)  (1,588,709) - -
- 1,520,428 1,520,428 - -
63,069 (63,058) (63,058) — —

126,121,514 (132,299,272) (115,899,648) (5,857,980) (10,541,644)

127/385



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00o0o00oo00oOo(Esse713)
oOoOooodn

Uss$ uss$ USs$ uss$ uss$
2025 31
* 17 28,540,463 (28,540,463) (28,540,463) - -
16 6,257,700  (7,941,355)  (1,844,305) (2,774,789) (3,322,261)
16 36,236,780 (37,031,265) (37,031,265) - -
16 37,172 (37,227) (37,227) - -
— (56,617,356) (56,617,356) - -
71,072,115 (130,167,666) (124,070,616) (2,774,789) (3,322,261)
2024 31

17 34,189,241 (34,189,241) (34,189,241) - -
16 3,232,997 (3,307,081)  (2,130,447) (1,176,634) -

16 44,689,917 (45,907,703) (45,907,703) - -
16 102,310 (102,683) (65,456)  (37,227) -
(55,090,915) (55,090, 915) - -
82,214,465 (138,597,623) (137,383,762) (1,213,861) -

2025 31

MYR uSsD SGD
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2025 2024
MYR USD SGD MYR USD SGD
Us$ Us$ Us$ Us$ Us$ Us$
626,135 8,710,268 804,778 558,942 1,882,484 2,807,177
422,041 8,781,917 1,227,845 539,810 2,646,065 1,527,823
(452,140) (30,939,779)  (853,976) (489,944) (6,515,415)  (835,902)

- (469,250) (6,327,801)

~  (144,976) (3,285,898)

506,036 (13,916,844) (5,149,154) 608,808 (2,131,842) 213,200
2025 2024
MYR SGD MYR SGD
US$ Us$ US$ US$
626,073 106,569 549,646 2,479,898
339,869 709,330 427,623 1,153,832
(443,265)  (628,712) (423,119)  (624,228)
~ (6,294,872) —~ (3,060,165)
522,677 (6,107,685) 554,150  (50,663)
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MYR USD SGD

2025 2024 2025 2024
Us$ Uss$ Us$ US$
17,881 18,264 15,680 16,625
(417,505) (63,955) - -
(154,475) 6,396  (183,230) (1,520)
(17,881) (18,264) (15,680) (16,625)
417,505 63,955 - -
(154,475) (6,396) 183,230 1,520
2025 2024 2025 2024
Us$ Uss$ Us$ US$
25,707,748 20,892,601 21,892,856 18,956,650

(62,925,084) (56,494,177) (36,236,779) (44,689,917)

(6,909,502)

(6,575,747) (8,152,015

) (1,128,94é3 (2,855,9343

(50,702,585) (43,753,501) (15,472,871) (28,589,201)

(10,752,626) (6,078,866) (5,128,752) (377,064)
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FVTPL
bp
50bp 50bp 50bp 50bp
Us$ Uss uss USs$
(53,763) 53,763 (25,644) 25,644
(53,763) 53,763 (25,644) 25,644
(30,394) 30,394 (1,885) 1,885
(30,394) 30,394 (1,885) 1,885
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Us$ Us$ Us$ Us$ US$ US$ Us$
80,649,060 - 80,649,060
* 13
68,176,533 - 68,176,533
14
148,825,593 — 148,825,593
- 6,909,502 6,909,502 - - 6,714,000 6,714,000
16
- 388,166 388,166 - 388,166 - 388,166
- 7,297,668 7,297,668
- 17,328,373 17,328,373 - 15,878,749 - 15,878,749
16
- 57,692,258 57,692,258
17
- 62,925,084 62,925,084
16
— 137,945,715 137,945,715
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**x

* A

13

14

16

17

16
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US$ US$ Us$

5,223 - 5,223
69,960,111 69,960,111
67,005,790 67,005,790
136,965,901 — 136,965,901
- 68,302 68,302

- 14,230,881 14,230,881

- 54,177,107 54,177,107

— 56,494,177 56,494,177

— 124,902,165 124,902,165

133/385
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- 5,223 - 5,223
- 68,302 - 68,302
- 11,834,216 - 11,834,216
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US$ Us$ US$ US$ US$ US$ US$
2025 31
69,001,125 - 69,001,125
* 13
39,514,925 - 39,514,925
14
108,516,050 — 108,516,050
— 388,166 388,166 - 388,166 - 388,166
16 - 6,257,700 6,257,700 - 5,890,976 - 5,890,976
- 28,540,463 28,540,463
** 17
- 36,236,780 36,236,780
16
— 71,034,943 71,034,943
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US$ US$ US$

5,223 — 5,223
13 67,228,977 67,228,977
14 53,440,972 53,440,972
120,669, 769 — 120,669, 769
16 - 3,232,997 3,232,997
— 34,085,805 34,085,805

17
— 44,689,917 44,689,917

16
- 82,008,719 82,008,719

135/385
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a RCPS

RCPS

36.09

MCS
MCS

6.30

3.70
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RCPS

36.09
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CEO

138/385

2024
CODM

2025 2024

us$ uUs$
501,501,545 435,838,839
(129,915,496) (125,681,663)
371,586,049 310,157,176
21,789,894 15,383,117
(1,085,547)  (1,113,793)
20,704,347 14,269,324
312,317,010 257,346,574
(72,408,673) (50,683,659)
239,908,337 206,662,915
199,980,347 167,137,112
(47,094,686) (36,240,139)
152,885,661 130,896,973
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US$ US$ US$
2025
1,457,835 (280,942) 1,176,893
* 4,385,650 —" 4,385,650
(6,441,604) 277,267 (6,164,337)
(1.512,548) (946,427) (2,458,975)
(746,588) —  (746,588)
2024
361,688 ~ 361,688
* 4,208,431 — 4,208,431
(4,525,346) 36,444 (4,488,902)
(1,745,091) (370,252) (2,115,343)
(584,155) —  (584,155)
* 19
2025 2024
US$ US$
263,168,313 251,163,642
105,937,777 50,889,853
2,203,894 7,400,011
276,065 703.670
371,586,049 310,157,176
()
30,145,067 27,869,689
4,606,304 14.672
34,751,371 27,884,361
(i)
10
29
2025 22 1,320

1,680
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FRS

FRS 115

2021

FRS

FRS 105 FRS

FRS 36

20

FRS 113

2021

FRS

FRS 116

FRS 111
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FRS 103

FRS
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Statements of financial position

As at 31 March 2025

Ansrls

Propeerty, plant and equipment
Righil-ol-se assels
Investment property
Investment m subsidanrics
Investment m point operation
Invesiment m associales
Intangible assets and goodwill
Other recenvables

Diefiorred nx asscts
Nnm-current asscis

Inventbosics

Trade amd ather recaivahles
Cash aml cush L-qui'\:ah:'nlx
Denvative financial assets
Current mssels

Tatal assets

Equity

Share capitnl

Foreign cummency translation reserve

Relained eamings

Equity attribuatable to owners of the
Company

Mon-controlling ivlerests

Total ciquity

Limbilities

Other payables

Loans and bemowings
eferred tax liabdsties
Non-current linbilitics

Trade and other payables
Lonns and bormrowings
Provvasion (o tnxainon
Denwvative financial linbalitics
Carrent labilites

Total Eabilities

Tatal equity and liabilities

Note

12

13
14

17

11

17
16

EDINETOOOO
OO000O00o0o00oo00oOo(Esse713)
oOoOooodn

Ohmpni-Plus System Linvited
awd its srdvidimrie
Finanetal stahemmemls

Yeurr ended 31 Morch 2025

Group Cavmpany

2025 24 25 04

Uss Uss Uss Uss
25 920 583 20659,171 5,014,787 2 B56,00%
Sy, THHD SIR.T92 37020 102 099
1,002,779 - 1,102,779 =
= - 18,459 662 L]
- - 24223 24223
1,399 804 2422477 1,840,074 1LE41.074
255,104 4263919 137,048 -
673,937 TIZ 930 - -
201561 A57.071 - -

38547648 29.074 460 26.616,593 20,128,098

A7 206,183 IR 16217 21,509,323 16,857,718
B3BETHTA T2A61,225 69.676,952 67,631,789
68,176,533 67 008, 700 39,514,925 53,440,792

= 5223 = 5,223

201 360, 589 177,588 455 1 300,700 2040 137,935 522

139,908,317 206,662,915 157,317,793 | 58,063 620

26,073 548 26,073,548 26,073,548 26,073 548
(713.812) (Y18,883) - -
6l 583,347 S0.61 1280 55,638 450 45, TRLAZR

B6,945 083 75,765,945 ]1.712.037 T1R53.976
TH503 i) =

T NZ26TH 75,765,942 B1.712.037 T1LES3976

195233 203848 - -
22,331 K33 11,710,747 4620612 1,199,536
Td1, T8 410,908 139,571 139,571
23 268 852 12545 500 4,760,183 1335, 107

50,594 564 54,626, 5T 28 659,402 4,189,241

65,393,796 59,517.27| WAL 46825658
&, 240, 2R3 4,310 121 3 HE6,965 3,455 0608
188,166 68,302 358,166

1256 16,809 118,551,473 70,845,573 B BT 537

152 BE3 ] 130,896 973 75,605,756 B0, 200 644

2359 908,337 206625915 157,317,793 | 58063 6200

The accompanymg notes form an mtegrl part of these fmamcal sisements.
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Omuni=-Plus System Liwited
andd its sndhxidiarie
Finametald stifenminis

Yeurr ended 31 Morch 2025

Consolidated statement of profit ar loss and other comprehensive income
Year ended 31 March 2025

Group
Note 2028 024
Uss Uss

Revenue 12 371.586,049 310,157,176
Cost of sales {321, 7TR3,050) (269.934,762)
Gross profit 40,802,990 40222414
Other income 14 5,562,543 4570119
Sales and distnbution costs (TA31,5356)  (6,328.771)
Administrafive expenses (13,002.772)  (10,762971)
Other operating expenses (7,278,543)  (9.274,066)
Finance costs 20 (004,337 (4.485,902)
Share of (loss ) profit of equity-accounted investees

{met of tax) q (993, 987) 331,501
Profit before tax 2] 20,704,347 14,260 324
Tax expense 22 {4.059.055)  (3.777,780)
Profit for the vear 16,645,292 10,490,544
Profit atiributable to:
Crwners of the Company | 6,657 6RO 0,491,548
Mon-controlling interests (12,397 (4)
Profit for the vear 16,6435 292 10,491 544
Other comprehensive income
ltems that are or may be reclassified subsequently

to profit or loss:
Forcign currency translation differences — forcign

operations 233,711 (403 10200
Foreign currency translation differences — equity-

accounted invesiees 2H OEG) (4,458)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 205,085 (407.474)
Total comprehensive income Tor the vear | 6,850,377 |3, 0084 066
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Crwners of the Company 16,862,761 [0, 084 071
Mon-controlling interests (12,3%4) (%)
Total comprehensive income for the year 16,850,377 163, (184,066
Earnings per share
Basic carmings per share 23 L7910 (4952
Diluted carnings per share 23 0.7910 (4982

The accompanymg notes form an mtegrl part of these fmamcal sisements.
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Consalidated statement of cash Mows
Year enided 31 March 2025

Group
Mate 025 nz4
Ls% Uss

Cash Mows from operating activities
Profil before tax 20,704, 347 14 269 324
Addjustments for;
(Write bpck VAlowanee for obsolete invenmlones, el 21 (1.964,307) 734,125
Amortization of miangible asets mn 94T X6 483,261
Impasrmient lass on poodwill 10 LA 500 -
Inventonies wrtien ofF{kack) 21 15 %51 (B 5643
Property, pant amd equipment wniten ofT 21 3,05 E
Deprecintion of property. plant and equipment 4 1,088,514 1221077
Dreprecintion of nght-of-use asscts ] 413,240 410,905
Imparment loss on trade receivables 21 Tdin SR8 LETRELY
Ciatn on sale uI'mecrty. |11|ml ard crjuamenil (R - TR, 00y
Fecovery om doubtiul recesvables 27 (32,655) -
Shore of resaills in equily accounted mveslees 9 903 9ET {AEL500 )
Interest imeeme 1) (1, 076,803) (361 6ER)
Irllmxlm.pcrm: n 553 206 4424 48T
Faar value loss on fmancial denvative imsinmenis udi] m i G A
Unaealised foreign exchmge kssi{gam}, nel 921,588 {250,976
Operating profit before working capital changes 0654623 19828 232
Changes in:

inventones {2,432.445) 21,320,776

trabe and oiher reveivables G628 107 (11,783 220

trade and ml'u:r:[n'!ﬂh]l:: (12 435 RER) T AR 160
Cush generaled from operating activitlics 22394427 36,581,948
Ineome fax pasd {4,655 686} (3.042.973)
et cash generated from operating sctivities 17,738,741 33540975
Cush Naws from investing activitics
Interest received 1176593 361 68R
Purchase of property, plant and equipment {6, 06T.575) (3345, 7400
Purchase of inlanmble nssels (140, 724) =
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment - 6,769 265
Proceeds from disposal of denvative financial instrumenis B3I -
Decrenase in invesimam in an nssociate - {E3CH, DN
Changes in smounis dse from related companies (non-trsde) {37,044y 1,230 308
Change m non-contrelling interest 4 -
Acquisition of subsidianies, net cash of acquired 25 (1918540 3T4.281
Net cnsh generated (useil in)Trom investing activities {7,003, T92) A TR6 S0
Caush Naws from Mnancing sctivities
Changes of pledged Nxed deposits 14 {845.553) 154 863
Progeeds firom loan and bormowings It 216,583,635 163 04, T0E
Moeeeds from issaance of redeemable convertible preference shares 16 G681 30 -
Repayment of Toans and bomowings I (221,088,922 (157.032,0400
Payment of lease linbilities I (4165200 (403,224}
Interest paid 6 {5,754 243) (4,360 484)
Dividends pasd 15 (5 6E5.618) (5,053 BR3)
Net cash wsed in finamcing activities (10,525 95Ty (3,730,064
Net Inerease In cash and cash equivalents 208,992 34,597,721
Cash andl cash equivalents at 1 April 63205 365 29,105,153
Effect of exchange mie NMuctuations on cash held 116, 1 8 (407 506y
Cwih mnal cash ﬂ]li\'ﬂmlt ut 3 March 4 63 60 455 61 295 165

The accompanymg notes form an mtegrl part of these fmamcal sisements.
FS5
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Notes to the financial statements
These notes form an mtegral pant of the financial statements,

The financial statements were authorised for 1ssue by the Board of Dircctors on 2 August 2025,

Domicile and activities

Omni-Plus System Limited (the *‘Company”) is a company incorporated in Singapore. The address
of the Company’s registered office is Block 994 Bendemeer Road, #01-03 B Central, Singapore
339943,

The Company's Japanese Depositary Receipts (“JDR™) were listed on the Growth market of
Tokye Stock Exchange (“TSE™) on 29 June 2021, 1,200 50 of the Company™s ordinary shares
are held via The Master Trust Bank of Japan, the trust bank on behalf of the JDR holders.

The financial statements of the Growp as ot and for the year ended 31 March 2025 comprise the
Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the *Group” and individually as “Group
entities”) and the Group's interest in equily-accounted investees.

The principal activitics of the Company are to carry on business of trading i resin, chips and
other related accessories for local and overscas customers,

The principal activitics of its subsidiaries are stipulated in note 7 to the financial statements,

Basis of preparation
Swatement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standards
in Singapore (*FRSs"). The changes to material accounting policies are described in note 2.5,

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the histonical cost basis except as otherwise
described in the notes below.

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in United States Dollar ("USS7), which is the Company s
funciional currency.

Use of estimates and judgements
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with FRSs requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the future, including elimate-related risks and

opportunities, that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets,
liakilities, income and expenses. Acmal results may differ from these cstimates,
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Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis and are consistent with
the Group’s risk management and climate-related commitments where appropriate. Revisions 1o
pocounting cslimates arc recognised prospectively,

Information aboul assumptions and estimation uncertaintics at the reporting date that have a
significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment o the carrving amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are included in the following notes;

s MNote 10 - impairment test of intangible asscts and goodwill: key assumptions underlving
recoverable amounts,

s  Note 12 - allowance for obsolescence of inventorics

«  Note 25 - acquisition of subsidiaries: fair value of the assets aequired and liabilities assumed

s  Moie 27 - measurement of expected eredit loss ("ECL") allowance for trade and other
receivables

Measurement of fair values

A number of the Group's aceounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair
values, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

The management of the Group has overall responsibility for all significant fair value
measurements, including Level 3 fair values.

The management regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If
third party information, such as broker quotes or pncimg services, 15 used to measure fair values,
then the management assesses and documents the evidence obtained from the third partics to
support the conclusion that such valuations meet the requirements of FRSs, including the level in
the fair value hierarchy in which such valuations should be classified.

When measunng the fair value of an assct or a hability, the Group uses observable market data
as far as possible. Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hicrarchy based
on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

o Level Ib quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or halnlhinies,

e Level 2o inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (i.c. as prices) or indircetly (1.¢. derived from prices).

¢ Level 3 imputs for the asset or hability that are not based on observable market dam
{unobservable inputs).

I the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the
fair value hicrarchy, then the fair value measurement is categonsed in its entirety in the same level
of the fair value hicrarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurcment
(with Level 3 being the lowest).

The Group recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hicrarchy as of the end of the
reporting period during which the change has occurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measunng fair values is included in note 27,

F57

148/385



31

]

EDINETOOOO

OO000O00o0o00oo00oOo(Esse713)

iy System Linvited
add it sndhxidtarie
Finaretal stanesmen s

Year emded 31 March 2025

Changes in material accounting policies
New accounting standards and amendments

The Group has applicd the following FRSs, amendments to and interpretations of FRS for the
first time for the annual period beginning on 1 April 2024:

o Amendments o FRS | Classification of Lishilites as Currend or Nom-curvent and Non-
crirrent Liahilities with Covenanits

¢ Amendments to FRS 116 Lease Liahility in a Safe and Leasebock

o Amendments to FRS 7 and FRS 107 Supplier Finance Arvangements

The application of these amendments to standards and interpretations docs not have a matenal
effect on the financial statements.

Material accounting policies

The accounting policics set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in
these financial statements, and have been applied comsistently by Group entities, except as
cxplained in note 2.5, which addresses changes in material accounting policics.

Basis of consolidation
Business combinations

The Group accounts for business combinations using the acquisition method when the acquired
sct of activities and assets mects the definition of a business and control is ransferred to the Group.
In determining whether a particular set of activities and assets is a business, the Group assesses
whether the set of asscts and activities acquired includes, ata minimum, an input and substantive
process and whether the acquired set has the ability w produce outputs,

The Group has an optien to apply a ‘concentration test” that permits a simplified assessment of
whether an acquired set of activities and assets is not a busingss, The optional concentration test
is met if substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets acquired is concentrated in a single
identifiable asset or group of similar identifiable asscrs.

The consideration transferred in the acquisition 15 generally measured at fair value, as are the
identifiable net assets acquired. Any goodwill that anses 15 tested annually for impairment (scc
note 3.8). Any gain on a bargain purchase is recognised in profit or loss immediately. Transaction
costs are expensed as incurred, except 1f related to the 1w of debl or equity secunties (se¢ note
3.3)

The consideration transferred does not include amounts relaied to the settlement of pre-existing
relationships. Such amounts are generally recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration payable is recognised at fair value at the date of acquisition. 1f the
contingent consideration that meets the definition of a financial instrument is classificd as equity,
then it is not remeasured and settlement is accounted for within equity. Otherwise, other
contingent consideration 15 remeasured at fair value at each reporting date and subsequent changes
to the fair value of the contingent consideration are recogniscd in profit or loss.
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Mon-control ling interests ("NCI™) are measured at the NOCUs proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of the acquires’s identifinble net assets. at the date of acquisition.

Changes in the Group®s interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of contrel are accounted
for as cquity transactions,

(i) Subsidiaries

Subsidianes are entitics controlled by the Group, The Group controls an entity when it 15 exposed
to, or has nghts to, vanable retums from its invelvement with the entity and has the ability to
affect thase returns through its power over the entity. The financial statements of subsidiaries are
included in the comsolidated financial statements from the date that control commences until the
date that control ceases,

The accounting policics of subsidianes have been changed when necessary to align them with the
policies adopted by the Group, Losses applicable to the NCI in a subsidiary are allocated to the
non-confrollimg interests even 1f doing so causes the non-controlling mterests to have a deficit
balance,

(i) Loss of conirol

When the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the asscts and liabilities of the
subsidiary, and any related NC1 and other components of equity. Any resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in the former subsidiary is measured at fair value
when control is lost.

{iv) Investments in equity-accounted investees

Associates are those entities in which the Group has significant influence, but not control or joint
control, over financial and operating policics of these entitics.

Invesiments in associate are accounted for using the equity method. They are recognised initally
at cost, which includes transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, the consolidated
financial statements include the Group's share of the profit or loss and ather comprehensive
income of associate, after adjustments to align the accounnng policies with those of the Group,
from the date that significant influenee commences until the date that significant influence ceases.

When the Group®s share of losses exceeds its investment in an associate, the carrving amount of
the imvestment, wgether with any long-term interests that form part thereof, is reduced to zero,
and the recognition of further losses 15 discontinued except to the cxtent that the Group has an
obligation 1o fund the investee's operations or has made payments on behall of the investee.

(v) Joint aperation
A joint operation is an arrangement in which the Group has joint control wherehy the Group has
rights to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities, relating to an arrangement. The Group

accounts for cach of its assets, liabilitics and transactions, including its share of those held or
incurred jointly, in relation to the joint operation.
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(vi) Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrcalised income and expenses ansing from intra-
group transactions, are climinated in prepaning the conselidated financial statemenis. Unrealised
gains ansing from transactions with cquitv-accounted investees are eliminated against the
investment to the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee, Unrealised losses are eliminated
i the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of imparmment,

(vii) Subsidiaries and associates in the separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiarics and associates are stated in the Company’s statement of financial
position at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

3.2 Foreign currency
(i) Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencics are translated to the respective functional currencies of Group
cntitics at the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions, Monctary asscts and labilines
denominated in foreign currencics at the reporting date are ransiated to the functional currency
al the exchange rate at that date.

Non-monctary assets and liabilitics denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair
value are translated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at the date that the fair value
was determined. Non=monetary items in a foreign currency that are measured in terms of historical
cost are ranslated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction, Foreign currency
differences ansing on translation are generally recognised in profit or loss and present within
‘Other income” or “Other operating expenses’.

(i) Foreign operations

The assets and habilites of foreign operations, including goodwill and fair value adjustments
arising on acquisition, are ranslated to United States dollars at exchange rates at the reporting
date, The income and expenses of forcign operations are translated 1o United States dollars at
cxchange rafes ai the daies of the ransactions.

Forgign currency differences are recognised in other comprehensive income, and presented in the
foreign currency translation reserve in equity. However, if the operation is a non-whaollv-owned
subsidiary, then the relevant proportionate share of the translation difference is allocated to the
NCIL When a foreign operation is disposed of such that control, significant influence or joint
control is lost, the cumulative amount in the translation reserve related to that foreign operation
15 reclassified to profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal, When the Group disposcs
of only part of its interest in a subsidiary that ineludes a foreign operation while retaining comral,
the relevamt proportion of the cumulative amount 15 reattnbuted to NCL When the Group disposes
of only part of its investment in an associates that includes a forcign operation while retaining
significant influenee or joint control, the relevant proportion of the cumulative amount is
reclassified to profit or loss.

When the settlement of a monetary item receivable from or payable 1o a forcign operation is
neither planned nor likely in the foresceable future, forcign exchange gains and losscs arising
from such monetary items are considered to form part of a net investment in a foreign operation,
Thesc are recognised in other comprehensive income, and are presented in the translation reserve
in equity.
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33 Financial instruments
(i) Recognition and initial measurement
Mon-derivative financial assets and financial liabilities

Trade receivables are initially recognised when they are onginated, All other financial asscts and
financial liabilities are initally recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
prowisions of the instrument,

A financial asset (unless it 15 a trade receivable without a sigmificant financing component) or
financial liability is initially measuned at fair value plus, or minus, for an item not at FYTPL,
transaction costs that arce directly attributable to its acquisition or issuc. A trade receivable without
a significant financing component 15 imitially measured at the transaction pnce,

(i) Classification and subsequent measurement
Non-derivative iinancial assets
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured an amortised cost or FVTPL.
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent o their initial recopnition unless the Group
changes its business model for managing financial assets, in which case all affected financial
assets are reclassified on the first day of the first reporting period following the change in the
business model,

Financial asseis af amoriised cost

A financial asset is measurcd an amortised cost iF it mects both of the following conditions and 15
not designated as at FVTPL:

s 015 held within a business model whose objective is (o hold assets o collect contractual cash
flows; and

* its contractual terms give risc on speeified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Frndncial asseis af FVTPL

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCT as deseribed above
{e.g. Anancial assets held for trading and those that are managed and whose performanes is
evaluated on a fair value basis) arc measured at FVTPL.

Financial asseis: Business model assessment

The Group makes an assessment of the objective of the busingss model in which a finmancial asset
is held at a pontfolio level beecause this best reflects the way the business is managed and
information is provided to management,

Transfers of financial assets (o third parties in ransactions that do not qualify for derccognition

are not considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Group’s continuing recognition of
the asscts.
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Non-derivative financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely
payments of principal and interest

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and imerest, the
Group considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This incledes assessing whether the
financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the riming or amount of contraciual
cash flows such that it would not meet this condition, In making this assessment, the Group
considers:

* contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

s terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including vanable rate fearures;

# prepayment and extension featares; and

o ferms that limit the Group®s claim o cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse
features).

A prepavment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest eriterion 1f
the prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding, which may include reasonable addinonal compensanion for carly
termination of the contract. Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at a significant discount
or premium to its contractual par amount, a feature that permits or requires prepavment at an
amount that substantially represents the contractual par amount plus accrued (but unpaid)
contractual imterest (which may also include reasonable addinonal compensation for early
termination) is treated as consistent with this cnterion if the fair value of the prepayvment feature
is insignificant at initial recognition.

Non-derivative lnancial assets: Subsequent measorement and gains and losses
Finarncial assets ar amortised cost

Thesc assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, The
amortised cost 15 reduced by impairment losses, Interest income, foreign exchange omng and
losses and impairment are recogniscd in profit or loss, Any gain or loss on derecognition 15
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assess ar FVIPL

These asscis are subsequently measured at fr value, Net gans and losses, including any intercst
or dividend income, are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-derivative financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and
losses

Financial habilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FWTPL. A financial Lability
is classificd as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for trading or it is designated as such on initial
recognition. Financial habalitics at FYTPL are measured at faur value and net gains and losses,
including any mterest expense, are recogmsed i profit or loss. Directly attnbutable transachon
easts are recognised in profit or loss as ineurred.

Other financial labilities are mitially measured at fair value less directly anributable transaction
costs.  They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective mterest method.
Interest expense and forcign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss.
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(i) Derecognition
Financial assets

The Group derccognises a financial asset when:
* the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial assct expine; or
e it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash fows in a transaction in which either:
- substantially all of the nsks and rewards of ownership of the financial assct are transfiermed;
ar
- the Group neither transfors nor retains substantially all of the nisks and rewards of
ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset.

The Group enters into transactions wherchy it ransfiers asscis recognised in s statcment of
financial position, but retains cither all or subsiantially all of the risks and rewards of the
transferred asscts,

Financial liabilities
The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled, or expire. The Group also derecognises a financial liability when its weoms are modified
and the cash flows of the moedified Lability are substantially different, in which case a new
financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value.
On derecognibion of a financial liability, the difference between the carmying amount exiinguished
and the consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed) is
recognised in profit or loss,

{iv) Offsetting
Financial assets and financial labilities are offset and the net amount presented in the siatement
of financial position when, and only when, the Group currently has a legallv enforceable right to
set off the amounts and 11 intends either 1o settle them on a net basis or 1o realise the asset and
settle the liability simultancously,

(v} Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and fixed deposits from the date of acquisition
that are subjcct to an insignificant sk of changes in their fair value and are used by the Group in
the management of its shor-term commitments,

(i) Share capital
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares are classificd as equity. Incremental costs dircetly aunbutable to the issuc of

ordinary shares are recognised as a deduction from equity. [neome tax relating to ransaction costs of
an equity transaction is accounted for in accordance with FRS 12,
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(vii) Derivative financial instrumenis
Drerivasive financial instraements

Dierivatives are initially measured at fair valoe and any dircetly attributable transaction costs are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives are measured
ot fair value, and changes therein are generally recognised in profit or loss,

Preference share capital

The Group via its wholly owned subsidiary issued Redeemable Convertible Preference Shares
("RCPS"), which are classificd as financial labilitics, as these RCPSs bear non-discretionary
dividends and are redeemable in cash by the holders. Non-discretionary dividends thercon are
recognised as interest expense in profil or loss as accrued,

(viii) Intra-group financial guarantees in the separate linancial statements

Financial guarantces are financial instruments issucd by the Company that require the issuer to
make specified payments to reimburse the holder for the loss it incurs because a specified debtor
fails to meet payment when due in accordance with the onginal or modified terms of a debt
instrument,

Financial guarantees issued are initially measured at fair value. Subsequently, they are measured
at the higher of the loss allowance determined in accordance with FRS 109 and the amount
imitially recognised less, when appropnate, the cumulative amount of income recognised in
accordance with the pnnciples of FRS 115,
Expected eredit losses (ECLs) are a probability-weighted cstimate of credit losses. ECLs are
measured for financial guarantees issued as the expected payments to reimburse the holder less
any amounts that the Company expects o recover. Liabilities arising from financial guarantees
are included within *loan and bommowings”.

i4 Propenty, plant and equipment

(i) Recognition and measurement

Items of property. plant and cquipment are measurcd at cost, less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.

Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as
part of the equipment.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they
arg accounted for as scparate ems (major components) of property, plant and cquipment,

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in profit
or loss.
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Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing a component of an item of property, plant and cquipment is recognised in
the carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future cconomic benefits embodied within
the component will flow to the Group, and its cost can be measured reliably. The carmying amount
of the replaced component is derecognised. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property,
plant and equipment are recognised in profit or loss as incumed,

Depreciation

Depreciation is based on the cost of an asset less its residual value. Significant components of
individual asscts are asscssed and if 2 component has an wseful life that is different from the
remainder of that assct, that component is depreciated scparately.

Depreciation is recognised as an expense in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
cstimated uscful hives of cach component of an item of property, plant and cquipment.

Depreciation 1s not recognised on frechold land.

The estimated uscful lives for the current and comparative years arc as follows:

Building = 25 years
Computers and software = 3= 10 vears
Electrical and fittings = 1l years
Furniture and fittings = 3- 10 vears
Leaschold property = |3 =50 years
Machinery - 5 vyears
Motor vehicles - 3 -%vears
Office equipment = 3 - lyears
Renovation = 5 - 10 vears

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed an the end of each reporting
period and adjusted if appropriate.

Reclassification to investment property

When the use of a property changes from owner-occupicd to investment property, the property is
reclassified nccordingly at the carrying amount, at the date of ransfer,

Intangible assets and goodwill
Goodwill

Cioodwill that arises upon the acquisition of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets. For the
measurcment of goodwill at initial recognition, see note 3,11},

Subseignent measurement

Gioodwill 15 measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses,
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(i) Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Group and have finte uscful lives are measurcd
at cost less accumulated amontisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation
Amartisation 15 caloulated based on the cost of the asset, less its residual value,

Amontisation is recognised i profit or loss on a straight-line basis aver the estimated useful lives
of intangible asscts, other than goodwill, from the date that they arc available for use, The
cstimated useful lives for the current and comparative years are as follows:

s Customer relaonships 5 - 10 wears
*  Club membership 15 vears

Amaortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of cach reporting
period and adjusted if appropriate.

16 Investment property

Invesiment property compnses a portion of leaschold building that is held for lomg-term rental
vields and/or for capital appreciation. Investment property is initially recogmised at cost and
subsequently carricd at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impaimment losses.
Depreciation is caleulated vsing a straight-line method to allocate the depreciable amounts over
the estimated uscful lives of 40 vears. The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method
of investment property are reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate, at cach balance sheet date. The
cffects of any revision are included in profit or loss when the changes arise.

Cm disposal of an mvestment property, the difference between the disposal proceeds and the
carying ameunt is recognised in profit or loss.

7 Inventories

Inventorics are measured at the lower of cost and net reahisable value. The cost of inventorics s
based on the first=in first-out allocation method.

Work-in-progress and finished goods comprise cost of direct materials, direet labour and an
attributable promotion of manufacturing overheads based on normal operating capacity. These
costs are assigned on an allocation of dircct material and direct labour.

When the inventorics are sold. the carrying amount of those inventories is recognised as an
cxpense in the period in which the related revenoe is recognised.

The amount of any allowance for write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses
of inventones are recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or loss ocours. The
amount of any reversal of any allowance for write-down of inventories, arising from an increase
in net realisable value, is recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventones recogmised as an
cxpense in the period in which the reversal occurs,
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Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract 15, or contans, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the wse of an identified
assct for a peniod of time in exchange for consideration.

As a lessee

At commencement or on modification of a contract that contains a lease companent, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to cach lease component on the basis of its relative
stand-alone pnices. However, for the leases of property the Group has clected nol to separate non-
lease components and account for the lease and non-lease components as a single lease
component,

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date.
The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the imitial amount of the lease
liability adjusted for any lease pavments made at or before the commencement date.

The right-of-use asset 15 subscquently depreciated using the straight-line method from the
commencement date to the end of the lease term, unless the lease wransfers ownership of the
underlving asset to the Group by the end of the lease term or the cost of the right-of-use assct
reflects that the Group will exercise a purchase option. In that case the right-of-use asset will be
depreciated over the usctul life of the underlying assct, which is determined on the same basis as
those of property and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by
impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

The nght-of-use asset 15 subsequently stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impamment
losses.

The lease habality 15 imtially measured at the present value of the lease pavments that are not paid
at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate
cannot be readily determined, the Group's incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Group uses
its incremental borrowing rate as the discount raie.

The Group determines its incremental borrowing rate by obtaining interest rates from vanious
external financing sources based on the locaten of the entities which have the lease habilities.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise of fixed payments,
including n-substance fixed pavments.

The lease liability 15 measured ot amortised cost wsing the effective interest method. It s
remeasured when there is a change in future lease pavments arising from a change in an index or
rate, if there is a change in the Group's estimate of the amount expected to be pavable under a
residual value guarantec, if the Group changes its assessment of whether it will cxercise a
purchase, extension or ermination option or if there is a revised in-substance fixed lease payment.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or 15 recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset has been reduced o zero.
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The Group presents nght-of-use asscis that do not meet the definition of investment property in
‘right-of-use assets” and lease liabilities in “loans and borrowings” in the statement of financial
position,

Shari-term feases amd leasey of low-verlue asvely

The Group has elected not 1o recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for leases of low-
value asscts and short-term leases, including 1T equipment. The Group recognises the lease
payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease inception whether cach lease is a finance
lease or an operabing leasc.

To elassify each lease, the Group makes an overall assessment of whether the lease transfers
substantially all of the nsks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underdying asset. If this
is the case, then the lease is a finance lease; if not, then it is an operating lease. As part of this
asseasment, the Group considers certain indicators such as whether the lease is for the major part
of the economie life of the asset.

The Group recognises lease payments received from investment property under operating lease
as income on a straight-line basis over the lease term as part of *other income’.

Impairment
Non-derivative linancial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for ECLs on financial assets measured at amortised cost
and intra-group financial guarantee contracts (*FGC').

Loss allowances of the Group are measured on either of the following bases:

s | 2-month ECLs: these are ECLs that resull from default events that are possible within the 12
months after the reporting date (or for a shorter period iF the expected life of the instrument is
less than 12 months); or

o Lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expecied
life of a financial instrument or contract asset.

Simplified approach
The Group applics the simplified approach to provide for ECLs for all trade receivables. The

simplified approach requires the loss allowance to be measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs.

Creneval approach

The Group applics the general approach to provide for ECLs on all other financial instruments
and FGCs, Under the general approach, the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to 12-
month ECLs at initial recognition.
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At cach reporting date, the Group assesscs whether the credit nisk of a financial instrument has
inereased significantly since initial recognition. When credit risk has increased significantly since
imitial recognition, loss allowance is measured af an amount equal to lifetime ECLs,

When determining whether the credit nsk of o financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without undue eost or effort, This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Group's historical experience
and informed credit assessment and includes forward-leoking information.

If eredit risk has not increased significantly sinee initial recognition or if the eredit quality of the
financial instruments improves such that there 15 no longer a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to | 2-month ECLs.

The Group considers a financial assct to be in default when:

o the borrower is unlikely to pay its eredit obliganons to the Group in full, without recourse by
the Group to actions such as realising sceurity (if any is held), or
o the financial asset is more than 90 days past duc,

The Company considers a FGC 1o be in default when the debtor of the loan is unlikely to pay its
credit obligations to the creditor and the Company in full, without recourse by the Company to
actions such as realising security (if any is held).

The maximum period considercd when cstimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over
which the Growp 15 exposed 1o credit nsk.

Meusurement of ECLy

ECLs are probability-weighted estimates of eredit losses. Credit losses are measured at the present
value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to reegive). ECLs arc
discounted at the effective interest rate of the financial asset.

Credit-impuired financiol assers

At cach reporting date, the Group assesses whether financial asscts carnicd at amortised cost are
credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired” when one or more events that have a
detnimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have oceurred,

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data;

s significant financial difficulty of the debuor;

* abreach of contract such as a default or being more than 990 days past duc;

¢ the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Group on terms that the Group would not consider
otherwise;

* it is probable that the debtor will enter bankruptey or other financial reorganisation: or

¢ the disappcarance of an active market for a security because of financial difficultics.
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Presemiation of allowance for ECLs in the siatement of financial position

Loss allowances for financial asscts measured ot amortiscd cost are deducted from the gross
carrying amount of these assets.

Loss allowances for FGC are recognised as a fimancial liability to the extent that they exceed the
initial carrying amount of the FGC less the cumulated income recognised.

Write-afff

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the
cxtent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery,  This is generally the case when the Group
determines that the debtor docs not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient
cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the wnte-off, However, iinancial assets that are written
off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Group’s procedures
for recovery of amounts due.

Non-Minancial assets

The carryving amounis of the Group™s non-financial asseis, other than inveniories and deferred tax
assels, are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. For
goodwill, the recoverable amount is estimated each year at the same time. An impairment loss is
recognised if the carmving amount of an assct or its related cash-generating unit (CGU Y exceeds
s estimated recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGL is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less
costs of disposal. In assessing value in use, the esimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the rigks speeific to the asset or OGU. For the purpose of impairment testing,
psscts that connot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of asscts that
penerates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of
other assets or CGUs. For the purposes of goodwill impairment testing, CGUSs to which goodwill
has been allocated are aggrepated so that the level at which impairment testing is performed
reflects the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal reporting purposes, Goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated to groups of CGUs that are expected to benefit
from the synergics of the combination.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in respeet of
CGUs are allocated first o reduce the camrying amount of any goodwill allecated to the CGU
(group of CGUs), and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets in the CGU (group
of CGLUs) on a pro rafa basis,

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill 1s not reversed, In respect of other assets, impairment
losses recogmised in prior perniods are asscssed at each reporting date for any indications that the
loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change
in the cstimates used to determing the recoverable amount, An impairment loss is reversed only
io the extent that the asset’s carrving amount does not exceed the carryving amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation or amonisation, if no impairment loss had been
recognised.
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An impairment loss in respect of an associate 15 measurcd by comparing the recoverable amount
of the investment with its carrying amount in accordance with the requirements for non-financial
pssets, An impuirment loss is recogniscd i profit or loss, An impairment loss s reversed if there
has been a favourable change in the estimates used 1o determine the recoverable amount and only
to the extent that the recoverable amount increases.

Goodwill that forms part of the carrying amount of an investment in an associate is not recognised
separately, and therefore 15 not tested for impairment separately., Instead, the entire amount of the
investment in an associate is tested for impairment as a single asset when there is objective
gvidence that the investment in an associate may be impaired,

Employee benefits

Defined conribution plan

Obligations for contributions 1o defined contribution pension plans are recognised as an employee
benefit expense in profit or loss in the periods during which related services are rendered by
employees,

Short-term employee bemefins

Short=term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and arc expensed
as the related service 15 provided. A hability 15 recognised for the amount expected o be paid
under short-term cash bonus if' the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this
amount as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the obligation can be estimated
rehiably,

Untilized annoal leave

The equivalent cost of employees” entitlements 1o unutilised anmual leave as at the end of each
financial period is accrued for and recognised as an expense in profit or toss in the peried in which
the related employment services are rendered.

The Group has not made any provision for employee leave entitlement as the amounts are
insignificant.

Provigions

Provisions are determined by discounting the expected cash flows at a pre-tax rane that reflects
current market assessment of time value of money and the risks specific o the liability. The
unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance costs,

Revenue recognition

Sales of goods

Revenue from sale of goods in the ordinary course of business 15 recognised when the Group
satisfics a performance obligation (*PO) by transfernng control of a promised good or service to

the customer, The amount of revenue recognised is the amount of the transaction price allocated
to the satisfied PO,
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The rransaction price is allocated to cach PO i the contract on the basis of the relative stand-
alone selling prices of the promised goods or services. The individual standalone selling price of
a good that has mot previously been sold on a stand-alone basis, or has a highly variable sclling
price, is determined based on the residual portion of the transaction price afier allocating the
transaction price to goods with observable stand-alone selling prices. A discount or variable
consideration is allocated to one or more, but not all, of the performance obligations if it relates
specifically to those PO,

The transaction price 15 the amount of consideration in the contract to which the Group expects
to be cotitled in exchange for transfermng the promised poods, Consideration payable to a
customer is deducted from the transaction price if the Group does nol receive a separate
identifiable benefit from the customer.

Revenue from sales of goods are recogmised at a pomt i iime following the satisfaction of the
PO,

Finance cosis

The Group's finance costs include interest expense, inferest expense on preference shares issued
and classified as financial liabilities, and the fair value loss on derivative instruments,

Interest expense is recogmised using the effective mterest method.

The *effective interest rate” is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash pavments or
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to the gross camying amount of the
financial asset, or the amortised cost of the fimancial lability.

Income tax

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax, Current tax and deferred tax are recognised in
profit or loss ¢xcept to the extent that it relates to a busingss combination, or items recogniscd
directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

The Group has determined that interest and penalties related to income taxes, ineluding uneertain
tax treatments, do not meet the defimton of income taxes, and therefore accounted for them under
FRS 37 Provisions, Comtingernt Liabilities and Conringent Assets,

Current tax is the expected ax pavable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year,
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted ar the reponting date, and any adjustment to (ax
payable in respect of previous years, The amount of current tax payable or receivable is the best
estimate of the tax amount expected 1o be paid or received that reflects uncertainty related to
income taxes, if any. Current tax also includes any tax anising from dividends,

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if certain critera are met.
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Deferred tax 15 recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for txation purposes.
Deferred tax is not recogmised for;

o lemporary differences on the mitial recogmtion of assets or halalities in a transaction that is
not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss;

= pemporary differences related o investment in subsidiarics and associates to the extent that
the Group 15 able to contral the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that they will not reverse in the foresceable future; and

¢ axable iemporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill,

The measurement of deferred raxes refleets the tax consequences that would follew the manner in
which the Group expeets, at the reporting date, to recover or seitle the carrying amount of its agsets
and liabilities. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected 1o be applied w
temporary  differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Deferred tax asscis and hiabilitics arc offset only if certam criteria anc met.

Deferred tax assets are recogmised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which they can be used. Future taxable profits are determined based on the reversal of
relevant taxable temporary differences. If the amount of taxable temporary differences is
insufficient to recognise a deferred tax asset in full, then future taxable profits, adjusted for
reversals of existing temporary differences, are considercd, based on the business plans for the
Giroup. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that
it 15 no longer probable that the related tax benefit wall be realised; such reductions are reversed
when the probability of future taxable profits improves.

R B Eamings per share

The Group presents basic and diluted camings per share data for its ordinary shares. Basic
carmings per share is caleulated by dividing the profit or loss attnbutable to ordinary sharcholders
of the Company by the weighted-average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year,
adjusted for own shares held, Diluted camings per share is determined by adjusting the profit or
loss attributable to ordinary sharcholders and the weighted-average number of ordinary shares
outstanding, adjusted for own shares held, for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares,
which comprise convertible notes and share option granted 1o emplovee,

ile Segment reporting

An operating scgment is a component of the Group that cngagzes in business activitics from which
it may cam revenucs and incur cxpenses, including revenues and expenscs that relate to
transactions with any of the Group’s other components, All operating segments” operating results
are reviewed regularly by the Group's CEO (the chiel operating decision maker) to make
decisions about resources 1o be allocated to the segment and to assess its performance, and for
which discrete financial information 15 available,
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New standards and interpretations not adopted

A number of new accounting standards and amendments to standards are effective for annual
periods beginning after | April 2024 and earlier application is permitted; however, the Group has
not carly adopted the mew or amended accounting standards im prepanng these financial
siatements.

The Group does not expect the adoption of these standards, amendments and interpretations to
have a material impact on Group’s consolidated financial statements and the Company’s
statement of financial position cxcept for FRS 118 Presemtation and Disclosure in Financial
Starenemis.

FRS 118 will replace FRS | Presentation of Financial Statements and applics for annual reporting
perniods beginming on or after | Apnl 2027, The new standard introduces the following key new
requircments.

o The standard does not impact the Group’s net profit, but requires the Group to classify
income and expenses into one of the five categories in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, namely operating, investing, financing, discontinued operations and income tax, The
Giroup is also required 1o present specified totals and subtotals. The standard introduces two
newly defined subtotals, “Operating profit or loss™ and “Profit or loss before financing and
income taxes”,

¢ Management-defined performance measures (“MPMs™) are disclosed in a single note in the
consolidated financial statements.

*  Enhanced puidance is provided on the principles of aggregation and disappregation, which
focus on grouping items based on their shared characteristics in the consolidated financial
slatements,

»  The standard specifies “Operating profil or loss™ as the starting point in the consolidated
statement of cash flows when presenting operating cash flows under the indirect method, Tt
also climinates the existing options for presenting interest and dividends paid and received.

The Group is still assessing the impact of this new standard, particularly regarding the structure
of the Group's consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement of cash Mows and

the additional disclosures required for MPMs. The Group 15 also assessing the impact on how
information is grouped in the consolidated financial statements.
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Yeurr ended 31 Morch 2025

Officc Stafl residential Factory
MNote  building it Isublicting Tatal

Group Uss Uss Uss Uss
Cost
AL L April 2023 506,291 £1.296 445422 1,036,004
Additions 1210659 35,8349 153 450 370,398
Derccognition of right-of-use

assels (44,6011 ) - - (d4,601)
Exchange difference (. TOERY {3.499) (42.759) {52.96T)
At 31 March 2024 and

I April 2024 636, 050 113,636 559,153 1308839

Additions 227,943 - - 227943
Acquisition of subsidinries 25 230,331 = = 230.33]
Derecognition ol night-ol-use

assels {150,720 - (31.923) {182,643
Exelange differences 52.085 3,233 - 55,118
A3 March 2025 5689 | | 560 327,230 1,639, 788
Accamulated depreciation
ALl April 2023 170,584 68407 178,520 417511
Depreciation 185,376 17370 208,159 410,905
Derecognition ol nght-ol-use

assels (44,601 ) - - {44.601)
Exchange dillerence (7460 {3499 {2.309) {13.768)
AL 31 March 2024 and

I April 2024 ELIER. L £2.278 B3 ATO 770,047

Depreciation 293,797 17,920 111,523 423,240
Derecognition of right-of-use

assels {150.468) % (32.173) (182.643)
Exclange differences 9,121 3.233 = 62,354
AL 3] March 2025 506349 103,431 463,218 1,072,908
Carrying amounts
AL April 2023 335,707 12,849 24,12 618498
A3 March 2024 332151 31358 175283 538792
AL 31 March 2025 459 3400 | 5.438 64,0012 566,790

F32s
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Yeurr ended 31 Morch 2025

Stall
Office residential
building it Total
Company LSS LSS USss
Cost
At I April 2023 141 480 ELRVRY 171,556
Additions - 35,839 15839
At 31 March 2024, 1 April 2024 and
31 March 2025 141,480 #5015 207 395
Accumulated depreciation
At | Apnil 2023 23,580 17,186 40,766
Depreciation 47,160 17,370 64,530
At 31 March 2024 and 1 April 2024 70,740 34,556 105,296
Depreciation 47,160 [7.919 65 079
At 31 March 2025 117,500 32475 170,375
Carrving amounts
At | April 2023 117,900 | 2890 1300, 740
At 31 March 2024 70,740 31,359 1012 05%
At 31 March 2025 23,580 [ 3,440 J7,020
Investment property
Group and
Note  Company
Uss
Cost
At | April 2023, 31 March 2024 and | April 2024 -
Reclassification from property, plant and equipment 4 1119, 00
At 31 March 2025 1,119,050
Accomulated depreciation
At I Apnl 2023, 31 March 2024 and | Apnl 2024 -
Reclassification from property, plant and ecquipment 4 16,320
At 31 March 2025 16,320
Carrving amounis
At 1 Aprl 2023 and 31 March 2024 =
At 31 March 2025 1,102,779

Asar 31 March 2025, investment property of the Group with carrying amount of USS1, 102,779
(2024: USENil) is pledged as seeurity to secure bank loan (Mote 16),

Amounts recognised in profit or loss

Rental income recognised by the Group during 2025 was USS31 846 (2024; USENIl) and was
included in *Other income’,

F529
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Yeurr ended 31 Morch 2025

Investment in subsidiaries

Company

MNote 025 2024

LSS UsSs
Unguoted shares, at cost 17,647,058 I, 564, 106
Additional capital injections {a) - 974,300
Additions B 16,543 018,652
23,663 601 17,647,058
Impairment loss (3] (28615800 (2,342,359

Write-off of allowance for impairment c) (2,342,359

()

(b}

(eh

18,459,662 15,304,699

In prior wear, the Company injected additional capital of UUSS464,300 and LSS5 10,000
mto FT Omni-Plus System and PT Sentosa Bimia respectively. There had been no change
in sharcholding of the two subsidiaries which were wholly-owned by the Company.

The movements in allowanee for impairment loss in respeet of investments in subsidiaries
during the year arc as follows;

Company
025 2024
LSS Uss
At the beginning of the Anancial year 2342 359 -
Impairment loss 2861 580 2,342 359
Write-off of allowance for impairment (2,342,359 -
At the end of the financial year 2861 580 2,342 359

In the curment year, management identificd that there were impairment indicators with
certain investments in subsidiarics. Management has asscssed that the recoverable
amounts from these subsidianes to be lower than carrving amounts of the cost of
investments and accordingly, the Company recognised an impairment loss of
USS2 861,580 (2024: USS2,342 359) in profit or loss. The recoverable amounts were
determined based on fair value less cost o sell.

[n the current year, impairment loss previously recognised amounting to LSS2 342,359
(2024: USSMNil) in relating to a subsidiary, was writicn off as the subsidiary was
liguidated.

F530
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Yearr ended 31 March 2025

Details of sigmficant subsidiancs are as follows:

Effective
pereentage of
Country of Principal equity hebd by
MName of subsidiaries incorporation activities the Company
nzs 4
Y Ve
Mihon Pigment Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia Processing and ({iH I
compounding of
thermaoplastics
(PS5 Technologies Sdn. Bhd Malaysia Greneral trader of plaste 100 1K)
comgounds
Omme-Plus System Shanghai Lomited The Peoples” General trader of plastic 100 10
Republic of China compounds
FT. Ommi Plus System Indonesia Ceneral trder of plaste 100 [IL}]
compounds
Cepen Trading Sdn, Bhd. Malavsia General trader of plastie 100 100
compounds
O Plus System Plulippines Ine, Plulippanes Processing and | (h 10K}
comparunding of
thermoplastics
I Chemieals Pre. Lid Singapsre Wholesale of chemucals 100 10K}
amd chemical products
I-FTZ Trade Philippines. Inc. Philippines General trader of plastic 100 100
compounds
Alpha Chemie Pre. Lid.! Singapore General trader of plastic ™ - 100
compounds
PT. Sentosa Kimia Indonesia General trader of plastic 100 100
compounds
Kvoet 105 Malaysm Sdn, Bhal, {formerly Malaysia Gieneral trader of plastic 100 10K}
koo as Togs Polymer Sdn. Bhd ) compounds
Omni-Plus Systemn Japan Corpasration Japan Consulting’ General H00 100
trader of plastic
compotinds
Chman Plus Systean ( Thinland) Co., Lud Thanland General tiader of plastie 100 1K)
comprounds
Ko Denka (5) e Lul Singapsre General trder of plastie 100 G
compounds
Chman Developinent Sdn Blad Malaysia General trder of plastie 100 99 998
compounds
ODT lovestments Pre Lid Singapsire Investment holdimyg 1) 1)
Held through sihsidiaries
1P Chemicals Viemam Co,, Lid. Wictnam Distribution of mdustrinl 100 1040
colorants specialty
chemicals
13 Shenzhen Technology Limited The Peoples”  General trader of plastic 100 1D
Repulbhc of China compounds
b The subwicfiary was Nguidated during the enrvent vear
F531
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Yeurr ended 31 Morch 2025

Details of sigmificant subsidiarics are as follows (continued):

Effcetive
perceniage of
Country of Principal cquity held by
Name of subsidiaries incarporation activities ihe Company
s 024
e e
Held through suihsidiaries
T Kyoei Denki Trading Indonesia Indonesia Gieneral irader of plastic 106 {ICY]
compounds
K}'Dl'.“j DS India P, Lid Singapore General trader of plastic 4] -
o compounds
KD Advanced Muterinls, Ine Unated Siates General irnder of plastic 1080 10K
compounds
Ecopoly Global {(Shangho) Co., Lid The Peoples” General trder of plastic 90 -
{formerly known as Plastech Repubslic of China compounds
{Shanghai) Co., Lidy''
Held thronugh sabsidiaries
Intemational Matenal Supplier Co., Taiwan Cieneral irader of plastic | Ok L
Ll compounids
Held divectly by Intermarionad Materiol Supplier Co,, Lt
Formmne Tone Limited Samiodan CGieneral trader of plastic 100 -
comprounds
Unrversal Glory Limited Samoan General wrder of plastne 100 -
compounds
Kunshan IM% Co. Lid The Peoples’ General trader of plastic 1040 -
Republic of China compounds
Miamen High Tech Material Co. Lid The Peoples” Cieneral trader of plastic 100 -
Republic of China comprounds

New aogrisitions ditring the veur (Nove 25)
The dizefasure on e wovemen! of nov-confrolling fnferest ix mof presented ax i 5 inanaterial foe the
Sinancial statements,

¥

Investment in joint operation

Company
25 2024
USS Uss
Jaint operation 24,223 24,223

F532
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Details of significant joint arrangement are as follows:

Efective
percentage of
Country of Principal equity held by
Name of Company incorporation activities the Company
2025 024
% %

Ommni-Plus System Plastics Thailand Impaort and export 39 39
Co., Lid plastics

Joint operation

The Company is a 39% (2024: 39%) partner in Omni-Plus Svstem Plastics Co., Lid, a joint
arrangement formed with Thanasan Maiscaumso and Yanee Yuthakaichaisri,

Investment in associates

Group Company
2025 24 025 2024
LSS LSS LISS L/Ss
Interest in associates 1,962 6494 | 962,694 1541074 1541074
Share of results in associnles (562 B} 459 783 - -

1,399 84 2422477 | 841,074 1,541,074

Details of significant associate companics arc as follows:

Effective
percentage of
Country of Principal equity held by
Name of Company incorporation activities the Company
2025 2024
% %5
Small World Accelerator Pie, Lid. Singapore Investment holding 48 48
("SWAT) company
R&P Technologies Pre. Lid. Singapore Produce and sales of 40 40
(*RPT") polymer compounds
F533
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Yeurr ended 31 Morch 2025

The following summarnises the financial informaton of cach of the Group®s matenal associate
based on the respective financial statements prepared in accordanee with FRS.

RPT SWA Total
LSS LSS Uss
2025
Revenue 6,396,712 -
Loss for the vear/Total Comprehensive
income (64,163) {299 424)
Mon-current assets 2284229 1060, 5049
Current asseis 6,554 846 20,160
MNon-current labilitics (1033411) -
Current liabilities (4.771,645) (642, T6d1)
Net assels 3.034,019 IRT 0
Group's interest in net assets of investees at
beginning of the vear | 939 064 483413 2422477
Giroup’s share of:
= Loss for the year (654, 163) (299 524) (593 95T
- O] - Foreign currency translation difference (11,293) 2607 2R, 6EG)
- Total comprehensive income (725.456) (2907.217)  (1.022,673)
Carrving amount of interest in investees at
end of the vear 1,213 608 | &6, 196 1,399 804
RPT SWA Total
Uss LSS Uss
2024
Revenue 075,705 -
Profit{loss) for the year Total
Comprehensive income 40,672 (9.932)
Mon-current assets 2080450 832 697
Current asscis 4934012 126,765
Mon-current liabilities (15.762) -
Current liabilities (2, 150,041) {152,352)
Met assels 4 847 659 1,007,110
Group's interest in net assets of investees at
beginning of the year [ 002,796 492 h35 1.495 434
Group’s share of;
- Profiv{Loss) for the vear 316,268 (4,767) 331,501
- OCI - Foreign currency translation difference - (4.458) (4,458)
= Total comprehensive income 336,268 (9,225) 327,043
Group's contnibution during the vear 6, (0 - 600,000
Carrving amount of interest in investees at
end of the vear | 9349 064 453,413 2422477
F534
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Yeurr ended 31 Morch 2025

Intangible assets and goodwill

Club Customer
Goodwill  membership  Trademark  relationships Tual

Group Note 8% Uss Uss Uss Uss
Cost
At 1 April 2023 and 31 March

224 2,023, T - - 4,832 60 6,856,399
Acquasitions of subsidinnes 25 2,01 437 - - 2,315,830 3217267
Aubdations — 137,777 2947 - 140724
A1 31 Morch 2025 4,925,237 137.777 2947 7048439 12.214.390
Accumulated amortisation and

impairment losses
AL April 2023 A - = 2,000,214 2109319
Amirtisalson - - - 483,206 483 261
At 31 March 2024 = - — J5U3 R0 3593 430
AL April 2024 - - - 2,502 481 2,592 4%0
ATHsrtisntion i 729 & 044,426 7216
Impairment losses 18 19 50 - - — 119 500
A1 31 Murch 2025 | 819,50 724 il 3530, 0N 5,150,196
Carrving amounts
At 1 Apnl 2023 2023 T - — 2,723 1) 4,747,180
Al 31 March 2024 2023 T - - Is-m.l!‘} -I.I(Gi‘.'l‘:l‘ﬂ
Al 31 March 2025 3, 105,727 1 370K 2 BEh 3. 6dFL 533 6, K55.194

Clul
memhership
Company Uss
Cust
Al April 2023, | April 2024 and 31 March 2024 -
Additions 137,777
Al 31 March 2025 137,777
Accomulated amortisation
Acl April 2023, | Apnil 2024 and 31 March 2024 =
Amortisation 729
AL 31 March 2025 720
Carrying amounts
Avl April 2023 ==
At 31 March 2024 -
At 31 March 2025 [ 37048
Amaortisation
The pmortisation of other intangible assets is included in “other operating expenses”,
F535
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Impairment testing for OGS containing goodwill

For the purposcs of impairment testing, goodwill has been allocated to the Group's CGlUs
(operating divisions) as follows:

25 2024
LIS% L'ss
Carrying amounts
P Chemicals Group 694,434 (904,434
Cepco Trading Sdn. Bhd. and Tags Polymer Sdn. Bhd,

(Collectively, as Cepea + Tags) = 992 686
PT Sentosa Kimia = 336,670
Intemational Material Supplier Co., Lid 1E61,541 -
Omni Development Sdn, Bhd, - -
Ecopoly Global {Shanghai) Co,, Lid 549,752 -

3,105,727 2023, 750

As at 31 March 2025, management has assessed there were impairment indicators for certain
CGUs for which goodwill has been allocated.

The recoverable amounts of these CGUs were based on its value inuse, determined by discounting
the pre-tax future cash flows wo be generated from the continuing use of the CGLUL

Key assumptions used in the estimation of value in use were as follows:

Group
m2s 2024
Ve Y
Forecasted revenue growth rates (average of next five years) 6.1 - 169 11.5-13.7
Forecasted gross profit margin (average of next five yvears) 58-75 58=102
Discount rates 10.0—12.0 11.0-22.6
Terminal growth rates 25 2.1-25

The revenue growth rates were forecasted based on historical S-years growth rtes (2024: mking
into account the cstimated sales order book for the next 1 vear and the forecasted sales for the
following next four years. 1t was assumed that sales price would grow at a constant margin above
forceast inflation over the next five yoars),

The discount rate was a pre-tax measure based on the rate of 10-year government bonds issued by
the govermment in the relevant countries where the entities are located and in the same currency as
the cash flows, adjusted for a risk premium to reflect both the increased risk of investing in cquitics
generally and the systematic risk of the specific CGL.

A long-term terminal growth rate into perpetuity has been determined as the long-term inflation
rates and nominal GDP growth for the countrics in which the CGU operates.

As at 31 March 2025, the Group has recorded an aggregated impairment loss of LISS1819.500
(2024: LISSMl) for cortain CGUs and these were included in “other operating expenses” in profit or
loss.

F536
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Yeurr ended 31 Morch 2025

Assels Liabilities

2025 2024 2025 2024

LSS LSS LSS Lss
Group
Receivables (93031 (6310) - -
Inventories (144 476) (134.495) - -
Plant and ¢cquipment - - 240,883 316,558
Provision {83 934} (75377) - -
Employee benefits (39547 (42,633) = =
Tax losses carmy-forwards (1,694 283) (287.65T) - -
Intangible assets - - G01,781 241,592
Other items (65, 168) (H7.944) - -
Deferred tax (asscis)/liabilitics (2,120,439 (634, 416) 542 6hd B8 150
Set-off of tax 100, %78 177,245 {100 2TR) (177,245)
Net deferred tax

{asscis)habilities (2,009.3561) (4571713 741,786 430,905
Assets Liabilities

2025 024 2025 1024

LI5S LSS Ls% LSS
Company
Plant and equipment - - 97.630 97,630
Provision - - #0) (8G HO(H
liventones (35,148} (38, 148} - -
Deferred 1ax (assets)liabilities (3%,148) (38,14%) 177,719 177,719
Set-off of tax 35,148 3R, 148 (38, 148) {38, 148)
Met deferred tax

(assets)Tiabilitics - — 139571 139,571

Movements in deferred tax (asseispliabilines during the year are as follows:

Recognised in
statement of
Ad comprehensive
1 April income
2023 (Note 22)
LSS USs
Group
Reccivables - 16,527
Inventories { 106, 289) (35,742)
Plant and cquipment 264,151 00,767
Intangible assets 367 004 (75,502)
Pravision (33,163} (44,315)
Employee benefit (21,349) (23 ,288)
Tax losses carry-forward {135,168) (157,051)
Other items {172.482) 811,570
162,794 (2] IEE)

178/385

At
Exchange 31 March
dilference 2024
LSS Uss
n7 {6,310
71,536 (134,495)
(H.3600) 316,558
= 291,592
2,101 {75.377)
2,004 {42,633)
4,562 (287.657)
R {87.944)
20258 {26,266)
F537
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Inventories

Mant and cquipment
Intangible assets
Provision

Employee benefit

Tax losses carry-forward
Other items

Company

Inventorics
Plant and equipment
Provision

Company

Plant and equipment
Pravision
Inventorics
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Recognised in
statement of  Acquired in

At comprehensive  business At
1 April income  combinations Exchange 31 March
2024 (Mote 22) (Note 25)  difference 2025
LSS LSS Uss Uss LSS
(6,310] (HE,662) - 1,941 (93,031)
(134 405) 46,607 45346)  (11,242) (144.476)
316,558 (93,352) - 17,707 240,883
291,592 (168, 135) 478,324 61,781
{(75.37T) (7.326) - (1,231 (R3934)
(42,633} 1,362 - 1,724 {39.547)
{287.657) (870) (1427,036) 21,280 (1,694,283
(R7.944) 20429 {2.172) (4481} (65,168)
(26, 266) (280.977) (U, 2300 25,698 (1.277.775)
Recognised in
At statement of At
1 April comprehensive 31 March
2023 income 2024
Uss LSS Uss
- (38, 148) (38,14%)
139,571 {41,941} 97,630
- Bl IRY iR
| 39,571 - 139571
Recognised in
At statement of At
1 April comprehensive 31 March
2024 income 2025
LSS LSS Uss
97 630 - Q7 630
80,089 = £0,089
(38, 148) = (38,14%)
139, 571 - 139,571
F534
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Yeurr ended 31 Morch 2025

Inventories
Group Company
Note 2025 2024 1025 2024
Uss Uss LSS LSS
Raw matenials 2400 826 2615075 - -
Finished goods 47,785,122 40348417 232070113 19,726,041

50185948 42063492 23207113 149,726,041
Less: Allowance for obsolete

inventorics
Balance brought forward (4.847.275) (4.153436) (2.868323) (2.643.925)
Allowance made for the

financial yvear 21 (316498  (1.105316) - (224 398)
Allowance reversed 21 2. 280 805 AT IR 1,170,533 -
Exchange differcnees (6,697) 40,286 - -
Balance carricd forward (2 8R9.665) (48472750 (1697 THN  (2.868323)

47296283 38116217 21,509323 16,857 718

Duning the year, inventories of USS319. 261,660 (2024; USS267_567,376) were recognised as an
expense during the vear and included in “cost of sales”.

Allowance of USS316,498 (2024 USSLI05.316) was recognised during the year as these

inventories were slow moving, USS2 280,805 (2024: USS371,191) of the allowance was reversed
as the inventories were subsequently sold and was included in the profit or loss.

Trade and other receivables

Group Company
2025 2024 2025 2024
L'ss Uss LSS LSS
Trade receivables:
- Third partics BOO62.0TH  6RIGDTOL 35126658 43405357
- Related companics 524,743 189742 21955668  |84952475

0586813 68559443 57082326 62357832
Less: Allowance for doubeful
receivables (1467.002)  (582,338) (5303031 (530.303)
To 19811 AT7O77105 56552023 A1,827.520

Oither receivables 153 050 HUE, 764 - 5,048
Interest receivables 64,119 5,893 345061 65 893
Cost of recharges 16,208 SHY14 4 455 21,063
Amounts due from subsidiarics

(non-trade) = -~ 10421286 3,693,449
Amounts due from related

companics (non-trade) 952,882 915,838 1,561,955 1,501,335
Deposits 345,758 243 597 116,315 113,760
Less: Allowance for doubeful

receivables (non-trade) (2.777) - -

BO649.060 69960011  69001,125  67,228.977

F539
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Group Company

2025 2024 025 2024

USss USS LSS LSS
Tax recoverable 997 151 H53,500 - -
GST and VAT receivables 1,602 445 G, 122 AN i
Prepayments 1,182,893 560,794 345,628 350218
Prepaid tax 684 819 T42.642 - -
Advances made to suppliers 1,445,442 B1086 321.781 46594

86,561 810 73 194155 69676952 67631789

Trade and other receivables:

- Mon-current 673 937 732,930 - -

= Current RS BETETY  T24601,225 69676952 67631789
B6,561,810 73,194,155 69676452 67631789

Amerunis due from subsidiaries and related companies {nen-irade)

Mon-trade amounts due from subsidiaries and related companics are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

Cash and cash equivalents

Group Company
2025 2024 2028 2024
Uss LSS LSS LSS
Cash in hand 6,530 5,982 - -
Cash at bank 42462255 46,107,117 17622069 34,484,142
Fixed deposits 25,707,748 20892691 21892856 18956650

Cash and cash equivalents in the
statemenis of financial position 68,176,533 67,005,790 39514925 53 440,792

Fixed deposits {pledged) (4.555978) (3.710425) (3.356908) (3.221.908)
Cash and cash equivalents in the
statement of cash flows 63,620,555 63295365 36058017 50,218 584

Fixed deposits cam intercst of 1,50% to 4,900 (2024: 1.75% 1o 5.27%) per annum and are used
as collateral for banking faciliies which is subject to restrictions imposed by the lenders (Note
16},
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Capital and reserves

Share capatal

CGroup and Company
025 025 024 2024
Number of Number of
shares Uss shares LSS
Fully paid ordinary shares
with no par value:
At | Aprl and 31 March 21,057 844 26,073,548 21,057 844 26,073,548

All shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets. All shares issued are fully
paid, with no par value.

Ordinary slhares

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time, and
arc entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the Company.

Fareign currency franslation reserve

The forcign currency translation reserve comprises all foreign currency differences arising from
the tramslation of the financial statements of forcign operations.

Dividends
The following exempt (one-tier) dividends were declared and paid by the Group and Company:

For the year ended 31 March
Group and Company

025 2024
LSS Uss
Paid to the owners of the Company
First interim (ong-tier) dividend for USS0.04 per qualifying
ordinary share (2024 LIS50.04) I 893,206 1,895 206
Second interim (one-tier) dividend for USS0.18 per
qualifying ordinary share (2024: USS0.15) 3790412 3158677

5,685,618 5,053,883

F541
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Loans and borrowings

Group Company
2025 024 025 024
Uss LSS LSS LSS
Non-curreni liabilities
Secured bank loans 15201 451 11,545,603 4,620,612 1.162 365
Redeemable convertible
preference shares 6,009,502 - - -
Lease liabilitics 220 880 165,144 37,171

22,331,833 11,710,747 4620612 1,199,536

Current liabilities

Secured bank loans 2,126,922 2685278 1637 088 2,070,632
Leasc liabilitics 341,790 33T HI6 anamn 65,139
Trust receipts and bills

payable 62,925,084 56,494,177 236,080 44689917

65,393,796  59.517,271 37911040 46825 688

Total liabilities #7,725,629 71,228,018 42,531,652 48,025,224

Terms and deht repayment schedule

Terms and conditions of outstanding loans and borrowangs arc as follows:

s 024
Sominal
Inbewest Year al Face Carryimg Faee Carrving
Curremcy rate mnturiry value anmnt value Anwint
%a LSS Us% Uss Uss

Ciroup
Secured bank loan SGD DONPS 6 0% 2024 - 2026 62000620 GIMLAI9 A IRGEEE FE3gEm
Secured bank lean UIsn §20% 025 - - 275,144 275,144
Secured bank loan MYR PP 468t 20312040 1103TTA4 DLGT44 10TTLI4T 10T 49
Redeermable convertyhle

preference shares Iy [ 02 THMART b, 50T - -
Lcasc linbdlfies MYR LA i 3 04% 2024 - 2025 45, K 0574 KBRS Th, 139
Lease liabilities FHP LRI 2T 2023 T T1,627 51504 FESE RN
Lease lmbalsties DR ol 0243020 45207 31347 61,754 pati o h]
|Lease linbilties VNI 23T 20262027 111,558 {8 R0 42792 31,003
Lewse labilities CNY I e 230% 20252027 ERTRE1L 130,240 - -
Lewse lmbalnies G0 23% H2s 37227 71T 102682 a2 3
Lease liabalnies NI | A40% 26 RER L] 57,7658 - -
Trust receipts and bills

payahbs LIS G.A4% 0o 101 2% 2% 45461710 45461719 SLOULE4S 51093548
Trust recetpis and bills

payabls MY 446% 1i» 5.30% 28 = = S02.359 50,354
Trust receipts and hills

rayubbe {81 0% 10 $.58% Hi2% T 253270 2 R0R04D  2BOZAM9
Trust receipts and bills

payabls EUK S3Pami 4% 25 KRG LS LR LR fbll, 354
Trust receipts and hills

payable CNY 4.605% 25 TAEEES TGRS 125912 225012
Trust receipts and bills

payable NI L% 5T 2025 TORSID  70R5509 - -
Trust receipts and bills

payabibe 111 4.75% 2% 218863 1% 565 121953 122053
Tukal imberest-bhearing

liahilities AR, T TR E7,735.629 '.'IEM-.?H- ‘I'IEH:.-I}IK
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The secured bank loans of the Growp are sccured over the building and leaschold propertics with
carrving amounts of USS11,175,374 (2024: USSE 317,456 ) (Mote 4), invesiment property with
carrying amount of US$1, 102,779 (2024: USSNil) (Mote 6).

Redeemable convertible preference shares
Group
2025
Uss

Proceeds from issuance of redeemable convertible preference sharnes 6,681,304
Foreign exchange differences 228198
Carrying amount at 31 March 2025 6.909_502

In the current year, 10,420 redeemable convertible preference shares ("RCPS™) were issued o
Development Bank of Japan Inc and Tokye Century Leasing (Singapore) Pre Lid by QDT
Investments Pre Lid, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group, at JPY 100,000 per share (2024:
IPY Nil), which were fully paid. The Group is obliged to pay halders of these RCPS, an annual
dividend of 6, 3% of the proceeds on 31 May of each financial year until and meluding on maturity.
RCPS do not camry the right o vobe.

Trust receipts and bills pavable are secured by a pledge of fixed deposits (Note 14) and corporate
guarantees provided by the Company which bears interest rates ranging from 2200 (o 10012%

(2024 1.75% 1o 5,27%) per annum,
1n2s 4
Mombnal
interest Year af Faoe Carryimg Fnce Carrying
[‘ll‘l’l‘ﬁ{} rabe ﬁl'll‘“, wvalar mmssind value ol
% 5% 5% S8 USS
Company
Secimed bank loan 260 2AMFs i KOG 2025 -204% A25TTOD  &25TO0 2057 RS3 2957853
Secured bank loan USEy B55% 125 - - 275,144 275 144
Trust receipts and bills
paymble LET ] B2E d T.06% 1025 FEIFTRD  362IGTHD HGE0T 44680017
Lease habalnties B0 5215% m2s 31227 IT17T 102 A8 02,3 14}
Total istorest hoarmg
liahilitics ALSILT0T 42531657  JHOI5.506  dROZSII
— — T
F543
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Reconciliation of mevements of Nahilities to cash flows arising from financing activities

Linbilitics
Redevmahle
converiihle
Liams il Lense preforence
bhorrowings  Imterest payahble limhilities whaires Tatal
5% 5% I'ss %% Uss
Halamce af 1 April 2003 65,740 103 TI2 A% 671,722 - 67,194,281
“hamges from Mnancing cash Rows
aceedh From lnms and horpowmpgs 163,064 TOR - - - 163 e T
of loans and bomowings (VAT 13204 - - - {157.131.040
e of lease Habibitaes - - (03 22:4) - (403 224
lerest paid = (4,345 B01) (14.681) = (4,500 484
Total changes from financing cash -
flow: 5,932 6 {4,345 801} (417.907T) (NI
Eect From changes in forckgn -
exchange mie (FT1N - 17.554 0, 1 5%
i biher changes
Puw benses - - 216,508 - 206,
finlerest expense = 4.411,141 14,653 - 4 425 R34
(Takal linhility -relajed silor changes - 4,411,141 21,591 - 4 el 732
Halamce mt 31 March 2024 T TS, 058 E5T, 79 $02, Wb - T35 814
Halamee mt 1 April 2024 THLT15,058 BT, 796 S0, a T8 R4
{hampes from finnncing oash fons
Procesds From boans asd bormwmps LR ER L - - - 206 353,635
Frrocceds from isumnoe of redeenable
comvertible preference shares - - - 0651504 6681 304
ymaend of losas and borowings (220 R 2T - - - (220 088 92
g of bease Bahilines - - (416,520) - {416,520
lerest pai B {5,718 T45) {1%,53%) m {5 754 283
utal changes lrm Mnancing cash
s (4.505.287) (5, 735,7451 [435.05%) Al LM (34.THG
Eifect from changes in foreign
exchange e 1,014, 0¥ - B.9T9 118 198 1,351,273
ther changes
dew bemses - - 133 = Rl K]
Acquasition of sabsidianies (Mote 15) 12,919,590 - 239308 - 13,158 ROE
lerest expense - 5.515 688 18,538 - 5,834 226
uital lahility -relaied oiber champes 13,979,550 5815 688 485,788 - 123 06T
Ralance at 51 March 2023 153,457 917,719 3626 1,000, 502 HH 308
F544
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Trade and other payables

Group Company
2025 2024 2025 2024
Uss USs USs Uss
Trade payables:
= Third pariics 42,413 04y 30,736,531 16,758 0458 18,713,584
= Related companies 4,281,321 13 864 365 5,306,215 8093072
46,694 3T0 44, W} B 22064 263 26 806, 6536
Other payables 1,980 884 560 448 157,844 175,761
Interest payvable 217,139 837,796 347515 603,961
Accruals 1,215 485 677021 SR0.343 369,748
Accruals for staff bonus 1,721,142 |90, 417 959 774 1145411
Refund liabilities 5,153 638 5,506,520 4430724 4,984 268

ST692258  S4.177,107 28540463 34085305

Advances received from
CuslOMmers 20497 539 653,320 | 18939 103,436
59 789 797 54.830427 28,659.402 34,189 241

Trade and other pavables:

- Non-current 195 233 203 R4% - -

= Current 59 594 564 34,626,579 28 639 402 34189241
50789797 $4.830427 28659402 34,189.24]

Revenue

Revenue represents invoiced sales after allowance for trade discounts.

The following tables provide information about the namre and timing of the sansfaction of
performance obligations in contracts with customers, including significant payment terms, and
the related revenue recogmnon policies:

MNature of goods or services | The Group manufactures and trades in resin, chips and other}
related accessorics.,

When revenue is recognised | The Group recognises revenue at the peint in ime when the
promised goods is transfemed 1o the customers.

Signilicant payment terms Payment is usually due 30 1o 90 davs after delivery.
Obligations for returns and | Trade discounts are given to certain customers when agreed
refonds, if any sales volume have been met. The Group recognises refund
liabilitics wnder “Trade and other payables” for the made
discounis given (o customers,

Obligations lor warranties | There s no waranty provided for its produets to their
Customers,
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Revenue from contracts with customers 15 disaggregated by primary geographical markets as

follows:
Group

025 2024

LSS Uss
Primary geographical markets
Southeast Asia 263 168313 251,163,642
Rest of Asia 105,937,777 50,589 853
Amgericas 2,203 894 TA00011
Oither countrics 276,065 703,670

FTLSR6.049  310.157.176

Other income
Group
025 2024
LISs LSS
Commission revenue Ko, HU5 6 Bs
Exchange gain, not 624,522 -
Government grant and credits 105,697 29 533
Ciain on disposal of property, plant and cquipment - 138 E,001
Interest income 1,176 803 36l 648
Reversal of contingent consideration - 183007
Rental income from investment property 31,846 =
Scrap fee income 53,734 37,395
Serviee foe and commission of machinerics - 2,245,070
Write-back of allowance for obsolele inventories, net 1 964,307 -
Rescarch and development service income | 0 O -
Insurance claims 132,161 -
Oithers 386,488 267,330
5,562 543 4570114
Finance costs
Group
2025 2024
LISs LSS
Trust receipl inlerest 4,662 320 3816177
Term loan interest T94 913 592 328
Interests on RCPS classified as financial habilities 358,465 -
Lease liabilities interesi |%,538 | 4,683
Bank charges - 1,294
Fair value loss on derivative finangial instruments 33000110 6,420

6,164,337 4,488,902
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Profit before tax

The following items have been included in artiving at profit before tax:

Group
Mote 025 2024
LSS USS
Audit fees paid 1o
- auditors of the Company and ather firms affiliated
with KPMG Intermational Limited 395919 343 540
- other auditors 57,284 52,297
Mon-audit foe paid 1o
- auditors of the Company and ather firms affiliated
with KPMG International Limited 107 447 B2 466
Allowance made for obsalete inveniones 12 36 4us 1,105,316
Reversal of allowance for obsolete inventorics 12 (2,280, 805) (371,191)
(1,964, 307) 734,125
Consumable equipment 26,086 38,255
Property, plant and equipment written off 3,305 113
Inventory writien off{ back) 15,851 {8.564)
Amaortisation of intangible assets 10 247,216 483,261
Depreciation of property, plant and cquipment 4 188519 1,221,177
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 5 413,240 410,905
Employee compensation
- Salaries and bonus 8,219,123 6,222 %21
- CPF contribution 755,532 IERL
- Levy and SDF | 16,942 105911
Impairment loss on receivables 27 T46. 588 584,155
Exchange loss, net — 1,584,040
Tax expense
Mote Group
2025 024
Uss LSS
Current tax expense
Current year 4,170,869 2,114,979
Change in concessionary tax rate” - 2, MM, 186
Changes in estimates related 1o prior vears [ 68, 163 (140,297)

4,340,032 3,978, 868

Deferved tax expense

Ongimation and reversal of wmporary differences (310,405) (77.885)
Change in unrecognised emporary differences 29,428 (123,203)
11 {280, 977) (201,088)

4,059,055 3,777,780
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Profit before tax
Add: Share of results in equity-accounted investees
Profit before share of results of associates and tax
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(2024 17%)

Effect of tax rates in forcign jurisdictions

Income not taxable for tax purposcs

Expenses not deducnble for tax purposcs

Tax exemplions

Current year losses which no deferred 1ax asset is
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Group
2025 1024
USS Uss

20,704,347 14,269,324
903,987 (331,501)

21,698,334 13,037,823

1,688,716 2,368,430

00 487 21,128
(362,124) (872,079)
485,923 351,274
{22.321) (348,379)

- 392,517

(20.217) -

B 2,004,186

20 428 L
169,163 (140,297)

4.059.055 3,777,780

* In prior vear, the Company did not extend its concessionary tax rale of 10% for qualifying
activitics under the Development and Expansion Incentive Scheme, arising which the usual

corparate tax rate in Singapore of 1 7% applics to the Company,

Unrecognised deferred fax asses

Deferred 1ax assets have not been recopmsed in respect of the following items, because it 1s not
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the Group can use the benefits
therefrom. The vilisation of tax losses, are subject to agreement by the tax authonties and
comphiance with the relevant tax regulations, These tax losses can be carmed forward up to five
cansecutive vears and will expire on the fifth year from which the tax losses arise.

Tax losses
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Earnings per share

The caleulation of basic camings per share and diluted earnings per share are based on the profit
attributable to ordinary sharcholders divided by weighted-average number of ordinary shares.

Profir atteibutable to ordinary shorehofders

Group

2025 2024

Uss L'ss
Profit for the period, atnbutable 1o the owners of the

Company 16,657 689 10,491 548

Weighted-average number of ordinary shares 21,057,544 21,057 844
Eamings per share
- Basic carnings per share (USS) 0.7910 {.4982
= Diluted camings per share (LIS%) 074910 (L4982

The Company did not have any dilutive instruments in current and previous financial vear.

Leases

Leases as lessee

The Group leases office building, staff residential unit and factory facilities, The leases typically
run for a period of 2 to 3 years, with an option to renew the lease after that date. Lease rentals are
rencgotiated every three vears 1o reflect market rentals,

The Group leases production equipment and [T equipment with contract terms of one year. These
leases are short-term or low-value items. The Group has elected not to recognise nght-of-use
assets and lease liabilities for these leases.

Information abowt leases for which the Group is a lessee is presented below,

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-usc asscts related to feased propertics. (sce Mote 5).

Amounts recognised in profit or loss

Group

025 2024

USs Uss
Leases
Interest on lease linbilities 1%.538 14,683
Expenses relating to short-torm leases 202,455 1,972,244
Expenses relating to leases of low-value assers, excluding short-

temm leases of low-value assels 19,056 22403
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Amounts recognised in statement of cash Mlows

Group
1025 2024
LSS LSS
Payment of lcase liabilitics (416,520) (403,224)
Interest paid i 18,538) {14.683)
Total cash outfow for leases {435 058) (417.207)

Acquisitions of subsidiaries
Current year aequisitions
{a}) International Material Supplier Co., Ltd and its subsidiaries (“1MS Group™)

On | April 2024, the Group acquired 1000% of cquity interests in Intemational Material Supplicr
Co., Lud and its subsidiaries (“IMS Group™) for a consideration of NTD 348 451,554 (equivalent
to IS5 10,795 587), with the transfer of control effective on the same day,

As the acguisition occurred on | Apnl 2024, IMS Group's full vear results have been consolidated
into the Group’s financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025,

The acquisition of IMS Group enabled the Group to expand its customers basc.

(b} Ecopoly Global (Shanghai) Co., Ltd {(“Ecopoly”) (formerly known as Plastech
{Shanghai} Ce., Lid)

(O 28 February 2025, the Group acquired 0% of cquity interests in Ecopoly Global {Shanghai)
Co., Ld (*Ecopoly™) for a consideration of RMB 10,000,000 (cquivalent 1o US51,377,543), with
the transfer of control effective on 1 March 2025,

If the acquisition had occurred on 1 April 2024, management estimates that Ecopoly conmibuted
revenuc would have been USS%5, 157,277 and net loss of US5246,212 to the Group's results, In
determining these amounts, management has assumed that the fair value adjustment, determined
provisionally, that arese on the date of acquisition would have been the same if the acquisition
had occurred on 1 April 2024,

Consideration transferred

The following table summanses the acquisiton-date fair value of cach major class of
consideration transferred:

IMS Group Ecopoly Total
Uss Uss UsS
Cash 10,795,587 1,377,543 12,173,130
Total consideration transferred 10,795,587 1,377,543 12,173,130
FS50
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Acquisition-related costs

The Group incurred acquisition-related costs of USS194,072 on legal fees and due diligenee costs.
These costs have been included in *admimstrative expenses’,

Effect en cash flows for the Group

IMS Group Ecopoly Total
USss USs Uss
Cash consideration 10,795,587 1,377,543 12,173,130
Less; Cash and cash cquivalent acquired (T A74,175)  (J080415) (10,254 590)
Cash outflow on acquisitions, net 3621412 (17028723 1.918.540

Fentifiable assers acquived and Habilities assumed

The following table summarises the recogmised amounts of assets acquired and labilities assumed
as at date of acquisition or end of measurement period, if carlier.

IMS Group Ecopoly Total
Uss USss Uss
Property, plant and equipment 33,376 23219 56,595
Right-of-use assets - 230,331 230,331
Intangible asscts — cusiomer relaiionships 2315830 - 2315830
Defierred 1ax asscis T3, 346 679211 1,474,557
Inventorics [.783,570 2,734,312 4,517,882
Trade and other receivables 7770914 11,268,875 19,0139, TR
Other current asscts 556414 W5 1R 1,501,595
Other investments 91,234 - 91,234
Cash and cash equivalents 7.174,176 3080415 10,254,591
Loans and borrowings (8,136,339)  (4,783.251) (12,919,590)
Trade and other payables (2.759.456) (13019218} (15.778,674)
Lease liabilitics - {239 308) {239.30%8)
Provision for tlaxation (217,038) - (217,038)
Deferred tax liabilites (473,9749) - (473,979
Total identifiable net assets %.034,04% 919767 953515
F5351
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Measurement of fair values

The valuation techniques used for measuring the fair value of material assets acquired were as

follows:

Assets required Valuation technigue

Land OMD (see below)
Market comparisan fechafgue: The valuation model considers
the recent ramsaction prices of comparable land parcels in
similar locations and with similar charactenistics. Adjustments
arc made to reflect differences in attributes such as accessibility,
topography, development potential, and legal encumbrances.

Intangible asscts IMS Group
Multi-peviod excesy carnings method: The multi-period excess
carmings mcthod considers the present value of net cash flows
related o contributorny assets,

Inventories IMS Graup

Market comparison fechnigue: The fair value is determined
based on the cstimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less the estimated costs of completion and sale, and a
reasonable profit margin based on the effort required to complete
and sell the inventorics

Fair value of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
The following amounts in Ecopoly have been determined on a provisional basis:

The carrying amounts of trade and other reccivables, other cumrent asseis, cash and cash cquivalent
and trade and other pavables with a maturity of less than one vear are assumed to approximate
their fair values due 1o the short period o maturity of these financial instruments. lnventories are
mcasured and held close o its selling price as at acquisition date. Management has assessed that
the fair value of the property, plant and cquipment, right-of-use assets and deferred 1ax assets are
not material as at acquisition date and no adjustments were made.

Coodwill

Gioodwill ansing from the eequisitions has been recognised in the current year are as follows:

OoMD IMS Group Ecopoly Total
USs Uss LSS USs
Total consideration transferred 108,652 10,795 587 1,377,543 12,281,782
MNCI, based on their proportionate
interest in the recogniscd
amounts of the assets and
liabilities of the acquiree - - 91,977 91,977
Identifiable net liabilitics{asscis) IR 493 (RO34.048) {919,767y (9.472.322)
Goodwill 490,145 1,861, 5349 5449 753 2000 437
F552
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The net labilitics recogmised for OMD was determined based on the purchase price allocation report
which was finalised in current year,

The goodwill is attnbutable to the skills and technical talent of these acquisitions, and the synergics
expected to be achieved from integrating the subsidianes into the Group’s existing business, None
of the goodwill are expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

Prior year acquisition: Omni Development Sdn. Bhd. (“OMD™)

On 15 September 2023, the Group acquired 99.998% of the newly issucd shares in Omni
Development Sdn. Bhd. (“OMD™) for a paid-up capial of MYR 499990 {cquivalent o
LIS5108.652), with the transfer of control effective on the same day.

The acquisiton of OMD enabled the Group 1o have aceess to a pieee of land in Malaysia to build
another factory to expand the production capability of the Group. For year ended 31 Mareh 2024,
OMD contributed revenue of US53,047 245 and net loss of US5252 886 to the Group's results,
If the acquisibon had occurred on | Apnl 2023, management csimates that OMD conmbuted
revenue would have been UUS510.664. 729 and net loss of USST52.436 to the Group’s results. In
determining these amounts, management has assumed that the fair value adjustment, determined
provisionally, that arese on the date of acquisition would have been the same if the acquisition
had occurred on | Apnl 2023,

fdensifiable assers acquived and fabifittes assumed

The following table summarises the recognised amounts of assets acquired and liabilities assumed
at the date of acquisition.

LSS
Land 6359472
Machincries 044 ®73
Inventarics 1,732,235
Trade receivables 1,563,704
Cash and cash equivalents 452 933
Ohther payahles (11,024 570
Total identifiable net asseis 118,652
Tatal cash consideration 101 652

' The above fair value of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed have been
determined on provisional basis as of 31 March 2024,

Effect on cash flovx for the Group

LSS
Cash and cash equivalent acquired 482 933
Less: Cash consideration paid (108,652)
Cash inflow on acquisition 374281
F333
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In current vear, based on the purchase price allocation report prepared by the management’s
expert, there were fair value adjustments to the recognised amounts of assets acquired and
liabilitics assumed in relation to OMD as follows:

Fair value/
At date of other
acguisition  adjustments Total
LSS Uss Uss
Land f6,359 472 15,145 6.377.617
Machinernes 94 573 - g BT
Inventories 1,732,235 - 1,732,235
Trade receivables 1,563,709 (503,942) 1,059,767
Cash and cash equivalents AR 933 - 482933
Other payables (11,024.570) - (11,024 5709
Deferred tax liabilitics - (4,348) (4,348)
Total identifiable net assets/{labilities) 108 652 {400, 145) (381 4u3)
Related party transactions
Transactions with key management personnel
K{,:'_]‘ J'Hr!"ﬂj:{:’!ﬂ(:’ﬂf j'.l‘c'f .'r.rmm:.l’ (& FFE."H.T:TI.I;-I'J‘H
Group
025 1024
LSS Uss
Directors” fee 230,111 230,131
Short-term emplovee benefits B35, 740 R75417
Post-employment benefits (including CPF) 75,926 70,959
1,164,777 1,176,507

Chther related party transectiony

In addition 1o the related party information disclosed clsewhere in the financial statements, the
following significant transactions with related partics on terms mutually agreed during the

financial yvear are as follows:

Sales to corporate sharcholder

Sales to related companics

Sales to associates

Purchascs from corporate sharcholder
Purchascs from related companics
Purchases from associates

195/385

Group
2025 2024
Uss LSS
429.718 275,950
27.748 1859213
2112844 5,856,652
(16,248.303) (28468 457)
(25,062) (32.46%)
(1,614967) (5,915,608
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Group

2025 2024

LSS LSS
Services charge by carporate shareholder - (48 000}
Services charge to corporate sharcholder | 8,750 31,250
Services charge by related company {306 407) (554, 118)
Serviees charge to related company 24674 24,732
Rental charge by related companics (44, 825) (44,620
Facilitics charge to associate [4,399 370233
Administrative charge (o associate | 7,687 S0 GYHE

Financial instruments

Financial risk management

Overview

The Group has exposure to the following risks ansing from financial instruments:

s crodit risk
¢ liquidity risk
* market risk

This note presents information about the Group’s exposure to cach of the above risks, the Group's
objectives, policics and processes for measuring and managing nisk, and the Group's manogement
of capital.

Risk management framework

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the cstablishment and oversight of the
Ciroup’s risk management framework. Management 15 responsible for developing and monitoring
the Group's risk management policies. Management reports regularly to the Board of Dircetors
o its activities.

The Group's nsk management policics are established to identfy and analyse the nisks faced by
the Giroup, 1o set appropriate risk limats and controls, and to momitor risks and adherence to limits,
Risk management policies and svstems are reviewed regulardy to reflect changes in market
conditions and the Group®s activities. The Group, through its training and management standards
and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment m which all
employees understand their roles and obligations,

Credit risk
Credit risk 15 the nisk of financial loss 1o the Growp or the Company if a customer or counterparty
to a financial instrument fails 10 meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the

Company’s non-trade amount due from spbsidianies and the Group’s and the Company’s
receivables from customers.

F555
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The carmying amounts of financial asscts represent the Group and the Company’s maximum
exposures to credit risk, before mking into account any collateral held. The Groep and the
Company's cxposurcs to credit nsk anse primarily from cash and cash cquivalents, made and
other receivables, amount due from subsidiaries and amount due from related parties,

Trade receivables

The Group's exposure to credit nisk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of cach
customer. However, management also considers the demographics of the Growp®s customer base,
including the default risk of the industry and country in which customers operate, as these factors
may have an influence on credit risk.

The Group limis its exposure 1o credit risk from wade receivables by establishing maximum
payment penods of one and three months for corporate customers respectively, The Group also
entered into trade credit insurance for its rade receivables with an insurance institution which is
rated A2 based on rating agency Moody’s mting to manage its credit risk of s trade receivables.,

As at 31 March 2025, 51% (2024; 50%) of the Group’s trade receivables that are past due 15
covered bw the eredit insurance.

In monitoring customer credit nsk, customers are grouped according o their credit charactenistics,
including whether they are an individual or legal entity, whether they are a wholesale, retail or
end-user customer, their geographic location, indusiry, trade history with the Group, aging profile,
mamrity and existence of previous financial difficultics.

Exposure fo credin risk

The exposure to credit sk for trade receivables at the reporting date by geographical location
was as follows:

Group Company

Carrying amount Carrying amount

2025 2024 2025 2024

LSS LSS Uss LS5
Southeast Asia 4T R79.028 53382942 46070433 52046545
Rest of Asia L2431 12016784 10481590 9.720,108
Americas - 2,413,998 - -
Other countrics 25952 163,381 - G5 TH

TOI98101 67977105 56552023 61827529

There is no concentration of customers’ credit risk at the Group and Company level,

Expected credit loss assessment

The Group uses an allowance matrix to measure the ECLs of trade reccivables from customers,
ECL 15 calculated based on actual credit loss cxpenience over the past three yvears and adjusted for
differences between cconomic conditions during the period over which the historic data has been

collected, current market conditions and the Company’s view of cconomie conditions over the
expected lives of the receivables.

F556
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The following table provides information about the exposure to credit nisk and ECLs for trade
receivables for individual customers as at 31 March 2025:

Gross Impairment
CAPTVINg loss Credit
amount allowance impaired
Uss LS8
Group
025
Mot past duc 70,858,853 - Mo
Past due 1 = 30 days 5,895,238 - Mo
Past due 31 = 60 days 365,514 - Mo
Past due 61 =90 days 147,671 - Mo
Past due more than 90 davs 1.852.235 - Mo
Past due more than 90 days 1467002 (1.467,002) Yies
80,586,813 (1,467,002)
2024
Mot past duec G0082,96]1 - Mo
Past duc | — 30 days 5430857 - Mo
Past due 31 — 60 days 1360615 = Mo
Past duc 61 — 90 days 114972 - Mo
Past duc more than 90 days GR7, 700 - Mo
Past due maore than 90 davs 582,338 (582,338) Yes
65,559 443 (582,338)
Company
2025
Mot past due 39071979 - Mo
Past due | = 30 days 508,319 - Mo
Past due 31 = 60 days 5 08 - Mo
Past due 61 — 90 days 1,596,204 - Mo
Past duc more than 90 days 10,668,617 - Mo
Past duc maore than 90 davs 530,303 {530,303) Yes
57082326 (530, 303)
2024
Mot past due 46,674,136 - Mo
Past due | =30 days 3,125.370 - Mo
Past duc 31 — 60 days 2,039,615 = Mo
Past due 61 = 90 doys 2900432 = Mo
Past due more than 90 days 6,997 976 - Mo
Past due more than 90 days 530,303 (530,303) Yes
62,357 832 {5300, 303)
F857
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Mavements in allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade reccivables during the year
was as follows:

Group Company

Us% Uss
At | April 2024 SH2338 530,303
Recovery of doubtful trade receivables (32.655) -
Acquisition of subsidiary 181,384 -
Impairment loss recognised T43.%110 -
Exchange differcnees (7.876) -
At 31 March 2025 1. 467 002 530,303
At | April 2023 - .
Impairment loss recognised 384,135 530,303
Exchonge differences i1R17) =
Ar 31 March 2024 SK2,338 530,303
Cinarantees

The Group’s policy is to provide financial guarantees only for wholly-owned subsidiaries’
liabilitics,

At 31 March 2025, the Company has issued guarantees to cerain banks in respect of credit
facilities granted to cleven subsidianes, These guarantees are subject to impairment asscssment
under FRS 1049, The Company has assessed that the subsidianies have strong financial capacity to
meel the contractual cash flow obligations in the near future and hence, does not expect significant
credit losses from there guarantees, The Company’s assessment is based on qualitative and
quantitative factors that are indicative of the risk of default {including but not limated to external
ratings. audited financial statements, management accounts and cash flow projections, if
available, and applying expericnced credit judgement).

Now-trade amonnts die from subsidiaries amd related parties

The Group held non-trade reccivables from related partics amounting o USS953 882 (2024;
LUSS915,838). These balances are for short to mediom term funding requirements. The
impairment on these balances has been measured on the | 2-month expected credit loss basis and
the amount of the ECL s insignificant,

The Company held non-trade receivables from subsidiarics and related partics of LSS 11,983,241
(2024: USS3 194,784), These balances are for shon to medim term funding requirements, The
impairment on these halances has been measured on the 1 2-month expected credit loss basis and
the amount of the ECL is insignificant.

(heher fingnciol assets
Impairment losses on these other financial assets have been measured on the 12-month expected
loss basis and reflects the short-term maturitics of the exposures. The Group consider the

remaining receivables have low credit risk based on the cxternal credit ratings of the
counterpartics. The total impairment for other financial asscis is USS2,. 777 (2024: USSNil).

F558
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Cash and cash equivalents and fived deposits

Impairment on cash and cash equivalents and fixed deposits have been measured on the | 2-month
expected loss basis and reflects the short maturities of the exposures. The Group considers that
its cash and cash equivalents and fixed deposits have low credit risk based on the external credit
ratings of the counterpartics.

The amount of ECL on cash and cash equivalents and fixed deposits is insignificant,
Liguidity risk

Liguidity nisk 15 a nsk that the Group and the Company will encounter difficulty in mecting
financial obligations duc to shortage of funds. The Group and the Company’s exposure to liquidity
rigk arise primarily from mismatches of collections and payments timing. The Group and the
Company's ohjective are to maintain a balance between funding through busingss and flexibility
through the use of stand-by eredit facilities to pay for liabilities that are due in the next twelve
months,

Typically, the Group ensures that it has sufficient cash and cash equavalents (excluding demand
deposits subject to resrictions) to meet expected operational expenses for a period of 60 days,
including the servicing of financial obligations. This excludes the potential impact of extreme
circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted, such as natural disasters.

Expaosure to liguidity risk

The following are the remaining contractual matunties of financial liabilities. The amounts are
gross and undiscounted, and include contractual interest payments and exclude the impact of

netling agreements;
Carrying  Contractunl  Within Within More than
Note ammount cash Nows 1 year 1 to & venrs 5 vears
U5S LSS LI5S 5% Uss

Group
31 Muarch 2025
Mon-derivative financinl

liahilities
Trmbe and other payables® 17 5T.692258 (57.692.258) (57.692258) - -
Secured bank loans 16 I1T,328373 (23850381 (2,790.2125 (7,720,063 (13,340,006)
Redecmnble convertible

prl:llmu.: shares 1 600 502 {7 R04.68T) IH%.jzﬁﬁ i 978 362) -
Trust receipts and bills

payable 16 G2OT5 084 (6422504900 (64,225 040) - -
Lezwe Habilitics 16 262670 {0, 0N {455 T55) {235, 145) -

145 41T BET (154, 263.266) (125989 5001 (149336700 (13, 330,006)

Derivative Nnancial

imstruments
Derivative inameind

liabalities. net-settbed) IRE, 166 (3RR, 164 {388, 166) -

145 K06,053 (154.651,432) (126,377,756) (14,933,6701 (13,340,006

F559
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Group
A1 Muarch 2024
Mon-derivative financial
liahilities
Trade and other payables® 17
Secured bonk lnans 1]
Trust receipts and hills
payable 16
Lease liabilitics 16

Derivative Mnancial
instruimcnis

Derivative financial assels
{pross-settbed)
Outflow
Inllow

Derivantive financial
liabilities (gross-scitbed)
Outflow

= Inflow

Company
31 March 2025
Mon-derivative financial
linbilitics
Trbe and other payables® 17
Secured bank loans |1
Truist receipts and bills
payahle 16
Lemse liabihities 16
Intr-group linancial
guimnies

31 Murch 2024
Non-derivative financkal
liahilities
Trnde and other payables 17
Secured bank loans 16
Trust recerpts and bills
|:;1.j|l'ah|c 16
Lease Liabilities 16
Intra-grodp Nnaicial
gupmniee
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Carrying  Contraciunl  Wiihin Within More than
nmount cash Nows I year I to & venrs 5 years
Uss Uss Uss uss Uss
S4.830 427 (S RI042T) (5462657 (2003 H4H) -
14230880 (IRTTTI63) (2,TOLBRT) (5473 832) (10,541.64)
56,494,177 (3E.0EL,745) (58,086,745 n =
S0, B0 (541,679 (360,370 { 1 80,304 -
126,058,445 (1322362040 (115,836,500 (5857 9800 (10.541.64)
[5,233)
(22000000 (2,200 (04 -~ -
21.2053223 2,205,213 - -
68,302
(L5EET00) {1,588, T A -
1,520,428 1520428 - -
13,0649 {63,058 (63,058 = -
126,021,504 (13220092720 (1158096481 (58579800 (10,541 644)
28 540,463 (2R 5404635 (28,540463) - -
62577000 (741355 (1LB44305) (27T4TER (3.322.260)
36,236,780 (3T031.265) (37,001.265) = -
37,172 [37.227) (37217 - =
— (36.617356) (56,617 356) = =
TLOT2 115 (130,167,666) (124,070,616 (2,774,788  (3,322.261)
IR0 240 (34,189.241) (34.189.241) = =
1332997 (3307T081)  (2,130447) (1.176,634) -
J4680. 017 (45007703 (45907,703) - -
102,310 (102 683) (65 456) (37.22T) =
— (33009153 (55090915 - -
82214465 (138507 623) (137,383,762} (1,213,861} =

* Exelidivng advances received from customrers

The maturity analyses show the contractual undiscounted cash flows of the Group and the
Company s financial liabilitics on the basis of their carliest possible contractual matunty.

201/385
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The Group has sccured bank loans which contain debt covenants. A breach of these covenants
may require the Group to repay the loan earlier than indicated in the mble above. Under the
agreement, the covenants are monitored on a regular basis by the finance department and regularky
reported (o the management (o ensure compliance with the covenant, As at 31 March 2025, the
Group is in complianee with the debt covenants.

The interest payments on vanable interest rate loans and trust receipts in the table above reflect
market forward interest eates at the period end and these amounts may change as market interest
rates changes,

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates
and equity prices will affect the Group’s mcome or the value of its holdings of financial
instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk
cxposurcs within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return,

Crrrency risk

The Group is exposed to transactional foreign currency risk to the extent that there is a mismateh
between the currencies in which sales, purchases, receivables and borrowings, including inter-
company sales, purchases and inter-company balances, that are denominated in a currency other
than the respective functional currencies of Group ennties. The functional currencics of Group
entitics are primarily the Malaysian Ringgit and US Dollar. The currencies in which these
transactions primarily are denominated are the Malaysian Ringgit (*MYR"), US Dollar (*USD")
and Singapore Dollar (*5GD).

Fs61
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Sensivivity analysiz for foreign currency risk

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the Group and the Company's profit or loss to
possible change to the MYR, USD and 5GD exchange rates against the functional currencics,
with all other variables held constant.

Group Company
2025 2024 2025 2024
Profit or loss  Frofit or loss  Profit or loss  Profit or loss
Uss USss LSS Uss
MY R (3% strengthening) 17,581 18,264 15,650 16,625
USD (3% strengthening) {417,503) (63,955) - -
SGD (3% strengthening) (154,475) 6,396 {183,231 (1,520}
MY R (3% weakening) (17.881) (18.264) (15,680 (16,625)
LISD (3% weakening) 417,505 63 955 - -
SGD (3% weakening) {154,475} (6, 346) 83,230 1,520

Interest rale risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the Group and the Company's
financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates, The Group and
the Company’s exposure Lo interest rate risk arise primarily from their fixed deposits and interest-
bearing loans and borrowings.

The Group and the Company do not have a policy to manage interest rate as imferest income and
cxpenses do not constitute a substantial part of the total operating income and expenses,

respectively,
Expasire fo faterest rale Fisk

At the reporting date, the interest rate profile of the interest-bearing financial instruments, as
reported to the management, was as follows:

Group Company
Nominal amount Nominal amount
2025 2024 2025 2024
LUss LSS LSS Lss
Fixed rate insirumenis
Fixed deposits 25,707,748 20,892 691 21,892 856 18,956,650
Trust receipts and bills payables (62925 084)  (56,4%4,177)  (36236.779)  (44.689917)
Redeemable conventible
prefercnce shares (6,5909,502) - - -
Secured bank loans (6,575,747 (B.152.015) (1. 128.948) (2.855.934)

(50,702,585) (43,753,501) (15472871) (28,589.201)

Variable rate instruments
Secured bank loans (10,752.626)  (6OTS.866)  (5.128.752) (377.064)

F563
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Fair valwe senxivivicy analysis for fived rate instruments

The Group docs not account for any fixed rate financial asscis and habilitics at FVTPL. Therefore,
change in interest rates at the repoming date would not affect profit or loss,

Cash flow sensivivity analyvsis for variohle rafe insirmens
A reasomably possible change of 30 basis points (“bp”) in interest rates at the reporting date would

have inereased (decreased) profit or loss by the amounts shown below, This analysis assumcs that
all other variables, in particular forcign currency exchange rates, remain constani.

Group Company
Profit or loss Profit or loss
50 bp 50 bp 50 bp S0 bp
increase decrense increase decrease

LSS L5S LSS Uss
31 March 2025
Wariable rate instruments  (53,763) 53,763 (25,644) 25,644
Cash flow sensitivity (53,763) 33,763 (25,6444 25644
31 March 2024
¥ariable rate instruments (30, 394) 30,394 {1 .885) 1,885
Cash flow sensitivity {30,394) 30,394 [ 1.885) 1885

Capital managem ent

The Growp and the Company’s objectives when managing capital are to ensure that the Group
and the Company are adequately capitalised and to maintain an optimal capital structure by
issuing or redeeming additional equity and debt instruments when necessary. No changes were
made in the objectives, policics and processes during the financial vears ended 2025 and 2024,
Capital is defined as total issucd and fully paid-up ordinary shares and retained camings.

For loans and borrowings with the external financial institutions, the Group and Company, are

required to ensure that that there were no significant changes to its existing major sharcholders
and the sharcholding of its subsidiancs,
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andd its sndhxidiarie
Finametald stifenminis

Yeurr ended 31 Morch 2025

Financial instruments not measured at fair value
Group and Company

Tvpe Valuation technigue

Other financial liabilitics® Discounted cash flows: The valuation model considers the
present value of expected payment, discounted using a
nsk-adjusted discount rate,

*  Oiher Anancial liabilites include secured bank loans.

Operating segment

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing and trading of resins, chips and other
accessories. The Growp assessed its operating segment and determined that it has only one (2024;
one¢) single reportable segment which is Engincenng Plastics scgment,

The operating scgment contains vanous operating divisions that are inter-dependent @ suppont
the Group’s eperating activities and performance. Based on the combined activities of these key
divizions, the Group's Chiel Exceutive Office (“CEQ™), who is the chief operating decision maker
(CODM™). assesses performance against an approved Group’s budget and mokes resource
allocation decisions that will maximise the utilisation of production capacity and operating
efficiency of the single reportable segment, 1o achieve the Group’s budget.

Reconciliation of reportable segment revenues, profil or loss, assets and liabilities

Graoup 025 2024
LSS LISS

Revenue

Total revenue for reportable segment 501,501,545 435838 830

Elimination of inter-segment revenue (129915496) (125.681.663)

Consolidated revenue AT1L586,049  310,157.176

Prafit before tax

Total profit before tax for reponable scgment 21,789, 894 15,383,117
Elimination of inter-scgment profit or loss (1085547 (1,113,793)
Consolidated profii before tax 20,704,347 14,268 324
Assels
Total asscts for reportable scgment JI2317.000 257 346,574
Elimination of inter-scgment assets {72 408.673)  (50,683,659)
Consolidared total assets 239908 337 2066624915
Liabilitics
Tomal liabilities for repontable segment 199,980,347 167,137,112
Elimination of inter-scgment labalities (47,094, 686) (36,240,139
Consolidated total habilities 152 885,661 | 30,896,973
FST0
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(hmni-Plus System Linited

andd s anbsidfanrie

Finametald stifenminis

Yeurr ended 31 Morch 2025

Reconciliation of reportable segment other material items

Group

2025

Interest income

Other material items of income®*
Finance costs

Depreciation and amortisation
Impairment loss on trade receivables

024

Interest income

Other material items of income™®
Finance costs

Depreciation and amortisation
Impairment loss on trade receivables

Reportable Consolidated
segment totals  Adjustments tatals
Uss LSS LSS
| 457,833 {2R0,047) 1,176,803
4385 650 - 4,385,650
(6.441,604) 177,267 (6,164,337
(1,512,548) (946,427)  (2.458975)
(746,588} - (746, 558)
k{0 R - 360,68
4208431 - 4,208 431
(4,525,346) J6.d44 (4. 488.902)
(1,745091) (170,252)  (2,115.343)
i 584.155) = (584,155)

* Other material items of income relate to various items as detailed innote 19,

Geagraphical information

In presenting information on the basis of geographical scgments, scpment revenue is based on the
geographical location of customers and segment assets are based on the geographical location of

the asscls.

Group

Revenue
Southeast Asia
Rest of Asia
Americas
Other countries

MNon-current assets™”
Southeast Asia
Rest of Asia

Group

025 2024

LSS USss
263 168313 251,163,642
105,937,777 50,889,853
2,203 894 7400011
276,065 703,670
371,586,049 310,157,176
30, 145067 27,869, 68
4,606,304 14,672
34,751,371 27,884,361

' Mon-current assets presented property, plant and equipment, investment property, right-of-use
assets, investments in associates, and intangible assets and goodwill,

Major customer

There are no customers contributing more than 10 pereent to the revenue of the Group.

212/385
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Yeurr ended 31 Morch 2025

29 Subsequent event
O 22 July 2025, the Board of Directors approved the purchase of a property in Singapore for a
total consideration of USD 132 million (approximately SGD 16,8 million).

F572
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2024

)

22 2024 31

31
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oOoOooodn

2024 2023 2024 2023
Us¢( ) UssC ) UssC ) USsC )
20,659,171 17,712,903 2,856,003 3,494,286
(3,128,005) (2,681,911)  (432,427)  (529,070)

538,792 618,498 102,099 130,790

(93,647)  (81,578) (15,459)  (19,803)

- ~ 15,304,699 16,564,106

) (-) (2,671,941) (2,507,971)

- - 24,223 24,223

(-) ) (3.668) (3,668)

2,422,477 1,495,434 1,841,074 1,241,074
(366,787)  (226,424)  (278,757)  (187,911)
4,263,919 4,747,180 - -
(645,600)  (718,771) ) “)

12 732,930 602,836 : -
(110,973)  (91,275) ) )

10 457,171 343,873 - -
(69,220)  (52,066) ) )
29,074,460 25,520,724 20,128,098 21,454,479
(4,402,164) (3,864,093) (3,047,595) (3,248,423)

11 38,116,217 59,386,174 16,857,718 31,079,925
(5,771,176) (8,991,661) (2,552,427) (4,705,811)

12 72,461,225 61,790,592 67,631,789 82,515,686

(10,971,354) (9,355,714) (10,240,129) (12,493,700)

13 67,005,790 32,970,441 53,440,792 15,452,581

(10,145,347) (4,992,054) (8,091,470) (2,339,675)
5,223 - 5,223 -
(791) -) (791) )

177,588,455 154,147,207
(26,888,668) (23,339,429)

137,935,522 129,048,192
(20,884,772) (19,539,187)

206,662,915 179,667,931
(31,290,832) (27,203,521)

158,063,620 150,502,671
(23,932,413) (22,787,609)
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14 26,073,548 26,073,548
(3,947,796) (3,947,796)
918,883 511,406

( 139,130) ( 77,432)
50,611,280 45,173,615
(7,663,055) (6,839,737)
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oOoOooodn

26,073,548 26,073,548
(3,947,796) (3,947,796)

) -)
45,780,428 42,512,470
(6,931,615) (6,436,813)

75,765,945 70,735,757
(11,471,722) (10,710,101)

71,853,976 68,586,018
(10,879,411) (10,384,609)

®3) -
(@) )

O O

75,765,942 70,735,757
(11,471,721) (10,710,101)

71,853,976 68,586,018
(10,879,411) (10,384,609)

16 203,848 102,830
(30,865)  (15,569)

15 11,710,747 11,953,762
(1,773,124) (1,809,919)

10 430,905 506,667
(65,243)  (76,714)

() )
1,199,536 3,349,547
(181,622)  (507,155)

139,571 139,571
(21,132)  (21,132)

12,345,500 12,563,259
(1,869,232) (1,902,203)

1,339,107 3,489,118
(202,754)  (528,287)

16 54,626,579 38,406,076
(8,271,010) (5,815,064)

15 59,517,271 54,468,063
(9,011,510) (8,247,009)
4,339,321 3,494,776
(657,017)  (529,144)

68,302 .

(10,342) )

118,551,473 96,368,915
(17,949,879) (14,591,217)

34,189,241 29,149,795
(5,176,593) (4,413,570)
46,825,688 46,555,664
(7,089,877) (7,048,993)
3,855,608 2,722,076
(583,777)  (412,150)

) Q)
84,870,537 78,427,535
(12,850,248) (11,874,713)

130,896,973 108,932,174
(19,819,111) (16,493,420)

86,209,644 81,916,653
(13,053,002) (12,403,000)

206,662,915 179,667,931
(31,290,832) (27,203,521)

158,063,620 150,502,671
(23,932,413) (22,787,609)
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2024 2023
US$ ( ) Us$

310,157,176 327,700,757
(46,960,898) (49,617,172)
269,934,762 284,280,875
40,870,822) 43,042,967)
40,222,414 43,419,882
(6,090,076) (6,574,204)
4,570,119 1,307,573
(691,962) (197,980)
6,328,771 6,130,764
( 958,239) ( 928,259)
10,762,971 9,885,757
1,629.621) 1,496,802)
9,274,066 6,784,473
1,404,186) 1,027,237)
4,488,902 3,232,096
(  679,665) ( 489,372)
331,501 313,132
(50,193) (47,411)
14,269,324 19,007,497
(2,160,518) (2,877,925)
3,777,780 2,572,555
( 571,994) (  389,511)
10,491,544 16,434,942
(1,588,525) (2,488,415)
10,491,548 16,434,942
(1,588,525) (2,488,415)
4 _
(D ©)
10,491,544 16,434,942
(1,588,525) (2,488,415)
403,020 478,243
(  61,021) ( 72,411)
4,458 15,163
( 675) (2,296)
407,478 463,080
(  61,696) (  70,115)
10,084, 066 15,971, 862
(1,526,828) (2,418,300)
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10,084,071 15,971,862
(1,526,829)  (2,418,300)
5 _
(G @)
10,084,066 15,971,862
(1,526,828)  (2,418,300)
22 0.4982 0.7805
(75.43) (118.17)
22 0.4982 0.7805
(75.43) (118.17)
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2024 31
Uss(¢ ) Uss$(C ) uss(¢ ) uss(C )
2022 26,073,548 48,326 33,792,556 59,817,778
(3,947,796) (  7,317) (5,116,531)  (9,057,010)
- — 16,434,942 16,434,942
&) (- (2,488,415)  (2,488,415)
- 463,080 - 463,080
(=) ( 70,115) = ( 70,115)
- 463,080 - 463,080
) (70,115 () (70,115
- 463,080 16,434,942 15,971,862
(-) ( 70,115) (2,488,415)  (2,418,300)
14 - - 5,053,883 5,053,883
&) () ( 765,208) ( 765,208)
- - 5,053,883 5,053, 883
) (&) ( 765,208) ( 765,208)
2023 31 26,073,548 511,406 45,173,615 70,735,757
(3,947,796) (  77,432) (6.,839,737) (10,710,101)
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OooooOodd
US$( ) US$( )
UssC ) US$C ) UussC ) US$C )
2023 26,073,548 511,406 45,173,615 70,735,757 - 70,735,757
( (10,710,101)
(3,947,796) 77.432) (6,839,737) (10,710,101) )
- — 10,491,548 10,491,548 4 10,491,544
) (-) (1,588,525) (1,588,525) ( 1) (1,588,525)
- 407,477 - 407,477 1 407,478
( ( 0 ( 61,69)
() 61,696) () ( 61,696)
- 407,477 - 407,477 1 407,478
( ( 0 ( 61,698)
()  61,696) () ( 61,696)
- 407,477 10,491,548 10,084,071 5 10,084,066
) ( (1,588,525) (1,526,829) ( 1) (1,526,828)
61,696)
14 - - 5,053,883 5,053,883 - 5,053,883
) (-) ( 765,208) ( 765,208) (-) ( 765,208)
- - 5,053,883 5,053,883 - 5,053,883
) (-) ( 765,208) (  765,208) () ( 765,208)
- - - - 2 2
) ) Q) Q) 0) 0)
- - - - 2 2
(@) (@) (@) (@) () (0
- - 5,053,883 5,053,883 2 5,053,881
(-) (=) ( 765,208) (  765,208) (0) ( 765,208)
2024 31 26,073,548 918,883 50,611,280 75,765,945 3 75,765,942
(3,947,796) ( (7,663,054) (11,471,721) ( 0) (11,471,721)

139,128)
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2024 31
2024 2023
USS$( ) US$( )

14,269,325 19,007,497
(2,160,520) (2,877,925)
20 734,125 2,741,768
(111,154) (415,131)
483,261 483,261
(73,171) (73,171)
1,221,177 1,192,583
(184,898) (180,569)
410,905 258,077
(62,215) (39,075)
20 1,381,001 541,478
( 209,097) ( 81,985)
20 584,155 267,147
(88,447) ( 40,449)
20 8,564 22,988
( 1,297) (  3,481)
19 361,688 48,492
(  54,763) ( 7,342)
19 4,488,902 3,232,096
(679,665) (489,372)
20 113 3,950
(17) (598)
331,501 313,132
(  50,193) ( 47,411)
280,976 114,365
( 42,543) ( 17,316)
19,828,232 25,611,630

(3,002,193) (3,877,857)
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21,320,776 4,596,482
(3,228,179) (695,953)
11,783,220 5,158,370
(  1,784,097) (781,029)
7,218,160 9,184,520
(1,092,902) 1,390, 628)
36,583,948 26,181,962
(5,539,176) (3,964,211)
3,042,973 2,125,684
(  460,737) 321, 850)
33,540,975 24,056,278
(5,078,439) (3,642,361)
361,688 48,492
(54,763) (7,342)
3,348,740 1,403,514
(  507,033) 212,506)
6,769,269 1,199,480
(1,024,935) (181,613)
600,000 193,865
( 90,846) (  29,353)
1,230,308 1,641,092
(186,281) 248,478)
24 374,281 337,065
(56,670) ( 51,035)
4,786,806 2,327,564
(724,770) 352,416)
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13 154,863 690,500
(23,448) ( 104,549)
15 163,064,708 197,254,799
(24,689, 627) (29,866, 349)
15 157,132,040 204,132,765
( 23,791,362) ( 30,907,742)
15 403,224 200,378
(  61,052) (  30,339)
15 4,360,484 2,683,290
(  660,221) ( 406,277)
14 5,053,883 5,053,883
(  765,208) (  765,208)
3,730,060 15,506,017
( 564,769) (  2,347,766)
34,597,721 6,222,697
(5,238,441) (942,179)
29,105,153 23,212,346
(4,406,811) (3,514,581)
407,509 329,890
(  61,701) ( 49,949)
13 63,295,365 29,105,153

(9,583,551) (4,406,811)
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2024

Omni-Plus System Limited
Block 994 Bendemeer Road #01-03 B Central Singapore 339943

JDR 2021 29
1,201,500 JDR
2024 31 22
2.1
FRS
2.5
2.2
2.3
Uss$
2.4

FRS
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2.5

2023 FRSs FRS

FRS 117

FRS FRS

FRS

FRS 12

FRS 12 —

2024 FRS FRS

significant material

2023

2.5

3.1

Q)
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NCI

NCI

3.8
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100 NCI

NCI
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(viii)

FRS109
FRS115

ECL
ECL

(i)

(i)
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3.5

Q)

3.1(i)

(i)

D)

10

25

10

13

10

10
20

10
10
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IT

3.8

Q)

FGC ECL

12 ECL 12 12
ECL
ECL ECL
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ECL

ECL

12

90

ECL

ECL
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90

ECL

FGC

(i)

~
-
-
-
(-

CGU
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3.10
3.11
PO
PO
PO
PO
PO
PO
3.12
3.13
FRS 37

239/385



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00o0o00oo00oOo(Esse713)
oOoOooodn

3.14
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3.15
CEO

3.16

2023

FRS
FRS
FRS 116
FRS FRS 107

FRS 21
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uss
Uss$ uss Uss uss Uss uss Uss$ Uss uss Uss
2022 10,049,411 3,720,175 787,488 889,372342,9303,288,797 4,035,318 216,972 107,668 1,036,354 24,474,485
449,813 - 61,661 16,359 20,966 - 733,853 48,433 6,185 66,244 1,403,514
- - (66,540) - - - (40,064) —(5,844) - (112,448)
- - (1,128) - - -(1,138,785) - - —-(1,139,913)
24 - - 9,568 - - - - - 8,876 2,959 21,403
(454,735) (173,410) (4,830) (41,344) (5,252) - (67,292) (11,274) (3,079) (1,252) (762,468)
2023 10,044,489 3,546,765 786,219 864,387 358,6443,288,797 3,523,030 254,131113,8061,104,305 23,884,573
31
2023 10,044,489 3,546,765 786,219 864,387 358,6443,288,797 3,523,030 254,131113,8061,104,305 23,884,573
109,452 - 38,408 2,812 11,014 - 3,140,656  (211) 9,555 37,054 3,348,740
- - (56,050) -(4,918) - (14,699) -(9,151) —  (84,818)
(1,757,779) (2,367,140) (1,379) - - -(1,729,488) - (385 —-(5,856,171)
(417,973) 417,973 - - - - - - - - -
- - - - - - - - - (59,368)  (59,368)
24 6,359,472 - - - - - 994,873 - - - 7,354,345
*
(802,619) (223,017) (9,319) (59,093) (8,839) — (155,407) (19,399) (4,051) (4,894) (1,286,638)
2024 13,535,042 1,374,581 757,879 808,106 355,9013,288,797 5,758,965 234,521109,7741,077,097 27,300,663
31
* 2023 15 Omni Development Sdn.Bhd. 24
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2022 378,526 642,542 476,644 325,478 678,473 2,353,425 135,496 94,521 591,260 5,676,365

91,241 87,933 84,963 17,355 161,387 542,219 30,555 12,812 164,118 1,192,583

- — (66,540) - - - (36,113) - (5,845) ~ (108,498)

- - (1,128) - - — (480,783) - - - (481,911)

- (16,785) (2,243) (21,517) (4,964) - (49,813) (7,838) (2,717)  (992) (106,869)

2023 452,982 660,564 540,090 337,869 839,860 2,328,935 158,213 98,771 754,386 6,171,670
31 -

2023 452,982 660,564 540,090 337,869 839,860 2,328,935 158,213 98,771 754,386 6,171,670

71,627 82,847 82,304 12,769 170,765 603,820 38,846 11,073 147,126 1,221,177

- - (56,050) - (4,918) - (14,586) - (9,151) - (84,705)

- (201,207)  (805) - - — (265,506) - (385) ~ (467,903)

- - - - - - - - - (15,250)  (15,250)

- (28,292) (5,919) (38,473) (7,788) (305) (82,806) (13,906) (3,800) (2,208) (183,497)

2024 295,110 680,637 583,921 337,932 1,010,320 2,569,857 183,153 96,508 884,054 6,641,492
31 -

2022 10,049,411 3,341,649 144,946 412,728 17,452 2,610,324 1,681,893 81,476 13,147 445,094 18,798,120

2023 10,044,489 3,093,783 125,655 324,297 20,775 2,448,937 1,194,095 95,918 15,035 349,919 17,712,903
31

2024 13,535,042 1,079,471 77,242 224,185 17,969 2,278,477 3,189,108 51,368 13,266 193,043 20,659,171
31
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US$ Uss$ Us$ Uss$ Uss$ Uss$ US$ US$
2022 686,363 213,331 3,283,015 2,594,763 22,434 54,500 417,673 7,272,079
24,974 2,553 - 705,976 - 1,523 - 735,02
(66,003) - - - - - - (66,003)
- - - (1,138,785) - - - (1,138,785)
2023 31 645,334 215,884 3,283,015 2,161,954 22,434 56,023 417,673 6,802,317
2023 645,334 215,884 3,283,015 2,161,954 22,434 56,023 417,673 6,802,317
10,538 778 - 1,306,034 - 2,438 - 1,319,788
(56,051)  (2,520) - - - - - (58,571)
(1,379) - - (1,721,302) - - - (1,722,681)
2024 31 598,442 214,142 3,283,015 1,746,686 22,434 58,461 417,673 6,340,853
2022 601,446 207,211 672,690 1,269,207 22,434 49,590 364,345 3,186,923
52,207 5,934 161,387 416,068 - 3,969 28,329 667,894
(66,003) - - - - - ~  (66,003)
- - —  (480,783) - - ~  (480,783)
2023 31 587,650 213,145 834,077 1,204,492 22,434 53,559 392,674 3,308,031
2023 587,650 213,145 834,077 1,204,492 22,434 53,559 392,674 3,308,031
41,523 1,460 161,387 270,095 - 2,310 18,513 495,288
(56,050)  (2,520) - - - - - (58,570)
(805) - - (259,094) - - - (259,899)
2024 31 572,318 212,085 995,464 1,215,493 22,434 55,869 411,187 3,484,850
2022 84,917 6,120 2,610,325 1,325,556 - 4,910 53,328 4,085,156
2023 31 57,684 2,739 2,448,938 957,462 - 2,464 24,999 3,494,286
2024 31 26,124 2,057 2,287,551 531,193 - 2,592 6,486 2,856,003
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8,317,456 2023 :13,379,102
15
Us$ Us$ Uss$ Uss$
2022 174,959 53,726 113,367 342,052
348,004 30,076 361,021 739,191
(10,398) - ~  (10,398)
(6,364) (2,506)  (25,966)  (34,836)
2023 31 506,291 81,296 448,422 1,036,009
181,069 35,839 153,490 370,398
(44,601) - —  (44,601)
(6,709) (3,499)  (42,759)  (52,967)
2024 31 636,050 113,636 559,153 1,308,839
2022 71,145 50,116 66,130 187,391
113,054 20,600 124,423 258,077
(10,398) - ~  (10,398)
(3,217) (2,309)  (12,033)  (17,559)
2023 31 170,584 68,407 178,520 417,511
185,376 17,370 208,159 410,905
(44,601) - —  (44,601)
(7,460) (3,499) (2,809)  (13,768)
2024 31 303,899 82,278 383,870 770,047
2022 103,814 3,610 47,237 154,661
2023 31 335,707 12,889 269,902 618,498

2024 31 332,151 31,358 175,283 538,792
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2023
2023

2024

2022
2023
2023
2024
2022

2023
2024

(a) 2024
464,300

31

31

31

31

31
31

Us$ Us$ Us$
141,480 30,076 171,556
141,480 30,076 171,556
141,480 30,076 171,556
- 35,839 35,839
141,480 65,915 207,395
23,580 17,186 40,766
23,580 17,186 40,766
23,580 17,186 40,766
47,160 17,370 64,530
70,740 34,556 105,296
117,900 12,890 130,790
70,740 31,359 102,099
2024 2023
Us$
16,564,106 13,133,394
() 974,300 -
24 108,652 3,610,722
- (180,010)
17,647,058 16,564,106
(2,342,359) -
15,304,699 16,564,106
31 PT Omni-Plus System
510,000

247/385
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2024 2023
Nihon Pigment Sdn. Bhd. 100 100
OPS Technologies Sdn. Bhd. 100 100
Omni-Plus System Shanghai Limited 100 100
PT. Omni Plus System 100 100
Cepco Trading Sdn. Bhd. 100 100
Omni Plus System Philippines Inc. 100 100
DP Chemicals Pte. Ltd. 100 100
I-FTZ Trade Philippines, Inc. 100 100
Alpha Chemie Pte. Ltd.* 100 100
PT. Sentosa Kimia 100 100
Tags Polymer Sdn. Bhd. 100 100
OMNI-PLUS SYSTEM Japan / 100 100
Omni Plus System (Thailand) Co., Ltd 100 100
Kyoei Denki (S) Pte. Ltd. 100 100
Omni Development Sdn Bhd 99.998 -
ODT Investments Pte Ltd 100 -
DP Chemicals Vietnam Co., Ltd. 100 100
PT Kyoei Denki Trading Indonesia 100 -

KD Advanced Materials, Inc 100 -
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2024 31

2024
Us$

24,223

Omni-Plus System Plastics
Co., Ltd

Omni-Plus System Plastics Co.,Ltd
Maiseaumso Yanee Yuthakaichaisri
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2024 2023
Us$ US$
2,342,359 -
2,342,359 -
2,342,359
2023
Uss$
24,223
2024 2023
39 39
39 2023 :39 Thanasan
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Small World Accelerator Pte.
(SWA)

R&P Technologies Pte. Ltd.
(RPT)

2024 2023 2024 2023
US$ US$ US$ Us$
1,962,694 1,362,694 1,841,074 1,241,074
459,783 132,740 - —
2,422,477 1,495,434 1,841,074 1,241,074
2024 2023
Ltd. 48 48
40 40
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FRS

RPT SWA
USs$ Uss$ Us$
2024
8,075,705 -
840,672 (9,932)
2,080,450 832,697
4,934,012 326,765
(15,762) -
(2,151,041) (152,352)
4,847,659 1,007,110
1,002,796 492,638 1,495,434
- 336,268 (4,767) 331,501
- 0OCl- - (4,458) (4,458)
- 336,268 (9,225) 327,043
600,000 - 600,000
1,939,064 483,413 2,422 477
2023
9,010,394 -
796,249 (11,597)
539,530 843,388
4,175,100 417,013
(15,762) -
(2,191,879) (153,490)
2,506,989 1,106,911
684,296 288,978 973,274
- 318,500 (5,368) 313,132
- OCI- — 15,163 15,163
- 318,500 9,795 328,295
- 193,865 193,865
1,002,796 492,638 1,495,434
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Uss$ Us$ Us$
2022 2023 31
2024 31 2,023,790 4,832,609 6,856,399
2022 - 1,625,958 1,625,958
— 483,261 483,261
2023 31 - 2,109,219 2,109,219
2023 - 2,109,219 2,109,219
- 483,261 483,261
2024 31 - 2,592,480 2,592,480
2022 2,023,790 3,206,651 5,230,441
2023 31 2,023,790 2,723,390 4,747,180
2024 31 2,023,790 2,240,129 4,263,919
cGU
CGU
2024 2023
Us$ US$
DP Chemicals Group 694,434 694,434
Cepco Trading Sdn.Bhd. 992,686 992,686
PT Sentosa Kimia 336,670 336,670
2,023,790 2,023,790

CGU CGU

252/385



31

2023

(CGU)

CGU

31
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2024 2023
11.5 - 13.7 - 17.4
5.8 -10.2 5.1-7.2
11.0 - 22.6 12.0 - 15.5
2.1 - 2.5 2.5
10
GDP
2024
CGU
2024 2023
1.7 - 9.6 8.1 -10.4
0.6 - 2.9 0.6 - 2.1
1.9 - 8.3 6.0 - 9.0
1.2 - 10.9 2.0 - 17.5
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10

2024 2023 2024 2023
US$ US$ Us$ US$
(6,310) - - -
(134,495)  (106,289) - -
- - 316,558 264,151
(75,377) (33,163) - -
(42,633) (21,353) - -
(287,657)  (135,167) - -
- - 291,592 367,096
(87,944)  (172,481) - -
(634,414)  (468,453) 608, 150 631,247
177,245 124,580  (177,245)  (124,580)
(457,171) _ (343,873) 430,905 506, 667
2024 2023 2024 2023
US$ US$ Us$ US$
- - 97,630 139,571
- - 80,089 -
(38,148) - - -
(38,148) - 177,719 139,571
38,148 - (38,148) -
— — 139,571 139,571
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2022 2023
21 31
US$ US$ US$ USs$
(2,099) 2,001 98 -
(125,039) 15,867 2,883 (106,289)
340,693 (69,560) (6,982) 264,151
442,596 (75,502) - 367,094
(11,426) (21,964) 227 (33,163)
(19,856) (2,286) 793 (21,349)
- (135,168) - (135,168)
30,382 (183,039) (19,825) (172,482)
655,251 (469,651) (22,806) 162,794
2023 2024
21 31
US$ US$ US$ USs$
- (6,527) 217 (6,310)
(106,289) (35,742) 7,536 (134,495)
264,151 60,767 (8,360) 316,558
367,094 (75,502) - 291,592
(33,163) (44,315) 2,101 (75,377)
(21,349) (23,288) 2,004 (42,633)
(135,168) (157,051) 4,562 (287,657)
(172,482) 80,570 3,968 (87,944)
162,794 (201,088) 12,028 (26,266)
2022 2023
31
US$ Us$ Us$
(54,889) 54,889 -
194,460 (54,889) 139,571
139,571 — 139,571
2023 2024
31
US$ uss uss
139,571 (41,941) 97,630
- 80,089 80,089
— (38,148) (38,148)
139,571 - 139,571

255/385



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00o0o00oo00oOo(Esse713)
oOoOooodn

11
2024 2023 2024 2023
Us$ Us$ Us$ US$

2,615,075 4,018,650 - -

40,348,417 59,520,960 19,726,041 33,723,850

42,963,492 63,539,610 19,726,041 33,723,850

(4,153,436) (1,425,473) (2,643,925)  (989,290)

20 | (1,105,316) (2,764,801) (224,398) (1,654,635)

20 371,191 23,033 - -

40,286 13,805 - -

(4,847,275) (4,153,436) (2,868,323) (2,643,925)

38,116,217 59,386,174 16,857,718 31,079,925

2024 31 267,567,376 2023 280,769,104

1,105,316 2023 2,764,801

371,191 2023

23,033
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2024 2023 2024 2023

US$ Us$ US$ US$
68,369,701 47,400,862 43,405,357 26,245,465
189,742 8,406,355 18,952,475 50,922,725
68,559,443 55,807,217 62,357,832 77,168,190
(582,338) —  (530,303) -
67,977,105 55,807,217 61,827,529 77,168,190
698,764 75,245 5,948 13,113
65,893 - 65,893 -
58,914 32,903 21,063 238
- ~ 3,693,449 1,151,654
915,838 2,146,146 1,501,335 2,753,623
243,597 145,668 113,760 23,591
69,960,111 58,207,179 67,228,977 81,110,409
853,500 603,609 - 2,057
996,022 1,059,052 - 1,759
560,794 462,621 356,218 116,722
742,642 611,987 - -
81,086 1,448,980 46,594 1,284,739
73,194,155 62,393,428 67,631,789 82,515,686
732,930 602,836 - -
72,461,225 61,790,592 67,631,789 82,515,686
73,194,155 62,393,428 67,631,789 82,515,686
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2023
2024

31

1.75

2023
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2024 2023 2024 2023
Us$ US$ Us$ US$
5,982 4,248

46,107,117 28,679,944 34,484,142 12,057,848
20,892,691 4,286,249 18,956,650 3,394,733

67,005,790 32,970,441 53,440,792 15,452,581
(3,710,425) (3,865,288) (3,221,908) (3,221,908)

63,295,365 29,105,153 50,218,884 12,230,673

5.27 2023  0.25 5.25
15
2024 2024 2023 2023
US$ US$
31

21,057,844 26,073,548 21,057,844 26,073,548
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15

31
2024 2023
Us$ Us$
0.09
2023 0.09 1,895,206 1,895,206
0.15
2023 0.15 3,158,677 3,158,677
5,053,883 5,053,883
2024 2023 2024 2023
Us$ Us$ Us$ Us$
11,545,603 11,578,600 1,162,365 3,278,601
165,144 375,162 37,171 70,946
11,710,747 11,953,762 1,199,536 3,349,547
2,685,278 3,015,336 2,070,632 2,281,649
337,816 296,560 65,139 59,960
56,494,177 51,156,167 44,689,917 44,214,055
59,517,271 54,468,063 46,825,688 46,555,664
71,228,018 66,421,825 48,025,224 49,905,211
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2024 2023
Uss Us$ us$ uss
SGD 2.00 to 8.06 2024 - 2026 3,183,588 3,183,588 5,451,841 5,451,841
usb 8.53 2025 275,144 275,144 527,799 527,799
MYR 3.65 to 4.65 2032 - 2040 10,772,149 10,772,149 8,614,296 8,614,296
MYR 3.55 to 5.02 2024 - 2025 81,885 76,139 83,273 73,980
PHP 7.01 2025 252,564 234,438 445,013 377,714
IDR 6.60 2024 - 2026 61,754 59,040 - -
VND 6.00 2024 42,792 31,033 79,660 84,620
CNY - - - - 5,274 4,503
SGD 5.25 2024 - 2025 102,682 102,310 131,597 130,906
USD 6.28 to 10.12 2024 51,993,545 51,993,545 49,937,360 49,937,360
MYR 4.46 to 5.30 2024 509,359 509,359 49,192 49,192
IDR 9.24 to 9.56 2024 2,802,049 2,802,049 - -
EUR 5.05 to 5.30 2024 640,359 640,359 791,336 791,336
CNY 4.96 2024 225,912 225,912 378,277 378,278
THB 4.75 2024 322,953 322,953 - -
71,266,735 71,228,018 66,494,918 66,421,825
8,317,456 2023 :13,379,102
13 1.75 5.27 2023 0.25
5.25
SIBOR SORA
2024 2023
Uss Uss Uss Uss
SGD 2.00 to 8.06 2024 - 2026 2,957,853 2,957,853 5,032,453 5,032,453
uSsD 8.53 2025 275,144 275,144 527,799 527,799
usD 6.28 to 7.66 2024 44,689,917 44,689,917 44,214,053 44,214,053
SGD 5.25 2024 - 2025 102,682 102,310 131,597 130,906

48,025,597 48,025,224 49,905,902 49,905,211
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US$ US$ US$ US$
2022 73,140,758 223,650 150,716 73,515,124
197,254,799 - — 197,254,799
(204,132, 765) - —  (204,132,765)
- - (200, 378) (200, 378)
- (2,668,020) (15,270) (2,683,290)
(6,877,966)  (2,668,020) (215,648)  (9,761,634)
(512,689) - 8,159 (504,530)
- - 713,225 713,225
- 3,216,826 15,270 3,232,096
-~ 3,216,826 728,495 3,945,321
2023 31 65,750,103 772,456 671,722 67,194,281
uss$ USs$ Uss$ Uss$
2023 65,750,103 772,456 671,722 67,194,281
163,064,708 - - 163,064,708
(157,132,040) - —  (157,132,040)
- - (403,224) (403,224)
—  (4,345,801) (14,683)  (4,360,484)
5,932,668  (4,345,801) (417,907) 1,168,960
(957,713) - 17,554 (940, 159)
- - 216,908 216,908
— 4,411,141 14,683 4,425,824
— 4,411,141 231,591 4,642,732
2024 31 70,725,058 837,796 502,960 72,065,814
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2024 2023 2024 2023

Us$ Us$ Us$ US$
30,736,531 22,588,616 18,713,584 14,293,263
13,864,365 5,483,023 8,093,072 5,834,195
44,600,896 28,071,639 26,806,656 20,127,458
560,448 139,656 175,761 139,353
653,320 344,078 103,436 200,388
837,796 772,456 603,961 456,627
677,021 620,171 369,748 310,335
1,904,417 2,210,751 1,145,411 1,565,479
- 183,007 - 183,007
5,596,529 6,167,148 4,984,268 6,167,148
54,830,427 38,508,906 34,189,241 29,149,795
203,848 102,830 - -
54,626,579 38,406,076 34,189,241 29,149,795
54,830,427 38,508,906 34,189,241 29,149,795

Tag Polymer Sdn. Bhd.

30

90

262/385
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2024 2023
Us$ Us$
251,163,642 282,705,642
50,889,853 36,354,326
7,400,011 5,948,052
703,670 2,692,737
310,157,176 327,700,757
2024 2023
Us$ Us$
64,895 182,294
29,533 172,564
1,381,001 541,478
361,688 48,492
183,007 -
37,395 65,656
2,245,070 -
267,530 297,089
4,570,119 1,307,573
2024 2023
US$ US$
3,816,177 2,686,907
592,328 529,919
14,683 15,270
1,294 -
64,420 —
4,488,902 3,232,096

oOoOooodn
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20

2024 2023
Uss$ Us$
KPMG International Limited
343,540 248,945
52,297 49,449
KPMG International Limited

82,466 85,679
11 1,105,316 2,764,801
11 (371,191) (23,033)
734,125 2,741,768
38,255 43,696
113 3,950
(8,564) (22,988)
483,261 483,261
1,221,177 1,192,583
410,905 258,077
6,222,821 6,468,666
614,190 565,545
108,911 85,604
26 584,155 (267,147)
1,584,049 1,189,171
23 22,403 20,025
23 1,972,244 358,308
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2024 2023
Us$ Us$
2,114,978 3,080,756
2,004,186 -
(140,297) (38,550)
3,978,868 3,042,206
(77,885)  (286,612)
(123,203)  (183,039)
(201,088) __ (469,651)
3,777,780 2,572,555
14,269,324 19,007,497
(331,501)  (313,132)
13,937,823 18,694,365
2,369,430 3,124,810
— (1,142,232)
21,128  (157,397)
(872,079)  (247,082)
351,274 528,101
(348,379) (39,099)
392,517 544,004
2,004,186 -
(140,297) (38,550)
3,777,780 2,572,555
10
2024 2023
Us$ US$
4,050,206 1,741,280

265/385

oOoOooodn



22

23

266/385

EDINETOOOO
OO000O00o0o00oo00oOo(Esse713)
oOoOooodn

2024 2023
Us$ Us$
10,491,546 16,434,942
21,057,844 21,057,844
0.4982 0.7805
0.4982 0.7805
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2023 15

99.998

OMD

3,047,248

752,436

2024
US$

14,683
1,972,244

22,403
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2023
Us$

15,270
358,308

20,025

2024
US$

(403,224)
(14,683)

2023
US$

(200,378)
(15,270)

(417,907)

(215,648)

Omni Development Sdn.Bhd.
499,990MYR 108,652

2024 31
252,886
OMD

2023

267/385
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US$

6,359,472
994,873
1,732,235
1,563,709
482,933

(11,024,570)
108,652

108,652

2024 31

US$

482,933

(108,652)
374,281

2022 2022 28 Kyoei Denki (S) Pte Ltd
PT Kyoei Denki Trading Indonesia 100 2022 2022

2023 31
14,749,208 876,805
2022 19,234,657
999,591
2022

Us$

4,431,625
4,431,625

268/385
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84,226

US$

21,404
2,315,028
3,954,278
4,094,561

16,517

(5,970,163)
4,431,625

US$

4,431,625

(4,094,560)
337,065

2024 2023
Us$ Us$

230,131 238,255
875,417 895,605
70,959 70,389

1,176,507 1,204,249




26

270/385

EDINETOOOO
OO000O00o0o00oo00oOo(Esse713)

oOoOooodn

2024 2023
Us$ Us$
275,950 466,136

1,859,213 9,076,878
5,856,652 7,330,790
(28,468,457) (24,292,630)
(32,468) (65,842)
(5,915,608) (6,758,624

(48,000) -
31,250 -
(554,118)  (293,919)
24,732 24,413
(44,620) (43,641)
37,123 39,077

- 1,195,725

50,698 47,734
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2024 31 50 2023 30
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2024 2023 2024 2023
Us$ Us$ Us$ Us$

53,382,942 49,368,273 52,046,545 73,281,702
12,016,784 4,209,884 9,720,108 3,802,001
2,413,998 814,751 - 80,835
163,381 1,414,309 60,876 3,652
67,977,105 55,807,217 61,827,529 77,168,190

ECL
ECL
2024 31
ECL
Us$ Us$
2024
60,082,961 -
- 30 5,430,857 -
31 - 60 1,360,615 -
61 - 90 114,972 -
90 987,700 -
90 582,338 (582,338)
68,559,443 (582,338)
2023
47,480,548 -
- 30 6,160,051 -
31 - 60 997,587 -
61 — 90 267,574 -
90 901,457 -

55,807,217 -
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- 30
31 - 60
61 - 90

90
90

2023

- 30
31 - 60
61 — 90
90

2022

2023 31

2023

2024 31

100

2024 31 11
FRS109
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Us$ us$
46,674,136 -
3,125,370 -
2,039,615 -
2,990,432 -
6,997,976 -
530,303  (530,303)
62,357,832 (530,303)
46,687,267 -
8,333,775 -
5,285,567 -
5,810,326 -
11,051,255 -
77,168,190 _
Us$ Us$

386,382 -

(101,176) -

(267,147) -

(18,059) -

584,155 530,303

(1,817) -

582,338 530,303

273/385
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915,838 2023 2,146,146
12
ECL
5,194,784 2023 3,905,277
12
ECL
12
ECL
12

60
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Uss$ USs$ uss$ uss$ US$
2024 31
16 54,830,427 54,830,427 54,626,579 203,848 -
15 14,230,881 18,777,363 2,761,887 5,473,832 10,541,644
15 56,494,177 58,086,745 58,086,745 - -
15 502,960 541,679 361,379 180,300 -
126,058,445 132,236,214 115,836,590 5,857,980 10,541,644
(5,233)
- (2,200,000) (2,200,000) - -
- 2,205,223 2,205,223 - -
68,302
- (1,588,709) (1,588,709) - -
- 1,520,428 1,520,428 - -
63,069 (63,058)  (63,058)
126,121,514 132,173,156 115,773,532 5,857,980 10,541,644
2023 31

16 38,508,906 38,508,906 38,406,076 102,830 -
15 14,593,936 16,674,758 3,357,731 7,444,675 5,872,352

15 51,156,167 52,251,948 52,251,948 -
15 671,722 746,720 329,643 417,077 —
104,930,731 108,182,332 94,345,398 7,964,582 5,872,352
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Uss Uss Uss Uss USs$
34,189,241 34,189,241 34,189,241 - -
3,233,997 3,307,081 2,130,447 1,176,634
44,689,917 45,907,703 45,907,703 - -
102,311 102,683 65,456 37,227 -
- 55,090,915 40,219,182 4,330,089 10,541,644
82,215,466 138,597,623 122,512,029 5,543,950 10,541,644
29,149,795 29,149,795 29,149,795 - -
5,560,250 5,767,879 2,415,080 3,352,799 -
44,214,055 45,119,116 45,119,116 - -
130,906 131,597 60,405 71,192 -
- 53,309,561 43,345,333 4,091,876 5,872,352
79,055,006 133,477,948 120,089,729 7,515,867 5,872,352
2024 31

276/385
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2024 2023
MYR USD SGD MYR USD SGD
Us$ Us$ Us$ Uss$ Us$ Us$
558,942 1,882,484 2,807,177 441,304 556,137 552,073
539,810 2,646,065 1,527,823 519,233 2,570,287 1,580,870
(489,944) (6,515,415)  (835,902) (543,625) (2,447,381) (2,124 ,549)

— (144,976) (3,285,898)

— (1,238,068) (5,582,745)

608,808 (2,131,842) 213,200 416,912  (559,025) (5,574,351)
2024 2023
MYR SGD MYR SGD
US$ US$ US$ US$
549,646 2,479,898 431,327 38,435
427,623 1,153,832 356,864 542,282
(423,119)  (624,228) (479,046) (1,889,173)
— (3,060,165) - (5,163,356)
554,150 (50,663) 309,145 (6,471,812)
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MYR USD SGD

2024 2023 2024 2023
USs$ US$ US$ US$
18,264 12,507 16,625 9,274
(63,955) (16,771) - -
6,396  (167,231) (1,520)  (194,154)
(18,264) (12,507) (16,625) (9,274)
63,955 16,771 - -
(6,396) 167,231 1,520 194,154
2024 2023 2024 2023
Us$ Uss$ Us$ US$
20,892,691 4,286,249 18,956,650 3,394,733

(56,494,177) (51,156,167) (44,689,917) (44,214,055)
(8,152,015) (5,079,530) (2,855,934) (4,660,140)

(43,753,501) (51,949,448) (28,589,201) (45,479,462)

(6,078,866) (9,514,406)

(377,064)

(900, 110)
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FVTPL
50 bp

50bp 50bp 50bp 50bp

Us$ Uss uss USs$
2024 31

(30,394) 30,394 (1,885) 1,885

(30,394) 30,394 (1,885) 1,885
2023 31

(47,572) 47,572 (4,501) 4,501

(47,572) 47,572 (4,501) 4,501

2024 2023
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US$ US$ Us$

5,223 — 5,223
69,960,111 69,960,111
67,005,790 67,005,790
136,965,901 — 136,965,901
— 68,302 68,302

- 14,230,881 14,230,881

- 54,177,107 54,177,107

— 56,494,177 56,494,177

— 124,902,165 124,902,165

GST

281/385

US$ Us$ Us$ Us$

- 5,223 - 5,223
- 68,302 - 68,302
- 11,834,216 - 11,834,216
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US$ US$ US$ Us$ US$ Us$ US$
12 58,207,179 58,207,179
13 32,970,441 32,970,441
91,177,620 - 91,177,620
15 — 14,593,936 14,593,936 - 11,316,461 - 11,316,461
- 38,164,828 38,164,828
16
- 51,156,167 51,156,167
15

103,914,931 103,914,931
GST
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Us$ Us$ Us$

5,223 — 5,223
67,228,977 67,228,977
53,440,972 53,440,972
- 120,669,769

120,669, 769
- 3,232,997 3,232,997
— 34,085,805 34,085,805
- 44,689,917 44,689,917
- 82,008,719 82,008,719

GST
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5,223 - 5,223
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US$ Us$ US$ Us$ US$ Us$ US$
81,110,409 81,110,409
15,452,581 15,452,581
96,562,990 - 96,562,990
- 5,560,250 5,560,250 - 5,018,590 - 5,018,590

- 28,949,407 28,949,407

— 44,214,055 44,214,055

— 78,723,712 78,723,712

GST
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27

2023

CODM
CEO
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2024 2023
Us$ Us$
435,838,839 526,698,134
(125,681,663) (198,997,377)
310,157,176 327,700,757
15,383,117 19,447,076
(1,113,793) (439,580)
14,269,324 19,007,496
257,346,574 252,384,156
(50,683,658) (72,716,225)
206,662,916 179,667,931
167,137,112 168,008,065
(36,240,137) (59,075,890)
130,896,975 108,932,175
US$ US$ USs$
361,688 - 361,688
4,208,431 - 4,208,431

(4,525,346) 36,444 (4,488,902)
(1,745,091) (370,252) (2,115,343)

(584, 155) — " (584,155)
48,492 - 48,492
1,259,081 ~ 1,259,081
(3.236,594) 4,498 (3,232,096)

(1,453,829) (480,092) (1,933,921)
2

267,147 —

67,147

286/385



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00o0o00oo00oOo(Esse713)
oOoOooodn

Group
2024 2023
US$ US$

251,163,642 282,705,642
50,889,853 36,354,326
7,400,011 5,948,052
703,670 2,692,737
310,157,176 327,700,757

Q)
27,869,689 24,559,994

14,672 14,021
27,884,361 24,574,015

(i)

10

28

2024 29 International Material Supplier Co.,Ltd. IMS
348,481,554 10,795,587 IMS
IT IMS
2024
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FRS

FRS 115

2021

FRS

FRS 105 FRS

FRS 36

20

FRS 113

2021

FRS

FRS 116

FRS 111
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FRS 103
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Statements of Minancial position

As st 3 Muarch 2024

Assets

Properiy, plant and equpment
Right-of-ise assets.
Investment in subsidanes
Invesinmnt n poinl eoperation
Investmient i nssociales
Intangible nssets and geodwill
Uther reveavables
Deferred 1ax assets
Non-current psseis

Imvenbories

Trode and nther receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Denvative linancial assets
Current assels

Total assets

Eaquiey

Share capital

Foroign curency translation reserve

Retamed carmimgs

Fipuiny sitributshle t owners of the
Company

Ron-goninolling imeresis

Total equity

Liahilities

Other payables

Lisans and borroaings
Dizferved tox abdlities
Non-ciirrent labilities

Trade and other payahlies
Lpans and bormwings
Provision for laxabion
Derivative linancial labidities
Carrent Nahilities

Tatal liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

U RN T Y

=1

11
12

13

16
15
1]

16
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{hoeari-Plus System Limdted
anid iy subsidiaries
Finaocial statements

Yewr ended 31 Merch 2024

Giroup Company
N Ima 4 01y
UISSs Liss LSS 'ss
20,659,171 17,712,013 2,856,003 3 A% ZHG
538,792 615 AT L{LRRE 130,790
15,304,699 16,564, 106
24,223 N
2422477 1.495434 1,241,074 1. 241,074
4263919 4,747, 150
731030 602 B
457171 HINTI

20074 4640 23,520,724 20,128,008 2144479

316207 59,386,174 16.857.718 31079925

T2.461,225 61,790,592 67,631,789 E2.505,684

7 (05, T 31070441 53,440,792 15,452,581
5123 3213

177 588455 154,147,207 137,035,522 1 20,048, 192

2, 662 915 179,667,931 136 063,620 150,502 671

26,073,548 26,078 548 26,073 548 26,073,548
(I BRER) (311 A0y
6l 1,280 45,173 615 45,THO,428 42,512,470

75,765,945 0,735,757 TILEB53976 68, JR6018
[E]]

75,765,942 0,735,757 71853976 68 586,018

203,848 103,830
11710747 11,953,762 1199536 3340547
430,905 6H6T 139,571 139,571

12,345 500 12,563,250 1,339,107 ER I ANES

54,626,579 AR 406076 150189, 41 20,149,795

LU E] | 54 465041 46 825 688 46,555 6064

4339121 1494776 7R85 608 1732 078
68302

V18551473 6, ] § B4 RT0,537 TR 27,535

130896973 108,932,174 B6.200.644 E1L916.653

206,662 91 5 179,667,935 1 58,063,620 IS0.502.67]

The accompanying notes fomm an integral part of these financial stalements.
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Conselidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
Year ended 31 March 2024

Group
Note 2024 2023
Uss Uss

Revenue 17 310,157,176 327,700,757
Costof sales (269,934,762) {284,250,873)
Gross profit 40222414 43,419,582
Chher income (] 4,570,119 1,307,573
Sales and distribution costs (6328771 (6,130,764)
Administralive expenses (10762971 (D9885757)
(hher operating expenscs (2.274,066)  (6,754,473)
Finance costs 19 (4488902 (3,232,09)
Share of profit of equily-accounted investees

(net of tax) # 331501 313,132
Profit before 1ax 0 14,269 324 19,007,497
Tax expense 21 {(3777.780)  (2,572,555)
Prafit for the vear 10,491,544 16,434 942
Profit attributable b
Crwmers of the Company 10,491 548 16,434,942
Non=controlling intergsis (4) -
Profit for the vear 10,491,544 16,434,942
Other comprehensive income
Toems that are or may he reclassificd subsequently

to profil or lss:
Forcign currency translation differences — foreign

operations (403 02000 (478,243}
Foreign currency translation differences — equity-

sccounted invesices (4,458) 15,163
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (T ATE) (463,080
Total comprehensive income for the vear [[ERIEE T 15,971,862
Total comprehensive income atiributable to:
Orwmers of the Company 10,084,071 15,971,862
Non-conirolling interesis (5) -
Tuotal comprehensive income for the vear 10 (184 660 15,971,862
Earnings per share
Basic carnings per share 22 (14952 (1. TROG
[¥luted carmings per share il 04982 1. TH05

The accompanying notes fomm an integral part of these financial stalements.
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Consolidated statement of cash Mows
Year ended 31 March 2024

Cash fMlows from sperating activities
Pradit belore lax

Adpustments for;

Allowance for absolere ilh‘tjllurits.. et
Amortisation of mtnngible dascls

Depreciation of propery, plant and equipnsem
Depreciation of nghi-of-ese aseis

Ciaam on disposal of property, plant and equipmen

{Reversal of) impairment loss on trade receivables, net

Inventory writlen back

Interest income

Interest expenses

Property, plant and equipmem writlen off

SI'IHIE I'J" II.'LI.I'JL\ 'il1 s ales

Unrealsed loreign exclange loss

‘Operating profit before working capital changes

Changes in:

- mvenlones

= irale and other reocivables

- tradle and other p-jmb]u!

Cash generated from opersting nctivities
Income tax paid

Nt cush genernted from operating activithes

Cush Nows from investing sctivities

Interest pecerved

Pusehase of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from sale of property, planl and eqinpawnt
Increase in inviestment in AN &ssockate

Drecrease/{ Inerease) in amounts due from related companics

{mon-rale
Acquistion of subsidianes, net cash of scquired

Mot cash gencrnted Tromiused in) investing nctivities

Cash Mows from financing activitics
Changes of pledged fixed deposits
Proceeds from boans and borrowings
Repayviment of loans and bormowdings.
Payment of lease habilitics

Interest paid

Dhividends paid

Mot cmsh usedd in linnncing welivilies

Nt imcrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cosh nnd eash equivalents at | April

EiTect ul‘i;'sdu.l.npc rate uschmiions on cash held
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March

Mote

w

4

13
L5
L5
15
15
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{hoeari-Plus System Limdted
anid iy subsidiaries
Framuctar siademenis

Yewr ended 31 Merch 2024

Group
024 023
Li5s Uss
14,269,324 19,007 497
734,125 2,741,768
485 261 481261
1,221,177 1,192,583
410905 258,077
(138000 (541.478)
3B4155 (267, 147)
(B.564) (22.988)
[E RG] {4%.497)
4 488902 3,232,096
1z 3950
(3315003 (313,131
(IR0976) {114, 365)
19,828,232 2561 1,630
21,320,776 4,596,482
(11,783,220 5 158,370
7218, 160 {41 B4 52003
6, 5R3 04E 26,181,962

13.042.973) (21256843

13 540975 24056278

M0l GEE A% 492
{3,348 740 {1,408 504)
6,769,269 1,199,480
600,000} {193 965)
1,230,308 (1,641,092
374.281 (337,065)
4, THG 804 13,377 364)
154,861 (090,500
163,068 ToE 193,254, 7ok
(157,132,400 (204,132,765)
I3, 224) {200,378

(4.360.484) {2683 200
(5.055.883) (5053 883 )

(3, 730060) (15 506,007)

M50 T 6,222,697
20,105,153 23,212,346
{4157,504) {329,300

63 105 565 29,105,133

The accompanying notes fomm an integral part of these financial stalements.
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Notes to the financial statements
These notes form an integral part of the finoncial statements.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 3 August 2024,

Domicile and activities

Omni-Plus Sysiem Limited ("the Company’) is a company incorporated in Singapore. The
address of the Company's regisiered office is Block 994 Bendemeer Road, #00-03 B Central,
Singapore 339943,

The Company’s Japancse Depositary Receipts (“JDR™) were listed on the Growth market of
Tokyva Stock Exchange (“TSE")y on 29 June 2021, 1,201,500 of the Company’s ordinary shares
are held via The Master Trust Bank of Japan, the trust bank on behall of the JDR holders.

The financial statements of the Group as ai and for the year ended 31 March 2024 comprise the
Company and its subsidiarics (together referred 1w as the ‘Group” and individually as *Group
entitics') and the Group’s interest in cquity-accounted invesices,

The principal activities of the Company are to carry on business of irading in resin, chips and
other related accessories for local and overseas cuslomers.

The principal activitics of i1ts subsidiary companics are stipulated in note 6 to the financial
slalements,
Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance

The Mnancial statements have been prepared in accordance with Financial Reponing Standards
in Singapore ('FRS'). The changes io material accouniing policies are desenbed in note 2.5

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the histoncal cost basis excepl a5 otherwise
described in the nodes below.

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in United States Dollar ("USS7), which is the Company's
functional currency,

Use of estimates and judgements
The preparation of the fnancial siaemenis in conformity with FRSs requires management 1o
make judgemenis, estimaics and assumpiions that affect the applicaiion of accouniing policics

and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses,  Actual resulis may differ
from these estimanes.

Fan
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Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongeing basis. Revisions to accounting
eslimates are recognised prospectively.

There are no critical judgements made by management in applying accounting policies that have
a significant effect on the financial stawemenis.

Information about assumptions and cstimation uncenaintics that have a significant sk of
resulting in a material adjusiment within the next lnancial vear are included inthe following note:

= Nolc® - impairment test of intangible asscis and goodwill: key assumplions underlying
recoverahle amounis;
s Note |1 - allowance for obsolescence of inventones

Measurcment of fair valucs

A number of the Group's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fr
values, for both financial and non-financial asscis and liabilitics,

The management of the Group has overall responsibility for all significani fair value
measurements, including Level 3 fair values,

The management regularly reviews signiicant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. 17
third party information, such as broker quotes or pricing services, is used to measure fuir values,
then the management assesses and documenis the evidence obained [rom the third parmies 1o
supporn the conclusion that such valuations meet the reguirements of FRS, mcluding the level in
the fir value hicrarchy in which such valuations should be classified.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses observable market doia
a5 far as possible. Fair values are cateponsed into different levels ina fair value hierarchy based
on the inpuls used in the valuation techniques as follows:

s Level 1) quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or Liabilivies.

e Level 2. inputs other than quoted prices included in Level | that are abservable for the asset
or liability, either directly (i.c. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

« Level3; inpuis Tor the assel or liabiliy that are not based on observable markel daia
{unobservable inpuis).

I the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a labilivy fll e different levels of the
fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categonsed in its entirety in the same level
of the fmir value lierarchy as the lowest level input that 15 significant (o the entire measurement
{with Level 3 being the lowest).

The Group recognises transfors between levels of the fir value hicrarchy as of the end of the
reporting period during which the change has occurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair valees is included in note 26

F&7
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Changes in accounting policies
New accounting standards and amendments

The Group has applied the following FRSs, amendments 1o and interpretations of FRS lor the
first time for the annual period beginning on 1 April 2023:

FRS 117 Insurance Contracts

Amendments 1o FRS | and FRS Practice Statement 2: Duselosire of Accounting Policies
Amendmenis 1o FRS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates

Amendments w0 FRS 12 Deferred Tar Redated to Axsels and Liohilities Arising from o Single
Transaction

s Amendmenis 1o FRS 12 International Tax Reform — Fillar Two Model Rules

The application of these amendmients 1o standards and inerpretations does not have a matenal
effect on the Nnancial statements.

Material accounting policy information

The Growp pdopted Amendments o FRS | and FRS Pmcuice Statement 2: {Mscloswre af
Aceounting Policies Tor the first time in 2024, Albough the amendments did nod resultl in any
changes (o the sccounting policics themselves, they impacted the accounting policy information
disclosed in the financial statements.

The amendments equire the disclosure of “maierial®, rather than ‘significant’, accounting
policies. The amendmenis also provide guidance on the application of materiality 10 disclosure of
accounting policies, assisiing eninies o provide wseful, entiiy-specific accounting pelicy
mformation that users need o understand other mformation in the finoncial statements.

Management reviewed the accounting policics and made updates 1o the information disclosed in

note 3 Material accounting policies (2023; Significant sccounting policies) in certain instances in
line with the amendments.

Material accounting policies

The accounting policics set out below have been applicd consistently (o all perieds presented in
these Minancial statements, and have been applied consisiently by Group enhibes, except as
cxplained in note 2.5, which addresses changes in material accounting policies.

Basis of consolidation

Business combinations

The Group accounts for busingss combinations using the acquisition method when the acquired

setof activities and assets meets the definition of'a business and control is ransferred 1o the Group.

In deterrmning whether a particular set of activities and assels i3 o business, the Group asscsses
whether the sct of assets and activities acquired includes, a1 a minimum, an input and substantive
process and whether the acquired set has the ability to produce outputs.

F5&
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The Group has an option 1o apply a “concentmation test’ that permits a simplificd assessment off
whether an scquired sel of activities and assets is not a business. The optional concentration Lest
is met if substantially all of the fair value of the gross assels acquired is concemrated in & single
identifinble assct or group of similar identifiable asscts,

The consideration wransferred in the acquisition is generally measured at fair value, as are the
identifiable net assets acquired. Any goodwill that arises is tested annually for impaimment (sce
nole 3.8). Any gain on a bargain purchase is recognised in profil or loss immediately. Transaction
gosls are expensed as incurred, except i related w the issue of debt or cquity securitics (sce note
33

The consideration transfemed docs not include amounts refated 1o the scitlement of pre-cxisting
relattonships. Such amounts are generally recogmsed in profil or loss.

Amy contingent consideration payable is recopnised ot fair value at the date of acquisition and
included in the consideration transfered. 10 the contingent consideration that meets the definiton
of a financial instrument s classified as equity, it is not remeasured and seitlement is accounted
for within cquity.  Oitherwise, other contingent consideration 15 remeasured ot foir value at each
reporting date and subsequent changes o the fair value of the contingenl consideration are
recognised in profit or loss,

When share-based paymeni awards (replacement awards) are required 1o be exchanged lor awards
hcld by the acquiree’s emplovees (acquiree’s awards) and relate o past services, then all or a
portion of the amount of the acquirer’s replacement awards is included in measunng the
consideration wanslerred in the business combination. This determination is based on the market-
based value of the replacement awards compared with the market-based value of the acquiree’s
awards and the exient 10 which the replacement awards relaie 1o pre-combination service.

Mon-controlling interests (NCI) are measured at the NCI's proportionate share of the recognised
amounis of the acquiree’s ideniifisble net asscts, an the date of acquisition,

Changes in the Group’s mlerest 16 a subsidiary that do net result in a loss of control are accouned
for as cquity transactions,

(i) Subsidiarics

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed
10, or has rights to, varable returns from s involvement with the entity and has the ability 1o
affeet those retums through its power over the entity, The financial statements of subsidiancs are
included in the consolidated Mnancial statements from Lhe date that control commences until the
date that control ceases.

The accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed when necessary 1o align them with the
policies adopted by the Group. Losses applicable wo the NCI in a subsidiary are allacaied o the

non-controlling interests even if doing 2o causes the non-controlling interests to have a deficit
balance.

FS9
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(i} Acquisition from subsidiaries under commaon control

Business combinations ansing fromy transfers of imeresis in entitics that are under the control of
the sharcholder that controls the Group are accounted for as if the acquisition had occurred at the
beginning of the carliest comparative year presented or, if later, al the date that common control
was established: for this purpose comparatives are restated. The assets and liabilitics acquired are
recognised at the carrying amounts recognised previously in the consolidated financial statements
of the Group's controlling sharcholder. The components of equity of the acquired entities are
added 10 the same components within Group equity and any gain/loss arising is recognised
directly in equity.

{iv) Loss of control

When the Group loses conirol over a subsidiary, it derccogmises the assets and hiabilities of the
subsidiary, and any related MNCI and other components of equity.  Any resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in the former subsidiary is measured at fur
value when control is lost.

{v) Investments in equity-asecounted investee

Associates are those entities in which the Group has significant influence, but nol contrel or joint
control, over linancial and operating policics of these entitics.

Investiments in associate are accounted for wsing the equity method. They are recognised initially
at cost, which includes transaction cosis. Subsequent to initial recognition, the consolidated
financial statements include the Group's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of associate, after adjusiments 1o align the sccounting policies with those of the Group,
from the date that significant influence commences until the date that significant influence ceases.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its investmeni in an associate, the carrying amount of
the investment, together with any long-term interests that form part thereof, 15 reduced (o xero,
and the recopgnition of further losses 15 discontinued execpt to the extent that the Group has an
obligation 1o fund the investce's operations or has made payments on behall of the invesice,

{vi) Joint operation

A joint operation is an arrangement in which the Group has joint control wherchy the Group has
rights o the assets, and obligations for the liabilines, relating 1o an arrangemcent.  The Group
accounts for cach of its asscts, liabilities and transactions, ncluding its share of those held or
incurred jointly, in relation 1o the joint operalion.

{vii) Transactions climinated on consolidation
Intra-group balances and transacuons, and any unrealised income and expenses ansing from inira-
group transactions, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
faing ansing from (ransactions with equity=accounted investee are eliminaed against the

investment to the cxtent of the Group's interest in the investee, Unrealised losses are eliminaicd
in the same way as unrealised gains, but only 1o the exient that there 15 no evidence of impairment.
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{viii) Subsidiaries anid associates in the separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiarics and associatcs are stated in the Company’s statement of financial
position at cost less pecumulated impairment losses,

32 Foreign curréncy
(i} Forcign currcncy (ransactions

Transactions in foreign currencics are translated to the respective functional currencies of Group
eitities at the exchange rates a1 the dates of the ransactions. Monetary asseis and liabilities
denominated in forcign currencics at the reponting date are transiated 1o the functional curmency
at the exchange rate ot that date.

Mon-maoneiary asseis and habilities denoninated in foreign currencics that are measured at far
value are translated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at the date that the Gir value
was determined,  Non-monclary items in a foreign curmency that are measured in terms of
historical cost are ranslated wsing the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.  Forcign
currency differcnces arising on translation are generally recognized in profit or loss.

(i) Forcign operations

The asseis and liabiliiies of forcign operations, mcluding goodwill and fair value adjusimenis
arising of acquisition, are translated 1o United Siates dollars at exchange rates at the reporling
date. The incomse and expenses of forgign operations are translated o United States dollars at
exchange rates al the dates of the ransactions.

Forcign currency differences are recognised in other forcign comprehensive income, and
presented in the foreign currency translation reserve in equity. However, if the operation 15 a non=
wholly-owned subsidiary, then the relevamt proporionate share of the ranslation difference is
allocaied o the NCI, When a forcign operation is disposed of such that control, significant
influence or joint control 15 lost, the cumulative amount in the translation reserve related o that
foreign operation is reclassified o profit or loss as pan of the gain or loss on disposal. When the
Group disposes of only pant of its interest in a subsidiary that includes o forcign operation while
retarmng control, the relevant proporion of the cumulative amount 1 reattnibuted 1o NCL When
ihe Group disposes of only pant of its invesiment in an associaies thai includes a foreign operation
while retaining significant influence or joint control, the relevant proportion of the cumulative
amount 15 reclassified (o profil or loss.

When the setlement of a monetary tem recervable from or payable to 2 foreign operation 15
neither planned nor likely in the foreseeable future, foreign exchange pains and losses arising
from such monctary items are considered to form pan of a net investment in o forcign operation,
These are recognised in other comprehensive income, and are preseoted in the ranslation reserve

in equity.
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i3 Financial instruments
(i) Recognition and initial measurement
Non-derivative Minancial asscis and fnancial labilities

Trade receivables are initially recognised when they are originmed. All other financial assets and
financial liabilives are initially recognised when the Group becomes a party (o the contractual
provisions of the instrument,

A Mnancial asset (unless it is a rade receivable without a significant financing component) of
financial liahility is initally measured at fair value ples, or minus, for an item not gt FYTPL,
transactlion costs that are directly atiributable 1o s acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without
a significani financing component is initially measured at the transaction price,

{iiy Classification and subsequent measuremeni
Non-derivative financial assets

On initial recognition. a financial assct i classificd as measured m amontised cost. which
compriscd cash and cash equivalents, and trade and other receivables.

Financial asscis are not reclassificd subsequent to their initial recognition wnless the Group
changes its business model for managing Mnancial assels, in which case all affecied Mnancial
asseis are reclassified on (he first day of the first reponing period following the change in the
business model,

Financial assefs af amoriised cost

A limancial asset is measured at amonised cost il it meets both of the following conditions and is
not designated as a1 FYTPL:

& jtis held within a business model whose objective is 1o hold assets to collect contraciual cash
Mows; and

* ils contraciual terms give rise on specified dates to cash Mows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the pringipal amount outstanding,

Financial asscts: Business model asscssment

The Group makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a Ninancial asset
is held at a pontfolio level because this best neflects the way the business is managed and
information is provided 1o management.

Transfers of financial assets to third panties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition

are not considered sales for this purpose. consistent with the Group's continuing recognition of
ihe asscts.
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Mon-derivative financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash fows are solely
payments of principal and interest

In asscssing whether the contractual cash Mows are solely payments of principal and imerest. the
Group considers the contraciual terms of the instrument, This includes assessing whether the
financial asset contains a contraciual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual
cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Group

considers:

« conlingeni evenis that would change ithe amouni or tming of cash Nows;

* fcrms thal may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including vanable rate features;

& prepayment and extension features; and

s lerms that limit the Group’s cluim o cash Mows from specified assets (e.p. non=recourse

features).

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely paymenis of principal and interest eriterion if
the prepayvment amount substantially represents unpaid amoums of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding, which may include reasonable additional compensation for carly
termination of the contract. Additionally, for a Gnancial assel acquired a1 a significant discount
or premium o iis contraciual par amount, a feature that permils or regquires propayment at an
amount that subsiantially represents the contractual par amount plus accrued (butl unpaid)
contractual inierest (which mav also include reasonable additional compensation for carly
fermination) is treated as consistent with this criterion if the fair value of the prepayment feature
is insignificant at initial recognition.

Mun-derivative financial assets: Subsequent measurement amid gains and losses

Financial assers of amortised cost

These assels are subsequently measured al amortised cost using the effective interest method. The
amaortised cost is reduced by impairment losses,  Inierest income, foreign cxchange gains and
losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is

recognised in profin or loss.

Non=derivative linancial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and
losscs

Finmaneial liabilities are initially measured at fair value less direetly anribulable wransaction costs.
They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, Iniercsi

expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. These financial
liabilitics comprised interest bearing loans and borrowings and wrade and other payables.
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{iii) Derecognition
Financial asscis

The Group derecognises a financial assel when:
+ ihc contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial assel expire; or
& i irnsiers the rghts wo receive the contractual cash Nows in a ransaction in which either:
- substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assel are iransfemed;
or
< the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewands of
awnership and i1 does not retain conirol of the financial assci.

The Group enlers into transactions wherehy il transfers assels recognised in s statement of
financial position, but retains cither all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the
transferred asseis,

Financial liabilitics
The Group derecognises a financial liability when itz contraciual obligations are discharged or
cancelled, or expire. The Group alse derecognises a Mnancial liability when 115 terms are modificd

and the cash Nows of the modified liabality are substonually different, in which case a new
financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair valee,

On derecognition of a financial lability, ihe difference between the carrving amount extinguished
and the consideration paid (including amy non-cash assels transferred or liabilitics assumed) is
recognised in profin or loss.

{iv) Offsciting
Financial assets and finangial liabilitics are offsct and the net amount presenied in the siatement
of financial position when, and only when, the Group currently has a legally enforceable right o
sel ofl the amounts and it intends either wo senle them on a net basis or 1o realise the assel and
settle the lighility simultancously.

iv) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents compnse cash balances and fixed deposits from the date of scquisilion
that arc zubject 1o an insignificant risk of changes in their fair value and are used by the Group in
the management of its short-term commitmenis.

{vi) Share capital
Orainary shires
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremenial cosis direcily atiributable io the issue of

ordinary shares are recognised as a deduetion (rom equity. Income wx relaling (o ImnsAclion costs of
an equity transaction is accounted for in accordance with FRS 12,
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(i) Derivative financial instruments
Derivative financial insiruments

Derivatives are initially measured at fair value and any dircetly atinibutable transaction costs are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred. Subsequent w initial recopnition, denvatives are measured
at fair value, and changes therein are generally recognised in profil or loss,

{viiip Intra-group financial guaraniees in the separate inancial statcmenis

Finnncial guarnntees are financial instruments issued by the Company that require the issuer (o
make specificd pavments o reimburse the holder for the loss it incurs because a specified debtor
fails 10 mect paymem when due in accordonce with the onginal or modificd terms of a debe
inslrumenL

Finnncial guarantees issued are initially measured at fair value, Subsequently, they are measured
at the higher of the loss allowance determined in accordance with FRES 109 and the amount
initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised in
accordance with the principles of FRS 115,

Expected credit losses (ECLs) are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. ECLs are
measured for finoncial guarantecs issued as the expected payments o reimburse the holder less
any amounts that the Company expeets 1o recover,

i4 Property, plant and equipment

{i) Recognition and measurement

liems of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losscs.

Purchased sofitware that is integral io the functienality of ihe related equipment is capitalised as
part of the cquipment,

If significant paris of an iiem of property, plant and cquipment have different useful lives, they
are accounted for as separaie items (major componenis) of property, plant and equipment,

Any gain or loss on disposal of an ilcm of property, plant and cquipment is recognised in profit
or loss.

{ii) Subscguent costs
The cost of replacing a component of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in
the carrving amount of the item if it is probable that the future cconomic benefits embodied within
the component will Mow o the Group. and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrving amournt

of the replaced component is derccognised. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of propery,
plant and equipment are recognised in profit or loss as incorred.
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(i} Depreciation

Depreciation is based on the cost of an asset less its residual value, Significant components of
individunl assets arc assessed and if @ component has an useful life that is different from the
remainder of that asset. that component is depreciated separatcly.

Depreciation is recognised as an expense in profit or loss on a stmight-line basis over the
cstimated uscful lives of cach component of an §lem of property, plant and cquipment.
Depreciation is not recognised on frechold land.

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative vears are as follows:

Building - 25 years
Compuiers and sofiware - 310 years
Elzetrical and fittings - 10 years
Furniture and finings = 3= |0 years
Leaschold property - 13- 20 years
Machinery = Soycars
Motor vehicles = 3 -K years
Office equipment - 3-10years
Renovation = 5« |0 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and adjusted i appropriate.

is Imangible assets and goodwill
i) Goodwill

Goodwill that arises upon the acquisition of subsidiarics 15 included in inangible asseis. For the
measurcment of goodwill at initial recognition, see note 3.1(i),

Nubseguent measurement
Goodwill 15 measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses,
(i} Other intangible assels

Otlver intangible asscts that are acquired by the Group and have finite useful lives are measured
at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

(i) Amuortisation
Amoriisaiion is calculated based on the cost ol ihe asset, less iis residual value.
Amorntisation is recognised in profit or loss on a straighi-ling basis over the estimated useful lives
of intangible asscis, other than goodwill, from the date that they are available for use. The
estimated uselul lives lor the current and comparative years are as follows:

=  Customer relationships I years

Amortisation miethods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and adjusted il appropriate.

F&l6

305/385



16

a7

i}

EDINETOOOO

OO000O00o0o00oo00oOo(Esse713)

(haroi-Plus System Limited
and ity subsidtariey
Financial statements

Yewrr eoderd 31 Murch 2023

Inveniories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of invemorics is
based on the first-in first-out allocation method,

Work-tn-progress and finished goods compnse cost of direct maicrigls, dircct labour and an
atributable promotion of manufaciuring overheads based on nommal operating capacity. These
costs are assigned on an allocation of direct material and direct labour.

When the inventorics are sold, the corrying amount of these inventories s recognised as an
expense in the period in which the related revenue is recognised.

The amount of any allowance [or write-down ol inventones o net reahsable valuwe and all losses
of inveniories are recognised as an expense in the pened the write-down or loss occurs. The
amouni of any reversal of any allowance for write-down of inventorics, ansing from an increase
i nel realisable value, 18 recopmsed as a reduction 1 the amount of inventories recogmzed as an
cxpense i the period in which the reversal occurs.

Leases

At inception of o contract, the Group assesses whether o contraet 15, or coniains, o lease. A
contrct is, of contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right o control the use of an identified
assel for a period ol lime in exchange for consideration.

As @ lessee

Al commencement or on modification of a contract that contains a lease component, the Group
allocaies the consideration in ihe coniract 1o cach lease component on the basis of s relative
stand-alone prices. However, for the leases of property the Group has elected not Lo separate non-
lease components and account for the lease and non-lcase componems as a single lease
COMPONCHL.

The Group recognises a nght-of-use assel and a lease hability at the lease commencement date.
The right-of-usc asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability adjusted for any kcase payments made at or before the commencement date,

The nghi-of-use asscl 15 subsequently deprecinted wsing the strmighi-line methed from the
commencement date 1o the end of the lease term, unless the lease wransfers ownership of the
underlying assel 1o the Group by the end of the lease term or the cost of the right-of-use asset
reflects that the Group will exercise a purchase option. In that case the right-of~use asset will be
depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset, which is determined on the same basis as
thoze of property and equipment. In addition. the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by
impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease linbility,

The right-of-use asset is subscquently stated ot cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses,
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The lease liability is iniially measured a1 the present value of the lease payments that are not paid
at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate umplicit in the lease or, il that rate
cannol be readily determined, the Group®s incremenmtal Borrowing rate, Generally, the Group uses
its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate,

The Group deiermines its incremental borrowing rate by obiaining interest rates from various
external financing sources based on the location of the entities which have the lease lishilitics.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the fease liability comprise the following:

fixed povments, including in-substance fixed payments;

varable lease pavments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index
or rate as al the commencement date:

amounts expected (o be pavable under a residual value guarantee; and

the exercise price under a purchase option that the Group is reasonably cenain o exercise,
lease paymenis in an oplional rencwal period if the Growp is reasonably certain 1o exercise an
extension option, and penaliies for early termination of a bease unless the Group is reasonably
cerlain not Lo terminate carly.

The lease liability s measured at amortised cost using the effcctive interest method, It is
remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or
rate, il there is a change in the Group's cstimate of the amount ¢xpecied 10 be pavable under a
residual value guarantee, if the Group changes its asscssment of whether it will exercise a
purchase, exiension or iermination option or il there is a revised in-subsiance fixed lease payment.

When the lease liability 15 remeasured in this way, a comesponding adjustment is made 10 the
carrying amount of the nghi=of-usc asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset has been reduced 1o zero.

The Group presems right-of-use assets that do nod meet the definition of investment properly in
‘right-of-use asseis” and lease liabilitics in “loans and borrowings” in the statement of financial
position,

Shart-term leases and leases of low-valve axsels

The Group has clecied nol 1o recognise right-of-use asscts and lease liabilities for leases of low-
value assets and short-term leases, including IT cquipment.  The Group recognises the lease
payments associated with these lenses as an expense on a straight-ling basis over the lease werm.
Impairment

Non-derivative financial asseis

The Group recognises loss allowances for ECLs on financial assels measured a amonised cost
and imtra-group financial guaranice contracts (FGO),
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Loss allowances of the Group are measured on either of the following bases:

* 12-momh ECLs: these are ECLs that result from default events that are possible within the 12
months afler the reporing date (or for a shoner period if the expected life of the instrument is
less than 12 monihs); or

» Lifeuime ECLs: these are ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected
life of a inancial iNStrument oF Comirc asseL

Nimplified approach

The Group applics the simplified approach to provide for ECLs for all trade receivables, The
simplified approach requires the loss allowance 1o be measured at an amount equal 1o lifetime
ECLs.

Greneral approuch

The Group applies the general approach 1o provide for ECLs on all other financial instruments
and FGCs. Under the general approach, the loss allowance is measured at an amount cqual o |2-
maonth ECLs at iminial recognition.

At cach reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk of a financial instrument has
increased significantly since initial recognition. When credit isk has increased significantly since
initial recognition, loss allowance is measured at an amount equal 1o lifetime ECLs,

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since
mnitial recogmuon and when estimating ECLs, the Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available withowt wndue cost or effort.  This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information and analvsis, based on the Group's historical experience
and informed credit assessment and includes forward-looking information,

If credit risk has not inereased significantly since imitial recognition or if the credit quality of the

financial instruments improves such that there is no longer a signilicant ingrease in credit risk

since mmitial recopmition, loss allowance is measured at an amount cqual o 12-month ECLs,

The Group considers o financial asset 1o be in default when:

*  jhe borrower is unlikely 1o pay its credii obligations io the Group in full, without recourse by
the Group to actions such as realising security {if any is held): or

* (he financial asset is more than 90 days past duc,

The Company considers a FGC 1o be in defauli when the debior of the loan is unlikely 1o pay its

credil obligaiions (o the creditor and the Company in full, withoul recourse by the Company io

actions such as realising security (il any 15 held).

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs 15 the maximum contractual peniod over
which the Group is exposed to credin risk.

3
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Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are probability-weighted estimates of credit losses.  Credin losses are measured at the
present value of all cash shortfalls {i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in
acecordance with the comract and the cash Mows that the Group expeets 1o receive). ECLs are
discounted at the effective interest rate of the financial asset,

Credit-imipaired fingncial assels

Al each reporting date, the Group assesses whether financial assets carried @ amontised cost are
credit-impaired, A financial assct is “credit-impaired” when one or more cvents that have a
detrimental impact on (the estimated future cash Mows of the linancial asset have ocourred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

significant Mnancial difficulty of the debior;

a breach of contract such as a default or being more than 90 dayvs past due:

the restructuning of a loan or advance by the Group on terms that the Group would not consider
otherwise;

it 15 probable that the debtor will enter bankmptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

the disappearance of an active market for a seccurnity because of fimancial diMiculiies.

Presentation of alfowance for ECLs in the statement of firnancial positfon

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amontised cost are deducted from the gross
carrying amount of these assets.

Loss allowances for FGC are recognised as a fnancial liability o the exient that they exceed the
initial carrving amount of the FGC less the cumulied income recognised.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial assci is writen off (either partally or in full) o the
extent that there 15 no realistic prospect of recovery. This is gencrally the case when (he Group
determines that the debior does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sulTicient
cash flows to repay the amounts subject (o the wnte-off. However, financial asscis that are writlen
ofT could still be subject io enforcement activities in order 1o comply with the Group’s procedures
for recovery of amounts duc.

{iiy Associate
Amn impairment loss in respect of an associale 18 measured by comparing the recoverable amount
of the investment with its carrving amount in accordance with the requirements for non-Mnancial
assels. An impaimment loss is recognised in profitor loss. An impairment loss is reversed if there

has been a favourable change in the estimates vsed 1o determing the recoverable amount and only
io the exient that ihe recoverable amopunt increases,
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(i} Non-financial asscis

The carrying amounts of the Group's non-financial assets, other than inventorics and defierred 1ax
assels, are reviewed al cach reporting date to determine whether there 1s any indication of
impairment. I any such indication exisis, then the assei’s recoverable amount is estimated. For
goodwill, the recoverable amouni is estimated cach yvear at the same time. An impairment loss is
recogmsed i€ the carrving amount of an asset or its reloted cash-penemuing unit { 'CGU'y exceeds
its estimated recoverable amount.

The recoverable amaunt of an assetor CGL is the greater of 118 value in use and its fair value less
costs of disposal. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash fMlows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market asscssments of the time
value of money and the risks specific 1o the asset or CGU, For the purpose of impairment testing,
assels thal cannol be tesied individually are grouped together into the smallesi group of asscis that
generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of
other assets or CGUs, Subject (o an operating segment ceiling test, for the purposes of goodwill
impairment testing, CGUs 1o which goodwill has been allocated arc aggregated so that the level
at which impairment testing 15 performed reflects the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored
for intemal reporting purposes.  Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated 1o
groups of CGUs that are expecied to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or less. Impairment fosses recognised in respect of
CGUs are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated 1o the CGU
{group of CGUs), and then o reduce the carrving amounts of the other assets in the CGU (group
of CGLUS) on a pro rafo basis,

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. In respect of other assels, impaiment
losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the
loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change
in the estimates used (o determing the recoverable amount, An impairment boss is reversed only
1o the extent that the asset’s carrying amount docs not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determuned, netl of depreciation of amortisation, il to tmpaorment loss had been
recognised.

Goodwill that forms part of the carmying amount of an invesiment in an associale is nol recognised
separately, and iherefore is not tested for impairment separately. Instead, the entire amount of the
investment in an associate s wested for impaimment as a single assel when there 15 objective
evidence that the investment in an associale may be impaired.

i9 Employee benefits
Definmed contribution plan
Opligations for contributions o defined contribution pension plans are recognised as an employee

benefit expense in profit or loss i the periods during which relaied services are rendered by
emplovees.
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Short-term emplayee bewefis

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed
as the related service is provided, A liability is recognised for the amount expected 1o be paid
under short-term cash bonus il the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation 1o pay this
amount a5 a result of past service provided by the employee, and the obligation can be estimated
relinbly,

Unntilised annual feave

The equivalent cost of cmplovees’ entitlements to unutilised annual leave as ot the end of cach
financial peried is accrucd for and recognised as an expense in profit or loss in the period in which
the related emplovment services are rendered.

The Group has not made any provision for emplovee leave entitlement as the amounts are
insignificant.

3.10 Provisions

Provisions are reviewed a1 each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate,
Where the effect of time value of money 1s material, the amount of the provision s the present
valug of the expenditure expected 10 be required 1o settle the obligation.

ER N Revenue recogmiion
Sales of poods and services

Revenue from sale of goods and services in the ordinary course of business is recognised when
the Group satisfies a performance obligation (*PO’) by transferming control of a promised good or
service (o the customer. The amount of revenue recognsed is the amount of the transaclion price
allocated to the satisfied PO,

The transaction price 15 allocated 1o each PO in the contract on the basis of the relative stand-
alone sctling prices of the promised goods or services. The individual siandalone selling price of
a good or service that has not previously been sold on a stand-alone basis, or has a highly variable
selling price, is determined based on the residual portien of the transaction price afier allocating
the transaction price 1o goods and/or services with observable siand-alone selling prices. A
discount or variable consideration 15 allocated 1o one or more, but not all, of the performance
obligations il it relates specifically o those PO,

The iranskciion price is the amount of consideration in the contract 1o which the Group expects
to be entitled in exchange for transferring the promised goods. Consideration payable 1o o
customer 15 deducted from the transaction price if the Group docs not receive a scparale
identifinble benefit from the customer.

Revenue from sales of goods and senvices are recogmsed at a point in tme following the
satisfaction of the PO.

312 Finance costs

The Group's finance costs include imerest expense and the fair value loss on denivative financial
assels and labilites.
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Interest expense 15 recogmsed using the effective interest method.

The “effective interest rate” is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or
receipts through the expecied life of the financial instrument 1o the gross carryving amount of the
financial asset, or the amortised cost of the financial liability,

Income tax

Tax expense comprises current and deferred ax, Current tax and deferred ax are recognised in
profit or loss ¢xcepl o the extent that it relates o a business combination, or llems recogmsed
direetly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

The Group has determined that interest and penalcs related 1o income taxes, including uncertain
tax treaiments, do not meet the definition of income taxes, and therefore accounted for them under
FRS 37 Provivions, Contingent Liabilities and Conlingent Assels,

Current tax is the expected lax pavable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year,
using tax rtes enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tnx
pavable in respect of previous vears. The amount of current tax pavable or receivable is the best
estimate of the tax amount expecied to be paid or received that reflects uncertainty related 1o
income taxes, if any, Current ax also includes any tax arising from dividends,

Current tax asseis and linbilities are offset only if ceriain crifena are mei.

Deferred 1ax 15 recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carmving amounts of
assets and liabilities for fmancial reporting purposes and the amounts used (or laxation purposcs.
Delerred iax is not recogmised for:

o emporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in o transaction that is
not 4 business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable prodit or loss;

=  emporary differences related 1o investment in subsidiary and associates 1o the extent that
the Group is able to conirol the timing of the reversal of the wemporary difference and it is
probable that they will not reverse in the foresecable future: and

& (axable wmporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

The measurement of defierred 1axes reflects the tax consequences that would follow the manner in

which the Group expecis, at ihe reporiing daie, to recover or seiile ihe camying amouni of its asseis

and linbilities. Deferred tax is measured ot the tax rates that are expected to be applied to

wmporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been cnacted or

substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are ofTset only il cemain criteria ane met.
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Deferred 1ax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible
tempaorary differences 1o the extent that it 1s probable that future tnxable profits will be available
against which they can be used. Future taxable profits are determined based on the reversal of
relevant taxable temporary differences.  If the amount of taxable temporary differences is
insulficicn 10 recognise a deferred 1ax asset in full, then luwre taxable profits, adjusied for
reversals of existing temporary differences, are considered, based on the business plans for the
Group, Defemred 1ax assets are reviewed at each reponting date and are reduced (o the extent that
il is no longer probable that the related wx benelit will be realised: such reductions are reversed
when the probability of future xable profits improves,

ERE Earnings per share

The Group presemis basic and diluted camings per share daa for its ordinary shares. Basic
carnings per share is caleulated by dividing the profit or loss anributable wo ordinary sharcholders
of the Company by the weighted-average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year,
adjusted for own shares held. Diluted camings per share 15 determined by adjusting the profit or
loss aunbutable to ordinary sharcholders and the weighted-average number of ordinary shares
outstanding, adjusted for own shares held, for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares,
which compnse convertible notes and share option granted io employee.

315 Segment reporting

Anoperaling segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activitics from which
it may cam revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relale 1o
transactions with any of the Group's other componienis, All operating segmenis” operaling resulls
are reviewed regularly by the Group's CEQ (the chicl operating decision maker) to make
decisions about resources 1o be allocated o the sepment and to assess its performance, and for
which discrete financial information is available,

il6 Mew standards and interpretations not adopted

A number of new standards, imterpreiations and amendments to standards are effective for annual
periods beginning afler | April 2023 and earlier application s permitted; however, the Group has
not early adopted the new or amended standards and interprelations in preparing these financial
slalemenis,

The following amendments (o FRSs arc not expecied to have a significant impact on the Group's
eomsolidaied financial statemenis and the Company's statement of financial position,

o Classification of Liohilities as Current or Non-current and Non-current Liabilities with
Covenanis { Amendments 1o FRS 1)
Lease liabilite in a Sale and Leaseback (Amendments to FRS 116)
Supplier Finance Arrangements (Amendments 1o FRS 7 and FRS 107y
Lack af Exchangeability { Amendments 1o FRS 21)

F&24
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{hoeari-Plus System Limdted

anid iy subsidiaries

Framuctar siademenis
Yewr ended 31 Merch 2024

Building and lcaschold propertics of the Group with a carrying amount of LUSSE.317.456 (2023:
US503,379,102) arc mortgaged 1o financial institutions 1o scowre the Group's bank loans (Note

L5).

Right-of-use assets

Group

Cust

Al April 2022

Additions

Derecognition of right=of-use
assels

Exchange difference

An 31 March 2023

Additions

Derecogmion of right-of-use
assels

Exchange difference

A3l March 2024

Accumulated depreciation

ALl April 2022

Depreciation

Derccognition of nght-of-use
assels

Exchange difference

Al 31 March 2023

Depreciation

Derecognition of right-of-use
A53C1S

Exchange difference

At 31 March 2024

Carrying amounis
ALl April 2022

Al 31 March 2023
AL 31 March 2024

317/385

Stall
Office residential Factory
building unit building Total
Lss Uss Uss Uss
174,959 53,726 113367 342,052
348004 30,076 361,021 739,191
(10, 39%) - - {10,398)
{6, 304) {2,500} (25.966) (34,836)
S04, 291 B1.2% 448,422 1036009
151,069 35,839 153,490 370,394
(44,6000 ) = = (44,601)
{6,705 (3,499} {42.759) (52967}
636,050 113.636 559,153 1,308,839
71145 016 iy, | 300 187,391
113,054 20,60k 124,423 238,077
(10, 398) - - {10L398)
{3.217) {2.300) (12.033) {17,559}
1740, 584 63,407 178,520 417,511
185,376 17,370 20K, 159 410505
(44,600) = = (<H,601)
(7.460) (3,499 {2, 509) (13.768)
303,809 £2 278 383,870 TT0.047
103514 3610 47,237 154,661
335,707 |2 889 269 5012 15,498
332151 31,358 175,283 538,792
F528
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(i Plus Kpstem Limised
amil iy subsidiaries
Framuctal slademenis

Yeewr ended 31 Merch 2024

Stalf
Office residential
huilding unit Total
Company USss Uss USs
Cuost
Al April 2022 = = =
Additions 141,450 30,076 171.556
At 31 March 2023 141 480 30,076 171,556
Al April 2023 141,480 0,076 171,556
Additions - 35839 35,839
At 31 March 2024 141 4541 65,915 207,395
Accumulated depreciation
Av 1 April 2022 - - -
Depreciation 23,580 17,186 400, T
Ar 31 March 2023 23,580 17,156 40, Ty
Anl April 2023 23,580 17,186 40, Tk
Depreciation 47,160 17,370 64, 530
An 31 March 2024 70,740 34,556 105,296
Carrving amounts
Arl April 2022 = = =
Ar 31 March 2023 1175904 12,890 130,790
Ar 31 March 2024 Tib, 7440 31,359 102,099
Investment in subsidiaries
Company
Note 24 223
Uss Uss
Unguoted shares, at cost 16,5604, 106 13,133,394
Additional capital injections {a) 974,300 -
Acquisition of subsidiarics 4 10% 652 3.610,722
Capital reduction - {18010y
17647058 16,564,106
Imipairment losses (2,342 35%)

15,304, 6494 1,568, 10

{a} During the fmancial vear ended 31 March 2024, the Company injected additional capital
of USS464.300 and USSS10,000 into PT Omni-Plus Sysiem and PT Scriosa Kimia
respectively. There has been no change in sharcholding of the two subsidiaries which are
wholly-owned by the Company.

F529
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{hoeari-Plus System Limdted
anid iy subsidiaries
Framuctar siademenis

Yewr ended 31 Merch 2024

Details of significant subsidiarics are as follows:

Effective
percentage of
Country of Principal equity held by
Name of subsidiarics incorporation activitles the Company
24 2m23
o e
Nihon Pigment Sdn. Bhad Malaysin Processing and 100 lod
compounding of
thermwplastics
OPS Technologies Sdn. Bhd Malaysia Gieneral trader of plastic . 100 10dy
compnds
Crmme-Plus Svatem Shangha Limited The Peoples”  General trader of plastie 100 104k
Republic of China compoumgds
PT. Ommi Plas Sysiem Indonesia Genern] imder of plastie 100 lTod
compaounads
Cepen Trading Sdn. Bhd. Moalaysin Gieneral trader of plasie 100 10k
compaoumds
O Plus System Phalippines Ine. Philippimes Processuig and 100 10
compouding of
thermasplastics
DF Cheneals e, Lad, Srgapore Wholesale of chemeeals 100 106k
and chemical products
I-FT Trade Philippines, Ing. PFhilippimes Genern] trader of plastic 100 10dr
conipids
Alpha Chemmse Pre, Lid ! Singapone Crenieral irader of plastic 100 1o
compimds
1. Senbesa Kimm Indonesia Crenernl trader of plasie 10D 104k
compotids.
Tags Polymer Sdn, Bhd, Malaysia Cieneral irader of plasiie 100 10y
compmmals
Omm=1"hes System Japan Corporation Jnpan Consulling' General | (3 104y
irader of plastic
compiiineds
O Plus Systen {Thailaind) Co., Lid Tlsaikancl Ceneral trader of plastic 106 104
compomds
Kyoei Denki (3) Pre Lid Singapone Cieneral trader of plastic 100 104y
comipounds
Cimen Developmendt Sdn Bhad Malaysia Cieneral trader of plastic 90,995 -
womipomnads
O Investments Ple Lid Ringapore Twvesiment holding 10 -
Haoded throngh sulsidieries
DP Chemicals Vietnam Co., Lid. Vicinum Distnbution of industnal 100 10d
colormnts specialy
chemicals
FT Kyoeei Denks Trading Insbonesia Indonesia Ceneral trader of plasie 100 10k
compmmids
K Advanced Mutenals, Ine United States  General irader of plastic 100 iy
compounds
! Unider members” voluntnry Iuquidation
F530
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{hoeari-Plus System Limdted
anid iy subsidiaries
Framuctar siademenis

Yewr ended 31 Merch 2024

The movements in allowance for impairment loss in respect of invesiments in subsidiaries during
thie year are as follows:

Company
24 2023
USss Uss
Al the beginning of the Nnancial year - =
Impairment loss during the vear 2,342,359 -
Al the end of the financial vear 2342359 -

Dwring the vear ended 31 March 2024, management identified that there was an impairment
indicator with regards o the camrying amount of its investments in a subsidiary, which has become
dormant with no business activitics, Management assessed thar the recoverable amount from the
subsidiary (o be less than its carmying amount of 115 cost of investment and accordingly recognised
an impairment loss of USS2 342 359 10 profil and loss with respect 1o the investment in the
subsidiary, The recoverable amount was determined based on the net assets value of the subsidiary
on a realisation basis.

Investment in joint operation

Company
024 2023
LS 8%
Joinl operation 24,223 24,223
Details of significant joinl armangement are as follows:
Effective
percentage of
Country of Principal cquity held by
Name of Company incorporation activities the Company
24 2023
Yo Yo
Ommi-Plus System Plastics Thailand Impon and export kL 0

Co., Lud plastics
Juint operation

The Company s o 39% (2023: 39%) parner in Omni-Plus System Plastics Co., Lid, a joint
arrangement formed with Thanasan Maiscaumso and Yanee Ywhakaichaisn.

F&31
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anid iy subsidiaries
Framuctar siademenis

Yewr ended 31 Merch 2024

Investment in associates

Gromip Comjany
024 2023 024 023
USs 'S5 Uss Uss
Interest in associales 1,962 694 1,362 604 1,541,074 1,241,074
Share of resulis in associales 459783 132,740

2422477 1,495,434 1541074 1.241.074

Dietails of significani associate companies are as follows:

Effective
percentage of
Country of Principal cquity held by
Name of Company incorporation activitics the Company
2024 2023
o %
Small World Aceelerator Ple. Lid. Singapore Investment holding 48 48
(*5WA") company
B&P Technologies Pie. Lid. Singapore Produce and sales of 41 40
{'RPT") polymer compounds

The following summanses the financial information of cach of the Group’s material associate
based on the respective Ninancial staemems prepared in accordance with FRS.

RPT SWA Tutal
USS USS Ss

024
Revenue 8,075,705 -
Profit/{loss) for the year Total

Comprehensive income B40672 (9,932}
MNon-current assels 2,080,450 832,697
Current asseis 4934012 326,765
Mon-current liabilitics (15,762) -
Current liabilities (2151041 (152,352)
Net assets 4,847 659 1,007,110
Group's interest in net assets of investee at

beginning of the vear 1,002,796 492 638 1495434
Groups share o2
= Profit for the vear 336,268 (4,767} 331,501
= 01 - Foreign currency translation difference g (4.458) (4,458}
= Total comprehensive income 336,268 {9.225) 327.043
Group's contnbution during the year 00, (00 - G, DD
Carrving amount of interest in invesiee at

end of the year 1,935,064 4R3I 413 2432477

F532
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Framuctar siademenis

Yewr ended 31 Merch 2024

RPT WA Totul
Uss Uss LSS
2023
Revenue 9000394 -
Profit/{loss) for the year Total
Comprehensive income 796,249 (11,597
Non-current assels 539,530 H43 388
Current asscls 4,175,106 417,013
Won-current liabilitics (15,762) -
Current liabilities (2 191,879) (1534909
Nt wssats 2,506,989 1,006,911
Group's interest in net assets of investee at
heginning of the vear 6HE, 20 2EB 978 973,274
Group's share ol:
= ProfiviLoss) for the year 318500 {5,368} 313,132
= OC1 - Foreign currency translation difference = 15,163 15,163
= Total comprehensive income 3185041 9.795 328,295
Group's contribution during the year - 193 863 193,863
Carryving amount of interest in investee at
end of the year 1,002,796 492 638 14954314
Intangible assets and goodwill
Customer
Goundwill  Relationships Tuostal
Group U'Ss LSS Uss
Cust
An 1 April 2022, 3] March 2023 and
31 March 2024 2,023 79 4 832 609 6,856,309
Accumulated amortisation
Ar 1 April 2022 - 1,623,958 1,625,958
Amortizalion - 483,261 483,261
An 3] March 2023 - 2109219 2,109,219
ALl April 2023 = 2,109.219 2,109,219
Amorlisation - 483,261 483 261
Ar 31 March 2024 - 2,592 450 2,592 480
Carrving amounts
Arl April 2022 2,023, 7H) 3,206,651 5,230,441
At 31 March 2023 2,023,791 2,723,390 4747, 180
An 31 March 2024 2,023, 7H) 2,240,129 4,263,919
F533
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Yewr ended 31 Merch 2024

Amaortisation
The amartisation of other inangible assets in included in “other operating expenses”
Impairmrent testing for CGUs containing goodwill

For the purposes of impaimment testing, goodwill has been allocated 10 the Group’s CGLs
{operating divisions) as follows:

24 2023
Uss LSS
Carrving amounts
DF Chemicals Group 694,434 04 434
Cepeo Trading Sdn, Bhd, 992,680 2GR
PT Seniosa Kimia 336,670 336,670

2,023,790 2,023,790

The recoverable amounis of ihese CGUs were based on its value in use, determined by discounting
the pre-tax fumre cash Mows 1o be gencrated from the continuing use of the CGL.

Key assumptions used in the estimation of value in use were as follows:

Group
024 2023
Ya Y
Forecasied revenue growth mie (average of nexi five years) 11.5-13.7 0n-174
Forecasted gross profit margin (average of next five years) 58=102 51=12
Discount rate 11.0=22.6 120=15.5
Terminal growth rate 21-25 25

Revenue growth rates were forecasted taking mio secount the estimated sales order book lor the
next 1 vear and the forecasied sales for the following next four years, It was assumcd that sales
price would grow a1 a constant margin above forecast inflation over the next five years.

The discoum rte was a pre-tax measure based on the rate of 10-vear govemment bonds issued by
the government in the relevant countries where the entities are located and in the same currency as
the cash Mows, adjusied for a nsk premium 1o reflect both the increased risk of investing in equitics
gencrally and the systematic sk of the specific CGL,

A long-term terminal growah rate into perpetuity has been determined as the long-term inflation
rates and nominal GDP growth for the countries i which the CGU operates.

Based on the cash flow projections derived from financial budgeis approved by management
covering a five-year peniods, management has assessed that no impairment is necessary as at 31

March 2024 and 31 March 2023, as the cstimated recoverable amounts of the respective CGU
exceeded its carmying amount.

FS34
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Framuctar siademenis

Yewr ended 31 Merch 2024

Management has identified that a reasonably possible change in the key assumption could causc the
carmyving amount 1o exceed the recoverable amount. The fwllowing table shows the amount by which
the assumplion would need to change for the estimaied recoverable amount o be cqual 1o the

carmying amount.
Change required for
carrving amount (o cqual
the recoverable amaount
024 2023
Yo ]
Group
Forecasied revenue growth mie {average of next five years) 1.7-9.6 81104
Forecasted gross profit margin (average of next five years) 06=29 06=21
Discount rate 1.9-8.3 0.0 2.0
Terminal growth rate 1,2 =109 20-175
Deferred tax assets and liabilities
Assels Liabilities
024 2023 024 2023
Liss Uss .53 LSS
Group
Receivables {6,310 - - -
Invemorics { 134 495) { 106, 2849 - =
Plant and equipment - - 316,558 264,151
Provision (75.377) (33,163) - -
Employee benefin (42 633) {21.353) - -
Tax losses carry-lorwards (287.657) (135,167) - -
Intangible asscis e = 291,092 367,006
Oiher items (H7.944) (172481 - -
Deferred tax (asscts)liabilitics (634 416) (468,453) G, |50 631,247
Set-ofT ol ax 177,245 124,580 (177.245) (1245800
Met deferred 1ax {asse1s)’
liabilities (457 171} (343,873} 430,505 S 667
Assels Liabilities
4 2023 024 2023
Uss Uss Uss (3.3
Company
Plant and equipment - - 97,630 139,571
Provision - - BOLOEY -
Inventories (35 1458) - -
Deferred tax (assets)liabilities (38, 148) 177,719 139,571
Set-ofT ol 1% 38,148 — (38,148} -
Net deferred 1ax {asse1s)/
liahilitics - - 139,571 139,571
F535
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Yewr ended 31 Merch 2024

Movements in deforred 1ax (assets)/ linbilities duning the vear are as follows;

Recopnised in
statement of
Al comprehensive AL
1 April income Exchange 31 March
2022 {Mate 21) difference 2023
LSS USs USS Uss
Group
Receivables {20094 20001 a8 -
Inventorics (125.0349) 15,867 2853 (106, 289)
Plant and equipment 340,693 (6% 560 (6,982 264,151
Iniangible asseis 442 5% (75,5021 - 367,004
Provision (11,426) {21,964) 27 (33,163)
Employee bene (19.8560) (2,286) TU3 (21.349)
Tax losscs carry-forwards - {135, 168) - (135,168)
Oiher items 30,382 {183,030 (19.825) (172482}
655,251 {465,651 {22 R{}x) 162,794
Recognised in
statement of
Al comprehensive Al
1 April incame Exchange 31 March
2023 (Mute 21) dilference 2024
Uss Uss USS LSS
Group
Receivables - (6,327) 217 (63107
Inveniorics {106, 289y (35,742) 7,530 (134,495}
Plant and equipment 264,151 60,767 {83600} 316,558
Imangible assets IRT 094 (75,502 - 291,592
Provision (33,103) (44,315) 2,101 (75,377
Employee benefin (21.349) (23,288} 2,004 (42.633)
Tax losses carry-Torwards {135, 168) (157.051) 4,562 (287,657}
Oher items (172.482) ] 3968 (£7.944)
| 62,794 {201 (158) 12028 {26,266
Recognised in
Al siatement of At
1 April comprehensive 31 March
w22 income 023
Uss LSS Uss
Company
Invenlories (54, 889) 54,8849 -
Plant and equipment 154 460 (54 K89} 139,571
139,571 - 139,571
F536
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Recognised in
AL statement of Al
1 April comprehensive 31 March
2023 income 2024
Uss LSS USs
Company
Plani and equipmeni 139,571 (41,5941} 97.630
Provision - R 159 00,080
laventories - (3% 14%) (38,148}
139,571 - 139,571
Inventories
Group Company
MNole 2024 1023 224 2023
LSS Uss LSS Lss

Raw matenals 2615075 4,018,650 - -
Finished goods 40,348 417 59520060 19726041 33723 850

42963492 61530610 19726041 33723850
Less: Allowance for ohsolele

inventories
Balance brought forward (41534360 (1425473 (2.643925) (989,290
Allowance made for the
financial vear 20 | (L105316) (2,764,800 (224.398)  [1.654,635)

Allowance reversed 20 371,191 23,033 - -
Exchange difference 40,286 13,805 - -
Balanee carried forward (4.847275)  (4,153.436) (2.868.323) (2.643.925)

I NI621T7  S936 074 16,857 TIR 31079925

During the vear ended 31 March 2024, inventonies of USS267 567,376 (2023: USS280.769,104)
were recognised as an expense during the vear and included in “cost of sales”,

Allowanee of USSL 105316 (2023: USS2 764801 was recognised during the year as these
inventorics are slow moving, USS371,191 (2023 US%23.033) of the allowance was reversed as
the inventories were subsequently sold and was included in the profit or loss.
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Trade and other receivables

Group Company
2024 2023 2024 2023
Uss Uss Lss Liss
Trade receivables:
- Third partics 683697001 47400862 43 405357 26,245 465
- Related companics 189,742 K406355 18952475 50922725

GH559.443  S5807.217 62357831 77168190

Less: Allowance for doubiful
receivables (583,338) = (530,303) -
GTOTTI05 55807217 61827579 770168190

Ohher receivables GUE T 75,245 5048 13,113
Interest receivables 65,893 - 635 893 -
Cost of recharges S804 32903 21063 23H
Amounis due from subsidiarics
(non-trade) - ~ 3693449 1,151,654
Amounts due from relaled
companies (non=trade) 915,838 20146, 146 1.501.335 2753623
Deposits 243 597 145,668 113,760 23,591
2960111 SR207.17 67228977 R1.110.409
Tax recoverable 853,500 63,609 - 2,057
GST receivables 9 (122 1,059,052 - 1,759
Prepayments 560,794 462,621 356218 116,722
Prepaid tax 742,642 611,957 - -
Advances made (o supplicrs H10EG | 445950 46,554 1,284,739

73,194,155 62393428 6T.631,789  H2515.680

Trade and other receivables:

- Mon-curreni T32930 G2 836 = =

= Current 72461.225 61, THL592  GT63LTRY B2 515686
73194155 62393428  GT63I17ED 82515686

Ameninats dse from sobsidiaries and related companies (uon-trade)

Non-trade amounts due from subsidianies and related companies are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

FS38
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Cash and cash equivalents

Group Company
2024 2023 024 nzy
USs% Uss LSS Lss
Cash in hand 5,942 4,245 - -
Cash at bank 406,107,117 28679944 34454142 12057 548
Fixed deposits 200,892 6] 4,260,249 |8.956,650 3,394,733

Cash and cash equivalenis in the
statements of fnancial position 67005790 32970441 53440792 15452 581

Fixed deposits (pledged) (3,710,425 (3, B652¥8)  (3.220,908) (3231908}
Cash and cash equivalems in the
statement of cash Mows 63205365 29105153 50218384 12230673

Fixed deposits cam interest of 1.75% to 5,27% (2023: (0,.25% 10 5,25%) per annum and are used
as collateral for banking facilities which is subject to restrictions imposed by the lenders (Mot
13},

Capital and reserves

Share capital
Group and Company
24 2024 2023 2023
Number of Mumber of

shares Uss shares Uss

Fully paid ordinary shares
with no par value:
An 1 April 2023, 31 March
2023 and 31 March 2024 21,057 844 26,073 548 21,057 844 26,173 548

All shares rank equally with regard 1o the Company s residual assets. All shares issued are fully
paid, with no par value.

Urdipary shares

The holders of ordinary shares are emtitled 1o receive dividends as declared from time 1o time, and
arc entitled 1o ong vote per share a1 meetings of the Company,

F839
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Foreign currency translation reserve

The forcign currency translation reserve comprises all foreign qurrency differences arising from
the transtation of the financial statements of forcign operations.

Dividenids
The following exempt {one=tier) dividends were declared and paid by the Group and Company:

For the yvear ended 31 March

Group and Company
2024 2023
Lss Uss
Paid to the owners of the Company
First interim (one-tier) dividend for USS0,09 per qualifving
ordinary share (2023 USS0.04) 1,895,206 1,895 206
Sccond interim (one-ticr) dividend for USS0, 15 per
qualifying ordinary share (2023; USS0.15) 3158677 3,158,677

5,053 883 5.053,883

Loans and borrowings

Group Company
2024 2023 24 2023
Uss Uss Uss LSS
Nuon-current linbilitics
Secured bank loans 11,545,603 11,578,604 1,162,365 3,278,601
Lease linbilitics 165,144 375,162 37,171 0,46

11,710,747 11,953,762 1,199,536 3,349,547

Current linhilitics
Current portion of

secured bank loans 2685278 3,015,336 2,070,632 2281649
Lease linbilitics 337816 06, 560 65,1319 59,960
Trust receipis and bills

pavable S, 494,177 51,156,167 44689917 44,2 14,053

59,517,271 34,468 063 A6, 525 6RE 46.535.604
Total liabilitics T1,228018 66,421,825 48025224 49905211
F54a0
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Terms and debt repayment schedule

Terms and conditions of owistanding leans and borrowings are as follows:

pUL] 201
Naminal
imterest Yearafl Face Carryimg Faxw Carryimg
Curremcy rate maturity vabur Amnnt value amsonmt
b Uss Ui TS5 L&A

darnup
Sevured hask loas G 1P o 0% MR- 3030 S1ENSRR LAEIAER S840 S50
Sewured hank loan LS £33% Fa 11 ] 75,144 ITS b 527,79 ST, TO0
Seeured hank loan MYR LAS% o 465%  NIXI- MWD 10772140 IOTTLIS REL42M RELLIW
Lase iahilrges MYR 30 50T 1004 - J0TF LLE S 76,139 BR2T Ti.A0
Lease liabilties PRIP TOI% pi 1] TR A 234438 H5ma ITT,TI4
Lease lishilisies 1k o s 3342020 [k 3o idin
Lasg linbilitios YHD 6.00%% pithe L 3033 79,660 61
Leass lishilities CHY 52174 4500
Bgase lialnlstics S0l A4 Miz4 - 2% 102682 In2am 151,597 130,506
Trusl receyss jmd Balls

payahle UISTR 6. 28% o L1 2% MM SIMEME 51593545 40937360 49937380
Trust receipas ssd Balls

payahle MYE 4.40% 00 530M 24 =35 LR 49,002 49097
Trusl Fecesgis il balls

payable |81 9. 24% 4 9. 506% piire ) LEOZ040 L0204
Trust recesps s balls

pavahle EUR 5.04% 00 5.5 i [ | (80,359 [Tk 791,336 TRLAAG
Trust receips snd Bills

payahle CNY +.56% ke SIERT 113901 AMHITT ITRITE
Trust recespts sl bdlls

fuyahle THA 4 73% paint Erhpi] p k. k]
Tintal intgrest-beanng

lighalitsen T1.B6A,735  TLIIR0IA 66494918  664F1ETS

The secured bank loans of the Group are secured over the building and leaschold propertics with
carrying amounts of USSE 317 456 (2023: US313,379,102) (Now 4),

Trust receipts and bills payable are secured by a pledpe of lixed deposits (Nowe 13) and corporate
guarantees provided by the Company which bears intercst rates ranging from 1.75% 10 5.27%
{2023: 0.25% (o 5.25%) per annum.

Two of the secured loans are currently benchmarked to SIBOR and management is in discussion
with the banks to transit to SORA. It is not expected that the there will be significant impact 1o
the financial performance of the Group arising from the transition.

024 01N
Naminal
Interest Year of Faee Carrylmg Face Carrying
urrency raie manuriey valur amrEng walue amnunt
% iss U= Uss 5%
Company
Sowuned hamk ban S JAHP W BANi%  DMOPA-DORA  D9STESY  LOSTASY  RODIAS}  SANLASD
Kevured hask loan L8518 ] £53% narE 2754 275,144 537,09 517,70
Trust recesgas asd Bdlls
payabile Ush 0.26% 1o T4 fu ik} HEOED01T 440680017 214083 £42014083
Lease lisbiliies SGly 133% o420 102 553 102,510 13k 397 13005
Tolal interest-beasing
lighnliticn AROI5 59T 4HO025.274 40900900 495905111

F541
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Reconcifiation of movements of liahilities to cash flows arising from fimancing activities

Linhilities
Loans amd Imterest Lease
horrawings payahbe linhilitics Total
Liss Liss LI5S Uss
Balance at 1 April 2022 73,140,758 113650 150,716 73,515,124
hanges from Minancing cash Mows
roceeds from boans and borrowings 197,254,794 - - 197234, 790
epaviment of looms and bormwings (204, 132 T65) - = (204,132 765)
epavment of lease habilities - - {200, 3 TRY (200,37T8)
Interest puid = {20668 D20 (152700 (2 6E3 20
olal changes from fnancing cash
Mows (GETT066) (2668 020) {215,648) (9,761, 634)
Effect from changes in foreign
exchange rate {512,685 - & 159 (504 3309
er changes
Jew lenses - - T13.225 713,225
Interest expense - 3216816 15,270 3232004
atal Hability-related other changes - 3216826 TR 495 3,845,321
Balance at 31 March 2023 65,750,103 T12456 671,722 67,194,281
Balance af 1 April 2023 65,750,103 TT2456 671,722 67,194,281
“hanges from Tinancing cash flows
Yriceeds (rop baans and hn':l:r'l.l.-:iﬂgn 163, 06, TN - - |63, 6, TR
epavment of loans and bormowings (15T, 1320400 - = (157,132
epavimient oof lease habalities - - (403,.224) (403224
nterest paid - {4,345 801} {14,683} (4, 3604840
Tutal changes from financing cash
Mows 5,932 668 (4345.800) (417,907 1,168,960
Effect from changes in foreign
exchange rate {957,713} - 17,554 940,157
Oiher changes
Mew lenses - 216,908 216, M
Interest expense = 4411,141 14,643 4 415,824
[Tatal liahility-reluted other changes - A411,141 2315 4642732
Balance at 31 March 2024 70,725,058 #37,796 502,960 721065814
F542
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Trade and other payables
Giroup Company
2024 2023 024 023
LSS Uss Uss Lss

Trade pavables:
= Third partics 30,736,531 22,388,616 I8,713,584 14,293 263
- Related companies 13 864 365 5483023 2,093,072 5,834,195

44, G0N B 2X.071,639 26,806,656 20,127 458
Chiher payables S 448 | 39 656 175,761 139,353
Advances received from

cusiomers 653330 344078 103 436 200 388

Inierest payable B3T. 796 772456 603,961 456,627
Accruals 677.021 620,171 369,748 310,335
Accruals for stall bonus | 904,417 2210,751 1145411 1,565,474
Contingent consideration - 183 007 - 183,007
Refund habilities 5,506,529 6,167, 148 4.984,20% 6, 167, 148

54,830,427 38, 508, DM 34,189,241 249,149,795
Trade and other payables:
= Mon-current 203 B4R 102 %30 = =
- Current 54,626,579 3RA060T6  34.189.24] 249149, 795

54,830,427 IH 508,906 34,189,241 249,149,795
Contingent consideration

In the prier year, the Company recognised a comingent consideration of USS183,007 in respect
of prafil guarantee payment indicated in sales and purchose agreemem for the acquisition of Tag
Palymer Sdn. Bhd. between the seller and the Company. The contingent consideration was
reversed during the Minancial vear as the profil guaranice requircments was mol met.,

Revenue
Revenue represents invoiced sales afier allowance for irade discounis,
The following tables provide information about the natwre and tming of the satsfcuon of

performance obligations in contracts with customers, including sigmficant payment terms, and
the related revenue recogmition policies;

Nature of goods or services | The Group manufaciures and trades in resin, chips and other
related accessorics.

When revenoe is recognised | The Group recognises revenue at the point in time when the
pronused poods is translemed 1o the customiers,

{Significant payment terms | Payment is wsually due 30 10 90 days alier delivery.
WObligations for returns and | Trade discounis are given to cerain customers when agreed
mefumds, if any sales volume have been met. The Group recognises refund
liabilities under "Trade and owther pavables’ for the wade
discounis given 1o customers.

Ohligations for warranties | There is no warrany provided for its products 1o their
CUSLOIMCTS,

F543
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Revenue from contracts with customers is disaggregated by primary geographical markets as

ol lows:
Group

024 023

Uss Uss
Primary peographical markets
Southeast Asia 251,163,642 282705 642
Rest of Asia SOERDH3 36,354,326
Americas 7400011 5.048,052
Oilser countrics T03,670 2692737

30157176 327.700.757

Other income

Group

04 2023

Uss Lss
Commission revenue 64,895 182,294
Government grant and credils 29,533 172,564
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 1,381,001 541478
Interest income 36l 688 45,492
Reversal of contingent consideration 183,007 -
Scrap fec income 37,395 65 656
Service [ee and commission of machinerics 2. 445070 -
Others 267,530 297,089

4,570,119 1,307,573

Finance costs

Group

224 2023

Uss Uss
Trust receipt interest 1816177 2686, M7
Term loan inercst 592328 529919
Interest on lease habilines 14,683 15,270
Bank charges 1,294 -
Fair value loss on derivative financial instruments 4,420 -

3,458,902 3,232 004

FS44
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The following items have been ineluded in armiving at profit before 1ax:

Andit fees paid 1o:

- auditors of the Company and otser Dirms affiliaed
with KFMG International Limied

= other auditors

Mon-gudit fee paid to:

- auwditors of the Company and other firms affiliated
willh KPMG International Limited

Allowance made for obsolele inventones

Beversal of allowance for obsolele mveniorics

Consumable equipment

Propeny, plant and equipment written ofT

Inventory written back

Amortisation of intangible asscis

Depreciation of propertly, plant and equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assels

Employee compenzation

= Salaries and bonus

- CPF contribution

- Levy and SDF

Impairment loss on'{reversal of) rade receivables, net

Forcign cxchange loss

Expenses relating to leases of low-value asseis,
excluding shori-term leases of low-value asseis

Expenses relating to short-term leases

334/385
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Group
024 023
Uss Uss
343,540 145,945
52497 44444
R2,466 5678
1105316 2. 764,801
(371.191) {23,033}
T34.125 2,741,768
18,255 43,6496
113 3,950
(8.564) (22,988)
483,261 483,261
1,221,177 1192 583
410,905 258,077
6,222 821 6 A6, GOG
604,190 565,545
108,911 85,004
584,155 (267,147}
1,584,049 1189171
22,403 20,0235
1,972,244 358,308
F845
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Tax expense
Group

24 2023

U&ss Uss
Current tax expense
Current year 2,114,978 3 (B0, 756
Change in concessionary (ax mic 20004, 1 8 —~
Chver prowision in prior years {140.297) (38,550}

3978 808 3,042,206

Diferred tax cxpense
Origination and reversal of temporary differences {77.885) (286.612)
Change in unrecognised wemporary differences {123,213} {153,039
{201,088) (469,651
3,777,780 2 572 555

Reconciliarion of effective tax rafe

Profit before tax 14269324 |9, (007 497
Add: Share of results in equity-accounted invesiees (331,501) (313,132}
Profit before share of results of associates and tax 13,937,823 186594, 365
Tax calculated using Singapore tax rate of 1 7% (20232 17%) 2,369,430 3124810
Effcct of concessionary lax rale - (1L142.232)
Effect of wmx rates in foreign jurisdictions 21,128 (157,397}
Income not taxable for tax purposcs (H72.079) (247,082}
Expenses nod deductible for 1ax purposes 351,274 528,101
Tax exemption and deduction (348.379) (392,099}
Current year losses which no deferred tax asset 15 recogmsed 392517 544,004
Change in concessionary Lax rale™ 2004186 -
Crver provision in respoct of prior years' income tax (140,297) (38,550

3,777,780 2,572,553

* The Company did not extend its concessionary tax rate of 10% for qualifying activitics under
the Development and Expansion Incentive Scheme, arising which the usual corporaie tax rate in
Singapore of 17% applies 1o the Company.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets

Deferred 1ax assets have nol been recognised in respect of the following items, because i is not
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the Group can use the benefils
therefrom. The wiilisation of tax losses, are subject (o agreement by the tax authorities and
compliance with the relevant tax regulations, These tax losses can be carmied forward wp 1o five
conseeutive vears and will expire on the fifth year from which the tix losses arise.

Group
224 2023
Uss U'ss
Tax losscs 4,050,206 1,741,280

FS46
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Earnings per share

The calculation of bosic camings per share and diluted camings per share are based on the profit
aurtbutable 1o ordinary sharcholders divided by weighted-average number of ordinary shares.

Prafir attribstable to ordinery sharcholders

Groif

024 2023

Uss Uss
Profii for the period, atnbuiable to the owners of the

Company L0491, 548 16,434,942

Weighted-average number of ordinary shares 21,057 844 21,057 844
Earmngs per share
- Basic earmings per share (USS) 0.4932 (.TEOS
- Diluted earnings per share (LIS5) (0.4982 0. TEO05

The Group did not have any dilutive instruments in current and previous Dnancial vear,

Leases

Lewses as lessee

The Group leases office building, stafll residential unit and factory facilines. The leases tvpically
mun for a period of 2 10 3 years, with an option to renew the lease after that daie. Lease rentals are
renegotiated every three years to rellect markel rentals.

The Group leases production equipment and [T equipment with contract terms of one year, These
leases are short-term or low-value items. The Group has elected not 10 recognise right-of-use
assels and Jease labilitics for these leases,

Information aboul leases for which the Group s a lessee 1s presented below.

Righi-of-use asseis

Right-of-use assets related 1o leased propertics, (soc Note 5).

Amounis recognised in profit or loss

Group

2024 2023

Uss ss
Lewses
Interest on leasc hinhilines 14,683 15,270
Expenses relating to short-term leases 1,972,244 358,308
Expenses relating to leases of low-value asseis, excluding shori-

term leases of low-value assets 22 403 N, 025

F847
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Amounits recopnised in statement of cash Mows

Group
24 2023
Uss Uss
Repavment of lease liabilities (403,224) (200.378)
Intcrest paid {14,683} {15,270}
Total cash ouwtflow for leases (417,97} {215,648}

Acquisition
Acquisition of subsidiary

On 15 Seplember 2023, the Group acquired 99,995% of the newly issued shares in Dmmi
Developiment Sdn. Bhd. ("OMD") for a pad-up capital of MYR 499 9% {equivalent 1o
USS108,632), with the ransier of control effective on the same day.

The acquisition of OMD enabled the Group 1o have access 1o a picce of land in Malaysia 1o build
another faciory 1o expand the production capability ol ihe Group. For year ended 31 March 2024,
OMD contributed revenoe of US53,047, 245 and net loss of USS252 886 10 the Group's results.
If the acquisition had occurred on 1 Apnl 2023, management estimates that OMD contributed
revenue would have been USS10,664.729 and net loss of USS752.4360 10 the Group®s resulis, In
determining these amounts, management has assumed that the fair value adjustment, detcrmined
provisionally, that arose on the dae of acquisition would have been the same i the acquisition
had occurred on 1 April 2023,

Tdenriffable assers aequired and labilfies axswmed”

The [ollowing table summanses the recognised amounts of assets acquired and liabalities assumed
at the date of acquisition.

LSS
Land 6,350,472
Machineries Uag K73
Inventorics 1,732,235
Trade recevables 1,563, T
Cash and cash equivalents 482,933
Onher payables {11,024,570)
Total identifiable net assets [, 652
Total cash consideration 08,652

| The above fair value of ideniifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed have been
determined on provisional basis as of 31 March 2024,
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Effect on cash flows for the Group

Uss
Cash and Cash equivalent acquired 452 933
Less: Cash consideration paid (108,652}
Cash inflow on acquisition 374,281

Acquisition of subsidiaries

On 7 Juby 2022 and 28 July 2022, the Group acquired 108% of the shares and voting interests in
Kyoei Denks (5) Pie Lid and PT Kyoei Denki Trading Indonesia from a refated pariy. wiih transfer
of control effective from | July 2022 and 1 August 2022,

The acquisition ol these companics enabled the Group 1o expand 118 products range and customers
and added new principal manufacturers (o the Group existing disinibution business, With the
acquisition, il allows other companies within the Group 1o cross-sell existing produgis 1o new
customers, mainly lapancse companies. For vear ended 31 March 2023, the two companics
contributed revenue of US514, 749,208 and net profit of USSET6,805 to the Group's results, 1 the
acquisition had occurred on | April 2022, management estimates that the wo companies
conirtbuted revenue would have been USSI9.234.657 and nei profit of USS99%.591 o the
Group's results, In determining these amounts, management has assumed that the fair value
adjustment, determined provisionally, that arose on the date of acquisition would have been the
same if the acquisition had ocourred on | April 2022,

Consideration fransferred

The [ollowing mble summarises the acquisiion-date fair value of ecach major class of
consideration transferred:

Lss
Cash 4,431,625
Total consideration transicrmed 4,431,625

Acquisition-related cosis

The Group incured acquisitton-related costs of US584,226 on legal fees and due diligence costs.
These costs have been included in “pdminisirative expenses’,
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Identifinble assets acquired and labilities assomed

The following table summarises the recognised amounts of assets acquired and liabilities assumed
al the date of acquisition.

LSS
Property, plant and equipment 21,404
Inventories 2315028
Trade and other receivables 3954278
Cash and cash equivalents 4.0k 501
Deferred tax asscts 16,517
Trade and other payahles (5,970,163}
Total identifiable nei asscis 4 431,625

The earrying amounts of trade and other receivables. cash and cash equivalent and wade and other
payables with a maturity of less than one vear are assumed (o approximate their fair values due 1o
the short period 1o maturity of these financial instruments, Inventorics arc measured and held
clese 1o its selling price as al acquisition date. Management has assessed that the fair value of the
property, plant and equipment and defered tax asseis are not material as al acquisition daie and
no adjustments were made.

Effect an cash flows for the Geroup

Uss
Cash consideration 4431 625
Less: Cash and Cash equivalent acquired (4,054, 560
Cash outllow on acquisition 337,065
Related party transactions
Transactions with key munogement personnel
Koy minagemeni personmel compensalion
Group

24 2023

Uss LSS
Direclors’ fiee 230,131 238,255
Short-term employee benefits 875417 495 605
Post-employment benelits (inclueding CPF) 70,959 T0,389

1,176,507 1,204, 249
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Ehthver related party fronsaciions

In addition 10 the related party information disclosed elsewhere in the financial statemenis, the
following significant transactions with related partics on terms mutually agreed during the
financial year arc as follows:

Group

024 023

LSS LSS
Sales 1o corporaie sharcholder 275,950 460,136
Sales to related companics 1,859,213 9076878
Sales 1o associates 5.836,652 T.330,7H)
Purchases from corporate sharcholder (2R A68.457) (24,292 630)
Purchases from related companics {32.408) {(5.842)
Purchasces from associates (3915.608)  (6,T35.624)
Services charge by corporaie sharcholder {48,000 -
Services charge 1o corporate sharcholder 31,250 -
Services charge by related company (554 118) (293,919
Services charge (o related company 24,732 24413
Renial charge by related companics (44, 620) (436417
Facilities charge 10 associale 37123 30077
Sales of property, plant and equipment 1o related

COmMpanies - 1,195,725

Administrative charge 1o associate 50,698 47.734

Financial instruments
Financial risk management

Overview

The Group has exposure to the following risks arising from financial insiruments:

= credil nsk
o liguidity rsk
*  market risk

This mote presents information about the Group's exposure o each of the above risks, the Group’s
objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Group’s management
ol capital.

Risk muanagement framework
The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Group's nsk management frmmework, Management is responsible for developing and monitoring

the Group's risk management policies, Management reporis regularly 1o the Board of Dircclors
on its activities.
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The Group's risk management policics arc established 1o identify and analyse the risks faced by
the Group. to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits.
Risk management policies and sysiems are reviewed regularly 1o reflect changes in market
conditions and the Group's activitics. The Group, through its training and management standards
and procedures, aims 1o develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all
emplovees undersiand their roles and obligations.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss 1w the Group or the Company if a Customer of counterpany
1o o financial instrument fails (o meet its contractual obligations, and anses principally from the
Company's non-trade amount due from subsidiarics and the Group’s and the Company's
receivables from customers.

The carrving amounts of financial assets represent the Growp and the Company’s maximum
exposures o credit nsk, before taking lo account any collateral held.  The Group and the
Company’s exposures o credit risk arise primarily from cash and cash equivalents, trade and
other receivables, amount due from subsidiaries and amount due from related panics.

Trade receivables

The Group's exposure to credit risk is mfuenced mainly by the individual charactenstics of cach
customer, However, management also considers the demographics of the Group's customer base,
including the default nisk of the industry and country in which customers operate, as these factors
may have an mfluence on credil risk.

The Group limiis iis exposure 1o credil risk from wade receivables by establishing maximum
payment periods of one and three manths for corporate customers respectively. The Group also
entered into trade credit insurance for its trade receivables with an insurance instution which is
rated A2 based om raung agency Moody’s rating 10 manage its credit nsk of us trade receivables.

As at 31 March 2024, 50 (2023; 30%) of the Group's rade receivables that are past due is
covered by the eredit insurance,

In monitoring customer credit risk, customers are grouped according to their credit characteristics,
including whether they are an individusal or legal entity, whether they are a wholesale, retail or
end-user cusiomer, their geographic locaiion, industry, trade history with the Group, aging profile,
migtunty and existence of previous financial difficulties,

EXprasnre fo creift risk

The exposure 1o credit risk for trade receivables al the reporting date by geographical location
was a5 follows:

Group Company
Carrying amount Carrying amount

2024 2023 2024 2023

LSS Uss Us% Uss
Southeast Asia S33R2942 49368273 A2Md6545  T3281.702
Rest of Asia 12,006,784 4,209 854 9.720,108 3,802,001
Americas 241399 14,751 - H0,K35
Orher countrics 163,381 1414 308 GlLET 6 3652

67,977,005  S5807.217 61,827,529  T7.168,190
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There is no concentration of customers” credit nisk at the Group and Company kevel,

Expected credit loss asscssment

The Group uses an allowance matrix 1o measure the ECLs of rade receivables from custiomers.
ECL is calculaed based on actual eredit loss experience over the past three years and adjusted for
differences between economic conditions during the period over which the historic data has been
gollected, curment market conditions and the Company™s view of cconomic conditions over the
expected lives of the recevables.

The following table provides information about the expesure 1o credit rsk and ECLs for trnde
receivables for individual customers as a1 31 March 2024

Gross Impairment
carrying luss Credit
amount allwwance impaired
USs LSS
Group
2024
Mot past due GO E2 96 - Mo
Past due 1 =30 days 5,430 857 - Mo
Past due 31 — 60 days 1,360,615 - Mo
Past due 61 = 90 days 114972 - No
Past due more than M days GRT M) - Mo
Past due more than M days 582,338 {582 318) Yes
68,550 443 (582,318)
023
Mol pasi due 47 480, 548 - No
Past due | — 30 davs 6, 160,051 - Mo
Past due 31 — 60 days 997,587 - Mo
Past due 61 — ‘Hr days 267,574 = Mo
Past due more than M) days 01 457 - Mo
55,807,217 -
Company
2024
Mot past due 46,674 136 - Mo
Past due | - 30 days 3125370 - Mo
Past dug 31 — 60 days 2039615 - Mo
Past due 61 - 90 days 2990432 - No
Past due more than M days 6,997 976 = No
Past due more than 0 days 530,303 {530,303) Yes
62,357 832 {330,303}
023
Mot past due 46,687 267 - Mo
Past due | = 30 days 8333775 - Mo
Past due 31 — 60 days 5,285 567 - No
Pazt due 61 — W days 5.8010,326 — Ma
Past due more than N days 11,051,255 - Mo
77,168,190 =
F553
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Movements in allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables

The movement in the allowance for impaimment in respect of trade receivables during the yvear
was as follows:

Group Company
USS LSS
Arl April 2022 386,382 -
Amount written ofT (10,1 76) -
Recovery of doubtful trade receivables (267,147) -
Exchange difference (18,059 -
An 31 March 2023 - -
An 1 April 2023 - -
Impairment loss recogniscd 584,155 530,303
Exchange difference (1LEIT) -
An 31 March 2024 582,338 §300,303

Griiaranlees

The Group's policy is w provide financial guarantees only for whollv-owned subsidinnes”
linbilities.

Al 31 March 2024, the Company has issued guaraniees 1o cenmn banks in respect of credn
facilitics granted 1o eleven subsidiaries. These guaranices are subject (o impairment assessment
under FRS 109, The Company has assessed that the subsidiaries have strong linancial capacity 1o
mieel the contraciual eash Mow obligations in the near future and hence, does notl expect significant
eredit losses from there guaramtecs. The Company’s asscssment is based on qualitative and
quantitative factors that are indicative of the risk of defauli {including but not Hmited 1o external
ratings. awdined financial statemenis, managemeni accounts and cash flow projections, if
available, and applving experienced credit judgement).

Non-trade amounts due from subsidiaries and reloted parties

The Group held non-irade receivables Mrom relaved partics amouming 1o USS913.838 (2023:
LI552,146,146). These balances are for short to medium term funding requirements.  The
impairment on these balances has been measured on the 12 menth expecied credit loss basis and
the amount of the ECL is insignificam,

The Company held non-trade receivables from subsidiaries and relaicd panics of USS5, 194,784
(2023: USS3,905.277). These balances are for short to medium term funding requirements. The

impairment on these balances has been measured on the 12 month expecied credit loss basis and
the amount of the ECL is insignificant,

Cash and cash equivalents and fived deposits

Impairment on cash and cash equivalents and fixed deposits have been measured on the 1 2-month
expecied loss basis and reflects the short maturitics of the exposures. The Group considers that
115 cash and cash equivalents and fixed deposits have low eredint nsk based on (he external credit
ratings of the counterparnics.

The amount of ECL on cash and cash equivalents and fixed deposils is insignificant.
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Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is a risk that the Group and the Company will encounter difficulty in mecting
financial obligations duc to shorage of funds. The Group and the Company s exposure 1o liquidity
risk anis¢ primarily from mismaiches of collections and paymenis timing, The Group and the
Company’s objective are 1o maintain a balance berween funding through business and Mexibility
through the use of stand-by credit facilitics 1o pay for liabilities that are due in the next twelve
months.

Twpically, the Group ensures that it has sufMicient cash and cash equivalents (exeluding demand
deposits subjoct 1o restnictions) o meel expecled operational expenses for a peniod of 60 davs,
including the servicing of financial obligations. This excludes the potential impact of extreme
circumstances that cannel reasonably be predicted, such as noural disasters.

Expisure to liguidity risk
The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilitics, The amounts are

gross and undiscounted, and include contractual mterest payments and exclude the impact of
NELINE dErecmenis:

Carrying  Contractunl  Within Within Maore than
Mole  amaoant cash Mows I year It 5 yeurs 5 years
LI5S Uss Us% [ B3 Uss
Cirwup
31 Murch 2024
Non-derivative linancial
Tkabablithes
Trade and oiber payables I SE3042T S EI042T R4626.570 203,848
Secured bank loans 15 14,230,881 18777363 2761887 SATIEIZ 10541644
Trust receipts and balls
payable 15 564077 58086745 58006745
Lense linhilitics I5 502,964 541672 Hil 379 1 50, M)
120088 443 132236214 115 KS6.590 S RATORG 10541 644
Derivative finnncial
instrumenis
Denivative linancial assets (5,233)
= Chutllow (2,200 0000 {2,200 4003
= lillow 2208203 22085 223
Denivative fmancial
liahilitics 68,302
- iflow (1588 70 (1,588,709)
- Inflow 1,520,428 1.520. 428

63,069 (63,0985} {63 0058)
126,120,514 132,173,156 115,773,532 5 HSTOHO 10541 644

31 March 2023

Nan-derivative Minancial
liabilities
Trade and other payahles 16 IRS08906 585089046  IE G076 102 %30
Secured bank loans 15 14593936 16,674,758 33577381 TAMGTS 5871352
Trus 'ru.'r:ipl.-l and bafls
pavahle 15 51,156,167 52251048 52351948
Lease hnbihnes i5 671,732 Td6, 730 A296d3 d17.0m

14930731 |08,183.3132 943453098 7.064 582 5.872.152
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Carrying  Contractual  Within Within More than
Note  amaunt cash Mows I year 1o 8 vears 5 years
Lss Uss Uss Lss Uss

Company
31 Murch 2024
Nan=derivative linancial

linhilities
Trude amd olber payables i H.189 241 34,189,241 3 189241
Secured bank loans 15 3233997 3307081 3130447 1,176,634
Trust recepls and balls

payable 15 44689917 45907703 45007703
Lease liabilities 102311 102 683 65,456 ira
Intra-group financal

dnanes S5.000915 40219182

RII1546h 138,507,623 122812029 5543950 10541 644

31 Muarch 2023
Nop-derivative financial

linbilities
Tracke aml other pnyuhlr* I 2149795 29,149,795 2 149795
Secured bank loans 15 5,560,250 L5767 K9 2415080 3352, T
I'rust receapts and balls
payable I5 A4 214,085  A50109.016 45 009.116
Lease linbilitics 130,904 131,597 G ADS Th 192
Intra-group financinl
AunnEnies 3300560 43345333 4091 K76 3872352

TROSE 006 33477048 120,080.729 7818867 £,872 383

The maturty analvses show the contraciual undiscounted cash Nows of the Group and the
Company's financial liabilitics on the basis of their carliest possible contractual manurity,

The Group has secured bank loans which contain debt covenamis, A breach of these covenants
muy require the Group o repay the loan earlier than indicated in the table above. Under the
agreement. the covenanis are monitored on a regular basis by the finance depanment and regularly
reporied o the management (o ensure compliance with the covenant, As a1 31 March 2024, the
Group 15 in compliance with the debt covenands.

The interest payments on vanable interest rate loans and trust receipis in the able above reflect
murket forward interest rates at the period end and these amounts may change as market imierest
rales changes.

Market risk

Market msk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates
and equity prices will affect the Group™s income or the value of it holdings of financial
instrumenis. The objective of market risk management is 10 manage and commal markel nsk
exposures within acceptable parameiers, while optimising the return,

Currency Fisk

The Group is cxposed (o transactional foreign currency risk 1o the extent that there i5 a mismatch
between the currencics in which sales, purchases, receivables and borrowings, including inter-
company sales, purchases and inter-company balances, that are denomanated in a currency other
than the respective functional currencics of Group entities,  The functional currencies of Group
entitics are primanly the Malaysian Ringgit and US Dollar, The currencics i wihich these
transactions primarily are denominated are the Malaysian Ringgit (MYR™). US Dollar (*USD)
and Singapore Dollar (*SGD").
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Sensitivity analysis for foreien currency risk

The following table demonsimies the sensitivity of the Group and (he Company s profit or loss (o
possible change to the MYR, USD and SGD exchange rates against the functional cwrrencics,
wih all other variables held constani.

Croup Company
24 2023 2024 2023
Profit or loss  Profit or loss  Profit or loss  Profit or loss
LSS Uss LUss Uss
MYR (3% strengthening) 18,264 12,507 16,625 9274
USD (3% swrengthening) (63.955) (16,771) - -
SGD (3% sirengihening) 6,396 (16T ,231) {1,520 (194, 154)
MYR (3% weakening ) {18,264) (12,507) (16,625) {2,274}
USD (3% weakening) 53,955 16771 - -
SGD (3% weakening) (6,396) 167.231 1,520 194,154

Tnterest rate rivk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair valee or futere cash Mows of the Group and the Company s
financial instruments will Quctuate because of changes in market imterest mies. The Group and
the Company’s exposure 1o interest rale risk arise pnmanly from their fixed deposiis and interesi-
bearing loans and bomowings,

The Group and the Company do not have a policy 1o manage interest rale as interest incoms and
expenses do not constilute a substantial part of the towal operating income and expenses,
respectively.

Faposure fo interest rate risk

At ihe reporiing date, the interest rate profile of ihe interesi-beaning financial instruments, as
reported 1o the management, was as follows:

Group Company
Nominal amount Nominal amouni

1024 2023 2024 223

LSs LUss Lss LSS
Fixed rate instrumenis
Fized deposiis 20892691 4,286,249 | 8,956,650 3304733
Trust receipts and bills payables (56,494,177)  (SL156,167) (44.689.917)  (44.214,055)
Secured bank loans (R A52015) (5079530 (2B55934) (4,660, 140)

(43.753.500)  (51.949.448) (28580.201)  (45.479.461)

Yariahle rate instruments
Secured bank loans (6078.866)  (9.514,406) {377,064} (900,110
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Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed vare instroments

The Group docs not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilitics a1t FVTPL. Therefore,
change in interest rates at the reperting date would not affect profit or loss,

Cash flow sensisivity analvsis for variahle rate insirments
A reasonably possible change of 50 basis points (“bp') in interest rales ol the reporting date would

have ingreased (decreased) profit or foss by the amounts shown below, This analysis assumes
that all ether variables. in panicular foreign eurrency exchange rales, remain consiant.

Croup Company
Profit or loss Profit or loss
S0 bp 50 bp S0 bp Si b
increase decrease increase decrease

USs Uss Uss LSS
31 March 2024
Varwble rate instruments {30,394 00 3 (1,485} 1,585
Cash Mow sensitivity ({30,394 30,304 {1,885) 1,585
31 March 2023
Variable raic instruments (47.572) 47,572 (4,501} 4.501]
Cash Mow sensitivity {47.572) 47,572 {4,501} 4,501

Capital management

The Group and the Company’s objectives when managing capital are 10 ensure that the Group
and the Company are adequatcly capitalised and o mpintain on optimal capital structure by
issuing or redeeming additional equity and debl mstruments when necessary. No changes were
made in the objectives, policies and processes during the financial vears ended 2024 and 2023,
Capital is defined as wotal issued and fully paid-up ordimary shares and retained camings,

For loans and borrowings with the external Nnancial institutions, the Group and Company, are

required 1o ensure that that there were no significant changes o its existing major sharcholders
and the sharcholding of its subsidiarics.
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{hoeari-Plus System Limdted
anid iy subsidiaries
Framuctar siademenis

Yewr ended 31 Merch 2024

Valuation technigues and significant vnobservable inputs
The following tables show the valuation techniques used in measuring Level 2 fair values.

Financial instruments not measured at fair value

Twpe Vuluation technigue
Group and Company
Financial derivatives The fair values of derivamive forwards and interest rates

are based on banks” guotes. These quotes are tested for
reasonableness by discounting estimated future cash Nows
based on the terms and maturity of each contract and using
markel interest rates for a similar mstrumend al the
measurement date. Fair values reflect the credit risk of the
Ciroup entity and counterpartics when appropriate,

Oiher finangial liabilitics® Discounted cash Nows: The valuation model considers the
present value of expected payment, discounted using a
risk-adjusted discount rate,

*  Other financial liabilivies include secured bank loans,

Operating segment

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing and trading of resins, chips and other
accessories. The Group asscssed its operating segmeni and deiermined that it has only one (2023:
one) single reportable segmeni which is Engincering Plastics scgment,

The operating segment contmns various operating divisions that are inter-dependent o support
the Group's operating activitics and performance. Based on the combined activitics of these key
divisions, the Group's Chief Executive Office (“CEQ"1, who is the chiel operating decision maker
{"CODM™), asscsses performance against an approved Group's budget and makes resource
allocation decisions thar will maximise the wtilisation of production capacity and operating
elficiency of the single reponable segment, 10 achieve the Group's budgel.

FS64
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{hoeari-Plus System Limdted
anid iy subsidiaries
Framuctar siademenis

Yewr ended 31 Merch 2024

Reconcilintion of reportable segment revenues, profit or loss, asscts and liabilities

x4 03
Uss 8%
Revenue
Total revenue for reportable segment 435 H3RKID 526,698,134
Elimination of inter-segment revenus (125.681,663) (198,997 377)
Consolidated revenuc 3100157176 327 700,757
Profit before tax
Total profit before tax for reporiable scgment 15,383,117 19447076
Elimination of inter-scgment profil or loss (1.113,793) (439 580
Consolidated profit before tax 14,269,324 149, (K07, 494
Assels
Total assets for reponable segment 257 346,574 252384 156
Elimination of intcr-segment asscls (S0.683.658)  (72.716,225)
Consolidated total assets 206,662,916 179,667,93]
Linhilitics
Total liabilities for reponable segment 16T 137,112 168,008 063
Elimination of inier-segmeni liabilitics (36.240.137) {59,075 890)
Conzolidared total liabilitics 130,896,975 108,932,175
Reconcilintion of reportable segment other material items
Reportable Consolidated
segment totals  Adjustments fotals
Uss Uss Uss
024
Interest income Il 688 - 361 688
Oiher material iems of income® 4,208,431 - 4,208 431
Finance costs (4.523,340) 36444 (4,488,902
Depreciation and amonisation expenses (1,745,001 (370.252) (2,115,343
Impairment loss on trade receivables (584,155) - (584.155)
2023
Interest income 48 492 - 48 492
Onher material items of income® 1.259.081 - 1,259,081
Finance costs {3.236,594) 4498 (3.232.006)
Deprecianion and amoriisation expenses (1,453 829) (4R0,0592) (1,933 9213
Reversal of impairment loss on trade
reccivables 267,147 - 07,147

* Ciher matenal mems of income relate w varous items as detailed inonote 15,

FS65
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{hoeari-Plus System Limdted

anid iy subsidiaries
Framuctar siademenis

Yewr ended 31 Merch 2024

Geographical information

In presenting information on the basis of geographical segmenis, segment revenue 1s basced on the
geographical location of customers and scgment assets are based on the geographical location of

the asseis.
Group
2024 2023
Uss Uss
Revenue
Southeast Asia 250 163,642 2827035642
Rest of Asia 50,889 853 36354320
Amcricas 7400001 5.948,052
Otlver countrics 703,670 2,692,737
310,157,176 327.700,757
Non-current assets™
Southeast Asia 27 8Ot GRD 24,559 994
Rest of Asia 14,672 14,021
27 8R4 361 24574015

U Won-current assets presented propenty, plant and equipment, right-of-use assels, investments in

associnics, and intangible assets and poodwill,

Major customer

There are no customers contributing more than [0 percent 1o the revenue of the Group.

Subsequent events

On 29 March 2024, the Group announced its intention 1o acquire International Material Supplier
Co.. Lid and itz subsidiaries (“IMS Group™) [or a total consideration of TWD348 48] 554
{equivalemt o USSI0.795 587 IMS Group specialises in sales of plastc materials for 1T,

communications, and consumer electronics industries, IMS group was acquired on | Apnl 2024

whei the ransler of control 1ok place.
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Independent auditors report

Members of the Company
Omni-Plus System Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Omni-Plus System Limited (‘the Company’) and its subsidiaries (‘the
Group’), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position of the Group and the statement of
financial position of the Company as at 31 March 2025, and the consolidated statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Group for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of material accounting policy information, as set out on pages FS1 to
FS72.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Group and the statement of financial
position of the Company are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 1967 (‘the
Act’) and Financial Reporting Standards in Singapore (' FRSS) so asto give atrue and fair view of the consolidated
financial position of the Group and the financial position of the Company as at 31 March 2025 and of the
consolidated financial performance, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group for
the year ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing (‘ SSAS). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the ‘Auditors responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Accounting and Corporate
Regulatory Authority Code of Professional Conduct and Ethics for Public Accountants and Accounting Entities (*
ACRA Code’) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in
Singapore, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
ACRA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Key audit matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit

of the consolidated financia statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.
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Impairment assessment of non-financia assets, including goodwill
(Refer to Note 4, 5, 6,10 to the financial statements)

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

As at 31 March 2025, the net carrying amount
of the Group’s non-financial assets including
goodwill amounted to US$34.45 million (2024:
US$25.5 million).

At reporting date, management has assessed
that certain cash generating units (CGUs) have
indicators of inpairment.

As part of the annual inpairmant assessment on
goodwill, management alocated the goodwill
to the respective CGUs where it arose and
compared the carrying amounts of these CGUs
(including goodwill) to the recoverable
amounts from each of these CGUs.

The recoverable amount of these CGUs are
determined using vaue-in-use  (“VIU")
impairmant models or fair value less costs to
sell (“FVLCTS’) method.

Impairment assessment of these certain CGUs
is a key audit mtter given the elevated and
significant inherent risks associate with the
assumptions the Group applied in their VIU
impairment models, including annua revenue
growth rate, gross profit margin, termina
growth rate and discount rate applied in these
models and the data used under the FVLCTS
method.

We obtained an understanding and performed
walkthrough over the impairment assessment
process, including the identification of
respective CGUs.

We discussed and evaluated appropriateness of
CGUs identified and whether the impairment
indicators have been appropriately identified by
management based on our understanding of the
current business environment which the Group
operatesin.

We evaluated the following key assumptions

used in the VIU impairment models:
Annual revenue growth:; Compared the
annual revenue growth rate used to historical
information, prevailing industry trends, and
industry analysts reports.
Gross profit margin: Compared to the gross
profit margin used to historical information
and made inquiries with management
whether the Group is able to maintain its
gross profit margin by passing on any
increase in cost of goods to its customers.
We also made inquiries with management
regarding their future plans for these CGUs.
Termina growth rates: Assessed the long-
term growth rates by comparing to forecasted
inflation rates and nominal GDP growth.
Discount rate: Involving our valuation
specialist ro form an independent expectation
on the discount rates and compared to the
rates and compared to the rates used by
management.

We performed sensitivity analyses over
significant inputs and their impact to the
recoverable amounts for these certain CGUs.
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Impairment assessment of non-financia assets, including goodwill (continued)
(Refer to Note 4, 5, 6,10 to the financial statements)

The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

We evaluated the fair value of the land
determined by external valuer and equipment
held under the CGU, whose recoverable amount
is determined using FVLCTS method. We
assessed the qualification and competence of the
externa valuer. Weconsidered the valuation
methodology used in the valuation of land and
assessed the reasonableness of land priceused by
the valuer and compared this information against
market data for compareable pieces of land in the
vicinity and the relevant adjustments made by the
valuer. For the equipment, quotes were obtained
from prospective buyer of these equipment.

We assessed the appropriateness of the
disclosuresin the financial statementsin
accordance with the requirements of the
accounting standards.
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Accounting for significant acquisitions
(Refer to Note 25 to the financial statements)

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

During the financial year ended 31 March 2025,
the Group completed the acquisitions of
International Material Suppliers Co., Ltd (“IMS”)
and Ecopoly Global (Shanghai) Co., Ltd
(“Ecopoly”) (formerly known as Plastech
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd) (collectively as ‘acquisitions
"), which were accounted for as business
combinations.

In accounting for business combinations, there
are further judgment involved and inherent
uncertainty in the assumptionsused by
management in alocating the overall purchase
price to the indentifiable assets, liabilities and
goodwill that make up the acquisitions.

We examined the purchase agreements to
determine  whether the acquisitions s
appropriately classified and accounted for in
accordance with the relevant accounting
standards, and faithfully presents the nature of the
transactions.

We read the purchase price alocation reports
prepared by management’s experts. Together
with our valuation specialist, we discussed with
management on the purchase price alocation to
understand their basis of identifying and valuing
the identified assets and liabilities.

We also considered the objectivity, independence
and competency of management’s experts, and
scope of their engagement.

We compared the methodologies and key
assumpations used in determining the fair values
of the identified assets acquired and liabilities
assumed to generaly accepted market practices
and market data.

We checked the computations for allocating the
purchase price to those assets, liabilities and
goodwill acquired.

We alsoconsidered the appropriateness of
disclosures for the acquisitions in the financial
statements.
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Other information

Management is responsible for the other information contained in the annual report. Other information is defined as
all information in the annual report other than the financial statements and our auditors report thereon.

We have obtained the other information prior to the date of this auditors report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of management and directors for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with the provisions of the Act and FRSs, and for devising and maintaining a system of internal accounting controls
sufficient to provide a reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorised use or
disposition; and transactions are properly authorised and that they are recorded as necessary to permit the
preparation of true and fair financia statements and to maintain accountability of assets.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Thedirectors responsibilities include overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
Auditors responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
SSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls.
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Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether amaterial uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors report to the related disclosuresin the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business units within the group as a basis for forming an opinion on the group
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and review of the audit work performed
for purposes of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal controls that we identify during our
audit.

We aso provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditors' report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.
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Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Company and by those
subsidiary corporations incorporated in Singapore of which we are the auditors have been properly kept in
accordance with the provisions of the Act.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditors report is'Yap Wee Kee.
KPMGLLP
Public Accountants and

Chartered Accountants

Singapore
2 August 2025
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Independent auditors report

Members of the Company
Omni-Plus System Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Omni-Plus System Limited (‘the Company’) and its subsidiaries (‘the
Group’), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position of the Group and the statement of
financial position of the Company as at 31 March 2024, and the consolidated statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Group for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of material accounting policy information, as set out on pages FS1 to
FS66.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Group and the statement of financial
position of the Company are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 1967 (‘the
Act’) and Financial Reporting Standards in Singapore (' FRSS) so asto give atrue and fair view of the consolidated
financial position of the Group and the financial position of the Company as at 31 March 2024 and of the
consolidated financial performance, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group for
the year ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing (‘ SSAS). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the ‘Auditors responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Accounting and Corporate
Regulatory Authority Code of Professional Conduct and Ethics for Public Accountants and Accounting Entities (*
ACRA Code’) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in
Singapore, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
ACRA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Key audit matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit

of the consolidated financia statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.
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Impairment assessment of non-financia assets, including goodwill

(Refer to Note 4, 5, 9 to the financial statements)

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

As at 31 March 2024, the net carrying amount
of the Group's non-financial assets amounted
to US$25.5 million (2023: US$23.1 million).
The Group is required to assess at the end of
each reporting period whether there are any
indications that the non-financial assets are
impaired. For goodwill, an annual impairment
assessment is required.

Management has assessed that there are no
indicators of impairment on its non-financial
assets (excluding goodwill) as at 31 March
2024.

In assessing the recoverable amount of the
goodwill as part of annual impairment test,
management alocated the goodwill to the
respective CGUs which it arose and compared
the carrying amounts of these CGUs (including
goodwill) to the recoverable amounts from each
of these CGUs.

The recoverable amount of each of these CGUs
is determined based on their value-in-use
calculations. Thisreguired estimates to be made
for each CGU of annua revenue growth rate,
gross profit margin, terminal growth rate and
discount rate applicable to these cash flows.
There is inherent uncertainty involved in
forecasting and discounting future cash flows.
The assessment of the judgements made over
these estimates is a key focus area of our audit.

We obtained an understanding and performed
walkthrough over the impairment assessment
process, including the identification of
respective CGUs.

We discussed and evaluated appropriateness of
CGUs identified and whether the impairment
indicators have been appropriately identified by
management based on our understanding of the
current business environment which the Group
operatesin.

We evaluated the key assumptions used in the
cash flow forecasts for the assessment of the
recoverable amount of the CGUs with goodwill
allocated. These key assumptions include
annual revenue growth rate, gross profit
margin, terminal growth rate and discount rate.
We compared the annual revenue growth rate
used to historical information, prevailing
industry trends, and industry analysts reports.
We compared the gross profit margin used to
historical information and made inquiries with
management whether the Group is able to
maintain its gross profit margin by passing on
any increase in cost of goods to its customers.
We aso made inquiries with management
regarding their future plans for these CGUs.
We formed an independent expectation on the
discount rate involving our valuation
speciaists, to the extent appropriate. We
assessed the long-term growth rates by
comparing to forecasted inflation rates and
nomina GDP growth.

We performed sensitivity analyses over
significant inputs, being annual revenue growth
rate, discount rates and terminal growth rates
used in edtimating vauein-use of the
respective CGUs.

We dso considered the adequacy of the
disclosures in the financia statements, in
describing the inherent degree of subjectivity
and key assumptions in the estimates.
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Other information

Management is responsible for the other information contained in the annual report. Other information is defined as
all information in the annual report other than the financial statements and our auditors report thereon.

We have obtained the other information prior to the date of this auditors report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of management and directors for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with the provisions of the Act and FRSs, and for devising and maintaining a system of internal accounting controls
sufficient to provide a reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorised use or
disposition; and transactions are properly authorised and that they are recorded as necessary to permit the
preparation of true and fair financia statements and to maintain accountability of assets.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Thedirectors responsibilities include overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
Auditors responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
SSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls.
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Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether amaterial uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors report to the related disclosuresin the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal controls that we identify during our
audit.

We aso provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditors' report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.
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Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Company and by those
subsidiary corporations incorporated in Singapore of which we are the auditors have been properly kept in
accordance with the provisions of the Act.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditors report is'Yap Wee Kee.

KPMGLLP
Public Accountants and
Chartered Accountants

Singapore
3 August 2024
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